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Happiness 1 is the “five-dimensional happiness service system” created by Shinsun
Property through insight and exploration of the service needs of urban families,
adhering to the brand concept of “personalized happiness in every sense”,
covering five core service contents: happiness tribe, happiness space, happiness
community, happiness service and happiness neighborhood, and is dedicated
to providing customers with an all-age, all-cycle Shinsun-style happiness life
experience
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Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “Shinsun”,
which together with its subsidiaries, is referred to as the “Group”
or "We") is a fast-growing, large-scale, comprehensive real estate
developer in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or the "PRC")
focusing on the development of quality residential properties in select
regions in China. Headquartered in Shanghai and deeply rooted
in Zhejiang Province, the Group has established a leading market
position in Zhejiang Province through over 20 years of development.
The Company was successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 November 2020 (the “Listing Date").

Adhering to the vision of becoming a” happy life operator”, the
Group offers different series of properties to cater to the varying
needs of its target customers, from first-time purchasers and first-time
upgraders to subsequent upgraders and high-net-worth customers.
Through years of research and development, the Group has developed
four series of residential properties, including Arbor series (%)
targeting first-time purchasers, Mansion series (J§ &) targeting first-
time upgraders, Cloud series (235 &) targeting subsequent upgraders,
and Top series (Top %) targeting high-net-worth customers seeking
luxury lifestyles with high degrees of privacy. Leveraging the Group's
brand and experience in developing quality residential properties, it
has also built a growing portfolio of diversified commercial properties,
covering office buildings, shopping centers, community businesses and
hotels. The Group has also developed its” Shinsun Town" (££4/\§8)
model under which it designs featured projects comprising residential
and commercial properties based on the motto of“ living-friendly,
business-friendly, tourism friendly and retirement-friendly” (EE * B

¥ HE EE).

The Group adopts a proactive and standardized approach to its
property development processes and has established a three-
tier organizational structure, including its headquarters, regional
companies and project companies, as well as a set of standardized
operational protocols covering each process from site selection and
land acquisition to property delivery and after-sales customer services.
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The Group adopts a “1+1+X"” expansion strategy pursuant to which
it bases its development in Zhejiang Province, deeply penetrate into
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, and expand into other cities with
high growth potential outside the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region,
such as Jingmen in Hubei Province, Hengyang and Changde in Hunan
Province and Hohhot in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. The
“1+1+X" strategy also represents the Group’s determination to
accelerate the expansion of its property development business scale.
It is believed that after nearly 20 years of development, the Group
has accumulated sufficient experience in project development from
site selection to after-sales services, as well as abundant connections
with suppliers, contractors and business partners which are necessary
to carry out the acceleration of its expansion plans. Its historical
operating history and capabilities, quality property portfolio and
proactive and standardized operational protocols have all attributed to
the Group’s rapid expansion, and will continue to play critical roles in
helping the Group execute its “1+1+X" expansion strategy, improve
its competitiveness and achieve sustainable growth in the future.

Looking forward, the Group will continue its “1+1+X"” expansion
strategy and strives to become a leading real estate developer offering
quality products in the PRC.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Hongni (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yao Xiaozhen (resigned on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Han Bo (appointed on 12 March 2021)

Mr. Zhao Leiyi

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu (appointed on 1 March 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ding Jiangang (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hongni

Mr. Ma Hongman

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tan Mingheng (resigned on 31 January 2022)

Ms. Chen Chun (resigned on 10 September 2021)

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie (appointed on 10 September 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Hongni
Mr. Tan Mingheng (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie
(appointed on 31 January 2022)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
Maxa Capital Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC
Building 5

Henderson-CIFl Centre South
Minhang District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Dah Sing Finance Centre

No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Zhuji branch
China Minsheng Bank Ningbo Cixi branch

Bank of China Tiantai Count branch

Ping An Bank Hangzhou West Lake branch

WEBSITE
www.shinsunholdings.com

STOCK CODE
02599
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7. The 5th Annual Golden HK Stock Award Ceremony in Zhitong
Finance — Best Real Estate Company

8. Boao Real Estate Forum — 2021 Real Estate Enterprise with

Investment Value (Top 30)

9. Outstanding Competitiveness City Developing Influence Selection
on China Business Journal — 2021 Influential Enterprises

10. People’s Daily — 2021 Best Brands Award

11. Leju Finance — 2021 China Real Estate Blue-chip Enterprises

12. China Times — 2021 Product Power of Real Estate Brands
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
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development projects as at 31 December 2021.

The following table sets out details of the Group’s major property

JEfh2
EEE BEEE BB/ B
R rREEEEE QB (EHX) (Er%)  tHRE BIRE
Equity Actual/
interest Total estimated
attributable Occupied  attributable completion
Project to the Group  Location area (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) Land use date
LEREINRER 88% #IEEMRN LETINE 37,414 281369 [xFEBA 121172025
IR R Rk BR At
Shanghai Shinsun The project is located at the eastern side of Residential,
Hongkou Project Siping Road and the northern side of commercial
Tianshui Road, Hongkou District, and office
Shanghai City
REREER 56% REMBE BEMRE 62,700.00 159,368.80 f% 10/15/2023
BEMRE  LEBZH
Shaoxing Shinsun Cloud East to the ground limit line, Residential
south to the ground limit line,
west to the ground limit line,
north to Lingzhi Road
MBI EHER 84% MMTITEEHEE : LZREE - 79,617.00 292,406.20 (FEEE 71152023
BEXFILE REEBELE  BEKEH
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Jianggan District, Hangzhou: Residential and
Jiangshanyun north to Yinhai Street, commercial
Yuenan Mansion west to Wencong North Road,
east to Yunhai North Road,
south to Shuiyun Street
TNEAET LG 80% MMTITERBHE  REUREE 57,309.00 20450850 =% 71152023
BERME  BEKEH
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Jianggan District, Hangzhou: Residential
Jiangshanyun east to Wencong North Road,
Yuebei Mansion West to Chunxin Road,
South to Shuiyun Street
TNE AT EHAR 100% WATITRAGHE  LEHRE 40,031.00 13931740 f=E% 11/15/2023
EEXTIE  REFMH
Hangzhou Shinsun Baiyang Street, Jianggan District, Hangzhou: Residential and
Jiangshanyun north to Xinnong Road, commercial
Yuexi Mansion west to Wengianfan Road,
east to Chunxin Road
BN EREERE 100% BMTARE=TAREEREIXAAEEI60K  105,109.00 27197710 (F=EEE 10/17/2024
Quzhou Shinsun Xiyue Villa 160 meters southwest of the intersection Residential and
of Sanjiang West Road and Longyou Road, commercial
Kecheng District, Quzhou
HEER(EB)ARAR —T-—FFH
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS

i@
EEE BEEE Bk /Bt
R rREEEEE QB (EHK) (Erx)  tHRE BIRH
Equity Actual/
interest Total estimated
attributable Occupied  attributable completion
Project to the Group  Location area (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) Land use date
FERENT A 100% #BW#E=ARTEARZAREN240K 207,043.00 330,01021 f(=EEE 6/28/2024
Zhuji Shinsun City Light About 240 meters east of Zhongyi Gloria Residential and
Garden, Zhusan West Road, Zhuji City commercial
ERHENER 100% ERTSMEZLEENH 70,321.00 21525197  f#=% 71192023
Ningbo Shinsun Yuehaitang Yimen Village, Jiangshan Town, Residential
Yinzhou District, Ningho
RMFEREE 100% EEEEREEFAN  FE 28,763.12 12478000 HA=E% 1/10/2023
Wenzhou Shinsun Ganxi Village and Gannan Village, Residential and
Park Avenue Lougiao Street, Quhai District commercial
BN E AR 85% RMmEERR)EGE DT 18,145.09 71,04065 f#=% 12/31/2023
Wenzhou Shinsun Shangjiang Village, Puzhou Street, Residential
Jiuyue Mansion Longwan District, Wenzhou
AREMEEDR 100% EREILDBEURE - LRENL 71,217.00 201,989.58 (=EZE 10/15/2022
Hefei Luzhou East of Beisong Road and north of Residential and
Shinsun Cloud Zilan Street, Luyang District commercial
EHEHESEER 30% EBETHEFEZERILE - SEERE 79,519.00 23499039 f(EHE 5/30/2024
Fuyang Shinsun North side of Sanging Road and Residential and
Shuangging Yunjing east side of Funan Road, commercial
Chengnan New District, Fuyang
BEFARTH 100% @ERE REFFILE BEREWE 57,244.00 169,601.00 HAEE%E 5/31/2023
BEREER  EESRH
Sugian Shinsun East to Yangzijiang Road, Residential and
Oriental Arbor south to Wudang Mountain Road, commercial
west to the planning road,
north to Yucai East Road, Suyu District
EER R 100% REERAE BETH AEERLE- 90,007.00 304,02023 f(EHE 8/15/2023
TERRE-BRNE
Sugian Shinsun Mansion East to Xichu Avenue, south to open space, Residential and
west to Huangpujiang Road, commercial
north to Suyu No. 1 Experimental
Primary School
BEFEESR 100% aMmEEmEEKER IR ERAR 38,907.00 12712511 f=% 6/30/2023
Linhai Shinsun Cloud West side of Dongdu Road, south side of Residential

Linhai Avenue, Linhai City, Taizhou
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Chairman

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd., | am pleased to present the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
"Relevant Year").

MARKET REVIEW

As the ballast and pillar industry of the PRC's economy, the annual
sales and investment scale of the PRC’s real estate industry maintained
its growth trend and reached a new high during 2021. However, the
real estate market has begun to enter into new normal and shown
new features as the industry pattern has changed and the control
trend has become refined and focused. Over the past year, under
the industry keynote of housing is for living in, not for speculation, a
turning point in the direction of marginal changes in regulation and
control policies has gradually emerged.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Under the impact of the coronavirus disease (the “COVID-19")
pandemic, against the backdrop of continued depletion of market
demand, coupled with multiple internal and external factors, various
industry indicators in 2021 showed the trend of eventual decline
following its initial growth. In particular, new challenges emerged in
the areas of financing pressure, debt repayment pressure and sales
pressure on real estate enterprises. During the Relevant Year, the
Group insisted on actively responding to regulatory requirements,
complying with regulatory policies and embracing changes in the
industry, reducing costs and increasing efficiency internally and
improving quality externally, and always striving to achieve long-term,
healthy and sound sustainable development of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2021 was the second year of the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, macroeconomic and social development was
still subject to many uncertainties and major challenges. During the
Relevant Year, the Group always adhered to its corporate positioning
as a "Happy Life Operator (Ef@ALEJEEET)". With the vision of
becoming a healthy and sustainable quality benchmark enterprise and
the management policy of “market-oriented, quality-made, talent-first
and win-win cooperation (fT#%& M « EOE®E + AT /L - E1FEH
)", we actively faced the new landscape of market and industry.

At this time of market changes, the Group has always been firm in its
goal and path. In terms of overall development strategy, the Group
followed the “1+1+X" strategy, focusing on long-term deep rooting,
and continued to explore the value of regions, cities and segments.
With Zhejiang as the main base and Pan-Yangtze River Delta as the
main battlefield, the Group has concluded the “localized model (iR%
#ER)" and “flagship model (FEMET)" and other strategic grasps
that match with the development of the Group in the course of
continuous deep cultivation, so as to constantly strengthen the quality
of corporate growth and improve the quality of products and services.

From January to December 2021, the Group has realized the sales
amount for equity contract of RMB80,331.0 million, with a gross floor
area ("GFA") for equity contract of 5,946.7 thousand square meter
("sg.m.”). In terms of replenishment of land value, the Group insisted
on efficiency first and the strategy of deep cultivation and selective
expansion to make deployment with prudence. During the Relevant
Year, the Group obtained 20 new pieces of land in 15 cities, with a
total attributable land area of 1,294,922 sq.m. and estimated total
attributable GFA of 2,913,783 sq.m..

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.
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Since its presence in the capital market, the Group has continued
to strengthen the “safety barriers (225 %)"” and carried through
the goal of achieving quality growth rather than seeking expansion
indiscriminately. In 2021, the Group achieved revenue of RMB43.7
billion, representing a decrease of 6.3% as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020; net profit of approximately RMBO0.5
billion, with a year-on-year decrease of 84.3%.

Under the Matthew effect, the markets in the first-tier and second-tier
cities and core development areas have been further opened up,
and the continuous deep cultivation of real estate enterprises in the
advantageous areas also gradually unfolded its advantages. Riding on
the wave of integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta, the
Group has persisted in the layout of Zhejiang and the Pan-Yangtze
River Delta region for more than 20 years, and has achieved long-term
layout in high-quality cities such as Hangzhou, Shaoxing, Wenzhou,
Ningbo and Hefei.

In terms of the distribution of land bank, the Group's attributable
total land bank was 20.81 million sq.m. by the end of 2021, including
7.74 million sg.m. in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta region and 10.46
million sg.m. in Zhejiang Province and accounting for 37.2% and
50.3% of the attributable total land bank, respectively. Up to now,
the Company’s land bank in the whole Yangtze River Delta has
accounted for 87.5% of the total existing land bank. In the light of
the above, under the industry trend of gradual differentiation of the
urban market, the fundamentals of the Company’s overall layout are
sound, and the prospects in the development areas of the core urban
agglomeration are stable and considerable.

In the second half of 2021, the regulation and control policies have
been tightened rapidly, including the newly introduced credit-based
lottery policy for new houses, reference price policy for second-hand
houses in Shenzhen, competition in quality policy in Nanjing, Suzhou,
Chengdu and other cities, which have put forward more specific
directions and requirements for the long-term healthy development of
the industry.
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In a market with a growing sense of wait-and-see, it has become the
key points of development for real estate enterprises to open up a
new landscape, grasp opportunities and continuously improve their
competitiveness in the new phase. During the Relevant Year, the
Group insisted on continuously improving the quality of its products
and services, focusing on ensuring the progress of construction and
delivery of products, and delivered over 40,000 new happy homes
through the year. The Shinsun Club Platform, focusing on customer
services, had over 70,000 registered users by the end of 2021 in the
Group.

At the product level, the Group fully leveraged the advantages and
product characteristics of the four product lines of TOP Series, Cloud
Series, Mansion series and Arbor series to achieve customer needs of
full-cycle, full-region and full-age, so as to ensure that the Company
can precisely deliver the most suitable residential products in each city
and each project.

In 2021, the Group received a number of honors for its commitment
to product quality, including Top 20 Super Product Power of China
Real Estate Enterprises in 2021, Top 15 Benchmark Projects of China
Real Estate Enterprises in 2021 — Shinsun e Jing Hang Mansion and
Top 10 Regional Product Power of China Real Estate Enterprises in
2021 - Shinsun e Eastern Region in Zhejiang.

In the face of the industry reform of “speed reduction and quality
enhancement”, the requirements for enterprises to open up
sources of income and reduce costs and increase efficiency are also
increasing in the future, and enterprises are required to give full play
to the efficiency of management and operation in the process of
development. The Group has adhered to the proposition of efficient
operation and development while emphasizing the high quality
development of “scale and quality” and has fully opened up its
business model under the guidance of the “four-pronged approach (I
Z¥77%)" and through the five front “(AETE)"” and “12 formulations
(+=5)" models to enhance operational efficiency.
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In addition, the Group has been practicing long-termism and
striving to become a quality environment, social and corporate
governance (the "ESG") enterprise. The Group is focusing on its
efforts to achieve high standards of the ESG management with key
directions of continuously strengthening green construction, actively
promoting anti-corruption and integrity, attaching great importance
to occupational safety and health of employees, and actively fulfilling
corporate social responsibility.

In the aspect of practicing public welfare undertakings, the Group
actively participates in various public welfare undertakings, such
as urban construction, poverty alleviation and education, helping
the disabled and orphans and disaster relief and charity. Under the
Clover Plan, the Group has continued to implement public welfare
and support activities through the four sub-items of Health Fund,
Education Fund, Children’s Dream Fund and Sharing Fund. Up to
now, the accumulated donations have exceeded RMB400 million. The
Shinsun Foundation of Zhejiang (AT & AR &= E S E) was officially
credited as a social organization of 4A level in 2021.

During the Relevant Year, the Group focused on the health and
well-being of owners and community sectors, and has visited nearly
10 families affected by serious illnesses and distributed condolence
gifts and grants to them. Under the premise of precise epidemic
prevention, the Flying Elephant Charity Summer Camp (/NRE Rz E
<), focusing on caring for children aged 5 to 12 in need of help,
was re-launched with two sections, namely the Dream Camp focusing
on extracurricular practices and the Vital Camp focusing on football
training, to provide a platform for children in need to grow up and a
more colorful summer experience.

In addition, the Sharing Fund project under the Clover Plan of Shinsun
was officially launched in 2021, targeting to provide one-to-one
precise support to the employees and elderly owners of Shinsun
who have difficulties in life so as to relieve the financial pressure
brought to their families in case of critical diseases or accidents and
to enhance their sense of security and belonging. During the Relevant
Year, two cases of support have been successfully implemented.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022

With the nationwide systematic prevention and control of the
COVID-19 epidemic and the solid promotion of economic and social
development, the toughness of economic development continues to
appear. However, the new variant of the COVID-19 pandemic is still
causing a global epidemic backlash, and we are still facing a complex
and severe environment both domestically and internationally. To
further resisting against financial risks, the prudent real estate
financial management policies will remain the main trend at this
stage. It is expected that the illegal inflow of funds into the real estate
market will be strictly investigated while the regulatory policy system
for the supply aspect will continue to be improved and deepen, to
ensure that the development goal of stableness of the land prices, the
housing prices and expectations is achieved.

In anticipation of the tightening regulation of the industry, coupled
with the cooling market and the poor sales rate of projects, the
enterprises engaged in real estate development will generally face
challenges such as sales pressure and short-term capital. In 2022, the
Group will continue to actively market its projects and promote sales
rate and cash recovery while ensuring the supply of goods.

In the face of industry consolidation, the Group will continue to
adhere to its positioning as a happy life operator, steadily promote
its business, continue to optimize its financial structure, operate
prudently, move closer to the management logic of production based
on revenue and investment based on sales, and continuously enhance
its awareness of risk prevention and response capabilities. We will
provide better products and services for consumers, create higher
value for shareholders and investors and make efforts to enhance
social well-being.
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€ ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

TE-FEEBEHOKER TSR The achievements of the Group in 2021 cannot be achieved without

B KPP AERHNOIEEREML BB the support and trust of all shareholders, customers and partners, as

FAEEINFHEREE S - £t - KA well as the hard work and dedication of all employees. On behalf of

ERREFEMESURTRMBAB the Board, | would like to express our most sincere gratitude to all of
you.

R _FENER - BORER - AEEE In 2022, the Group will hold firmly to its mast of sail, and relentlessly

WHEM - BRI EERRENRES strive and move forward with dedication to create higher value for
BIEEANERE  REBEREEHNER shareholders and investors, provide better products and services for
MR - RIEAMEERRETRE - FiE consumers, and practice public welfare and deliver positive energy to
g o enhance social well-being.

HEEZER (£E) BRAF Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.

EFEFE Chen Guoxiang

F5R BB+ Chairman of the Board
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REEEME SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS

BE+T-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended
31 December

—E—F —ETF BOLE
Change in
2021 2020 percentage
EHHEERE MY Contracted sales Mot D
REASEERNSNIHES Contracted sales attributable to
(AR¥TFjT) =D the Group's interests (RMB'000) MoV 80,331,016 78,168,082 2.8%
EBEASEERNEE Contracted GFA sold attributable to
EamEsEmE (FHK) the Group (sg.m.) 5,946,696 5,672,190 4.8%
BERNEEEENEH Contracted average selling price (“ASP")
FHER(FHERD attributable to the
(ANR#TT,/ FHK) Group's interests (RMB/sq.m.) 13,509 13,781 (2.0)%
BRENEE Selected financial information
W (AREFIT) Revenue (RMB’000) 43,719,028 46,638,413 (6.3)%
EF(AREFIT) Gross profit (RMB'000) 4,571,611 8,434,839 (45.8)%
FREM(AREFIT) Profit for the year (RMB'000) 480,675 3,053,371 (84.3)%
RNEHEA A (S & F) Profit attributable to owners of
(AR®EFIT) the Company (RMB'000) (215,363) 2,646,006 (108.1)%
FEFNE (%) HE2) Gross profit margin (%) Nete? 10.5% 18.1%
Bk (E8),/ &F (Loss)/Earnings per share
(EARREE) (ARESD) (basic and diluted) (RMB cents) 7) 107
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R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F ZECZTF BOLLEE
Change in
2021 2020 percentage
wEE(ARETT) Total assets (RMB'000) 145,743,132 159,739,582 (8.8)%
Re RIRITAER Cash and bank balances
(ARBEF L) a3 (RMB'00Q) (Note 3) 8,448,078 24,304,747 (65.2)%
EsazE (AREF L) e Total indebtedness (RMB’'000Q) Note 4 34,386,436 46,176,558 (25.5)%
EmaE (ARETIT) Total equity (RMB’'000) 16,952,356 16,037,036 5.7%
KNNEVHEB ANELER Equity attributable to owners of
(AREFT) the Company (RMB'000) 7,717,713 8,431,555 (8.5)%
FEEA G R WS Net gearing ratio Mote> 153.0% 136.4%
INHE 19 B R A AN (%) HE6) Weighted average costs of
indebtedness (%) (Note &) 8.8% 9.1%

Wi -

(1

ENHERRRBEARBERENAOHEE - A1
HEMBAKELLREAEENLERFER -
ENREZSHEEBRETFESBETHER
= REANEERBERREESE

EFEDRBENEMNBRUAFEANRZ - BRI
100% =T EE L -

ReMRTTHHBEEZRFIRE 2 BAFER
EHREFRRE RS EED -

B BEEA SRITREMER  EERE
REFREEBRITESEE -

e
5

FEEAGBUELEDRBEFREBETRRS IR
TR AR SR MR AR A 100% T E S ©

MRETF I EB AR S RFEERAAAREE
EH O IR A9 F B AR -

Notes:

(M

Contracted sales include contracted sales attributable to the Group. Contracted sales
data is unaudited and is based on internal information of the Group. Contracted sales
data may be subject to various uncertainties during the process of collating such sales
information and is provided for investors’ reference only.

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit for the year divided by
revenue for the year and multiplied by 100%.

Cash and bank balances comprise restricted cash, pledged deposits, time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

Total indebtedness represents total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior
notes, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities.

The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total indebtedness less cash and bank
balances divided by total equity at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%.

Weighted average cost of indebtedness is the weighted average of interest costs of
all indebtedness outstanding as at the end of each financial year.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

Contracted Sales

During the Relevant Year, the Group achieved contracted sales
attributable to the Group of approximately RMB80,331.0 million,
increased by approximately 2.8% from approximately RMB78,168.1
million in 2020 mainly due to the rapid growth in sales in the Pan-
Yangtze River Delta Region (including Shanghai municipality, Jiangsu
province, Shandong province, Anhui province and Jiangxi province,
but excluding Zhejiang province).

During the Relevant Year, the contracted sales in GFA attributable to
the Group amounted to 5,946,696 sg.m., representing an increase
of approximately 4.8% from 5,672,190 sq.m. in 2020. The Group’s
contracted ASP in 2021 was RMB13,509/sq.m., representing a
decrease of approximately 2.0% from RMB13,781/sq.m. in 2020.

Contracted sales attributable to the Group from the Zhejiang province,
Pan-Yangtze River Delta region and other regions, which represents
regions in the PRC other than Zhejiang province and the Pan-Yangtze
River Delta region, including Hubei province, Hunan province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous region, Fujian province and Liaoning province,
accounted for approximately 58.7%, 32.0% and 9.3% of total
attributable contracted sales of the Group in 2021, respectively.
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i

EE=RE D The following table sets forth the details of contracted sales
attributable to the Group for the Relevant Year:

] BE

AEEERN HENHEE TEEEREW
BRHES WETHDL EEEE EHNTEHEE

Contracted

sales Percentage of GFA

attributable to total attributable to
the Group’s contracted the Group's Contracted
interests sales interests ASP
(AR¥T
(AR®TT) (%) (FHXK) FHK)
(RMB’'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
UM Hangzhou 15,492,087 19% 579,961 26,712
R Shaoxing 12,328,764 15% 689,821 17,872
&ahe Hefei 4,116,714 5% 198,946 20,693
I 70 4 45 Huhhot 3,525,051 4% 362,111 9,735
s Ningbo 3,519,580 4% 152,916 23,016
a M Taizhou 3,212,765 4% 199,706 16,087
Pl Wenzhou 2,912,234 4% 129,201 22,540
Ezgi] Nantong 2,867,569 4% 88,070 32,560
B Sugian 2,143,847 3% 223,032 9,612
AN Huzhou 2,134,550 3% 187,669 11,374
B Ji'nan 2,078,839 3% 265,747 7,823
&I Quzhou 2,064,044 3% 106,012 19,470
FHL Zhoushan 1,968,603 2% 133,351 14,763
ma Nanchang 1,916,258 2% 116,709 16,419
=07 Xuancheng 1,912,448 2% 244,349 7,827
HAtb Others 18,137,662 23% 2,269,095 7,993
#at Total 80,331,016 100% 5,946,696 13,509

T HhiE Land Bank

REBFE  AEELWE20B 58 - B During the Relevant Year, the Group acquired a total of 20 land
iR EFE 21,294,922 F 5 K » BB &2 parcels with a total attributable occupied area of 1,294,922 sq.m. and
£8TM7152,913,783F K - EWEE IR A T a total attributable GFA of 2,913,783 sq.m.. The average cost of land
BRI REFEFRKARE6,202 7T (IR parcels acquired was approximately RMB6,202 per sq.m. (in terms of

EETE)

GFA).
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TREIARERE BFEH B RO

The following table sets forth details of the Group’s newly acquired

15 land parcels during the Relevant Year:
XrEBRAKNE A A The Group and its subsidiaries
T4
A
JEfS JEfh FEfG (FEg
F¥  Bm Wi/ BAER THAR L EE AREEE THEA H#EE) HiLAH
Average
Attributable Total land cost
occupied  attributable  Attributable  (in terms of Date of
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost GFA) land auction
(AE®  (ARER/
(FAX) (FAX) BETR) THXK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million)  (RMB/sq.m.)
i
Zhejiang
1 sl MM TDREHIL0340 58 FEREE 52,412 208,428 2,612 12,531 2021/5/7
Hangzhou  Hangzhou Xiasha College Town North  Residential and
Plot 03 (MM T REHL0305%) commercial
2 sl SR ETIXH2301-09305% FEREE 96,162 227,859 2,823 12,389 2021/5/7
Hangzhou  Shuangpu Unit Plot XH2301-09 Residential and
(BHETXH2301-09303%) commercial
3 Rl FEAKET-2 frE 106,509 190,522 311 16,329 202173124
Shaoxing Shaoxing Zeshui Pai Plot 7-2 Residential
(FRERIKE 7-2)
4 Rl FERERT 2L FEREE 207,043 330,010 1,425 4,318 20217217
Shaoxing  Zhuji Shinsun City Light Residential and
(FEREMT LK) commercial
5 aM BERETRER FEREE 15,404 51,519 443 8,696 20217412
Taizhou Wenling Shinsun Cloud Garden Residential and
(REFEESHEAR) commerdial
6 &N EMHERNER FEREE 105,109 271,977 2,290 8,420 2021/4/20
Quzhou Quzhou Shinsun Xiyue Villa Residential and
(BIEERHZR) commercial
WE
Shandong
1 B BEHENEER FEREE 49,497 133,297 154 1,153 2021/5/24
Ji'nan Jiyang Shinsun Chengnan Yipin Residential and
(BBEEREEM) commercial

26 HEZR(EE)ERATF
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¥4
LA
JEdh FEfh FEfh (REg
53 Wi/ EEER TR EhEE  AREEE THEK HEHE) HLAH
Average
Attributable Total land cost
occupied  attributable  Attributable  (in terms of Date of
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost GFA) land auction
(AR%  (ARER/
(EHK) (EHK) BER) THK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
Z#
Anhui
1 ZE ZEERAREEHIR FEhkE% 34,424 67,739 380 5610 2021/4/16
Anging Anging Wanxing Shinsun Yicheng Residential and
Jianglai (REBEE £ EHITR) commercial
2 ZE ZEERAREEHAR FEhkE% 35,702 96,971 486 5012 2021/4113
Anging Anging Wanxing Shinsun Yicheng Residential and
Future (REBERAEHEAR) commercial
3 il IR AR ER € 47,843 72,401 161 2,217 202173125
Wuhu Nanling Shinsun Qunxian Mansion Residential
(ARERAERER)
4 Bl BREEESR FEkE% 79,519 234,990 905 3,853 202174126
Fuyang Fuyang Shinsun Yunjing Residential and
(RBHEES) commercial
P
Jiangxi
1 b KERERNEE FEkE% 55,647 142,059 342 2,408 2021/5/7
Jijiang Yongxiu Shinsun Junyue Mansion Residential and
(KERERNZRE) commercial
et 885,271 2,027,772 15,137 7,465
Subtotal
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FTEESEPENGBEE N E] Joint ventures and associates of the Group
¥4
THERA
FEfh FEfh P4k (REg
FH AW Wi/ ERER TR EHER  AREER THEA HEHE) HLAH
Average
Attributable Total land cost
occupied  attributable  Attributable  (in terms of Date of
No City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost GFA) land auction
(AR%  (ARER/
(EHK) (FHX) BER) EHR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
L
Zhejiang
1 RE REEHAM = 31,280 60,211 1,003 16,657 2021/3/30
Shaoxing  Shaoxing Jianhu Ming Arbor Residential
(REERAM)
2 RE EEmAZAGH L 176,878 290,814 336 1,154 2021111
Shaoxing  Zhuji Sunflower Sun City Commercial
(RERAZAGR)
3 BN MR ENE ks 17,195 70,917 521 7,342 20217414
Wenzhou  Wenzhou Shinsun New Town Residential and
Bokeyuan (&M £ 3T BRIE) commercial
4 BN JRINE-08103% ks 5,383 23,343 185 7914 20217414
Wenzhou  Wenzhou Plot E-08 Residential and
(RIME-08315R) commercial
5 RE 2E02515% = 12,708 38,027 255 6,706 2021/8/30
Jiaxing Jiaxing Plot 025 (FE025438) Residential
ITES
Shandong
1 B EEHEER ks 31,119 121,594 181 1,488 2021/5/25
Zibo Zibo Yuchang Project Residential and
(KBHEER) commercial
Z#
Anhui
1 =¥l EHEER € 32,630 81,185 210 2,592 2021/9/10
Xuancheng  EE BT Xuancheng Residential
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¥4
LA
JEdh FEfh FEfh (REg
53 Wi/ EEER TR EhEE  AREEE THEK HEHE) HLAH
Average
Attributable Total land cost
occupied  attributable  Attributable  (in terms of Date of
No. City Name of the land/project Land use area GFA land cost GFA) land auction
(AR%  (ARER/
(EHK) (EHK) BER) THK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sq.m.)
P
Jiangxi
1 M ENESELELR EE 102,459 199,920 246 1,230 2021/3/12
Fuzhou Fuzhou Jinxi Xinxue Ancient City Commercial
(ENSELELH)
et 409,651 886,011 2,936 3,314
Subtotal
#ct 1,294,922 2,913,783 18,073 6,202
Total

RZBEZ—F+_A=1+—08 KHEHE
nE - AECERBERRMEMNEEN T
MERERER  NEBEEGEHTHHEERE
720.81EBFH K HF4.058EFHK
ABAHEE S REENEBRTIME -
131088 F A RENRHAEHR - 3.66 88T
FORBRERRFAE 2 -

As at 31 December 2021, the total land bank attributable to the
Group, taking into account the total land bank of projects developed
by subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, was 20.81 million sq.m.,
among which 4.05 million sq.m. was completed properties available
for sale/lease/investment, 13.10 million sg.m. was under development
and 3.66 million sg.m. was for future development.
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December 2021:

Developed by the Group’s subsidiaries

The following table sets out a breakdown of the total land bank
developed by the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the
Group attributable to the Group by geographical location as at 31

s
EIEE:3: 0> Y 53 R AEE HEEE
BREMN EERE B R TE M FEfh it FEqE L ith
W HEHE ERIME EEMEE BEEE RIBEHRE REBRE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(F753K) (F753K) (F53K) (FEFK) (%)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
tE 1 - 132,842.94 148,525.80 281,368.74 1.5%
Shanghai
8 1 - 132,842.94 148,525.80 281,368.74 1.5%
Shanghai
T 102  1,945,410.25 6,286,624.45 1,006,293.21 9,238,327.91 48.7%
Zhejiang
A 15 192,409.09 1,812,259.76 405,321.10  2,409,989.95 12.7%
Hangzhou
=K 4 14,904.61 394,544.23 - 409,448.84 2.2%
Ningbo
g 41 623,130.78  2,175,764.61 190,522.00  2,989,417.39 15.8%
Shaoxing
BN 6 5,183.66 316,546.36 - 321,730.02 1.7%
Wenzhou
a M 10 296,757.58 683,204.24 - 979,961.82 5.2%
Taizhou
= 5 69,398.22 - - 69,398.22 0.4%
Jiaxing
SN 6 325,565.06 78,411.84 - 403,976.90 2.1%
Huzhou
FHL 4 157,530.52 167,731.25 - 325,261.77 1.7%
Zhoushan
&I 7 260,530.73 271,977.10 - 532,507.83 2.8%
Quzhou
BK 4 - 386,185.06 410,450.11 796,635.17 4.2%
Lishui
HERR(EMERAT —T-—FFR
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AHEE
AT E AR RI rEH hAEE
REMN TEERE BT FEfE Lty FEfh Lt ity
b HEHE ExTIME EEEE EEER RERE REEE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (FEFHK) (FEHXK) (FFHK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
L& 18 691,651.94 745,261.32 - 1,436,913.26 7.6%
Jiangsu
&N 2 10,644.37 - - 10,644.37 0.1%
Suzhou
#M 1 74,880.04 94,285.09 - 169,165.13 0.9%
Yangzhou
2R 3 21,401.73 177,355.00 - 198,756.73 1.0%
Nantong
EE) 2 98,288.85 - - 98,288.85 0.5%
Lianyungang
B 1 17,254.53 - - 17,254.53 0.1%
Yancheng
5iE 3 24,198.90 473,621.23 - 497,820.13 2.6%
Sugian
M 6 444,983.52 - - 444,983.52 2.3%
Taizhou
R 8 138,091.10  1,188,030.67 566,800.65 1,892,922.42 10.0%
Shandong
T 6 138,091.10 487,369.17 402,312.36  1,027,772.63 5.4%
Ji'nan
BE 1 - 567,873.50 164,488.29 732,361.79 3.9%
Ji'ning
I 1 - 132,788.00 - 132,788.00 0.7%
Liaocheng
ZR 36 572,922.40 1,905,774.46 319,680.35  2,798,377.21 14.8%
Anhui
Ahe 2 - 374,442.49 - 374,442.49 2.0%
Hefei
O 6 133,732.06 338,526.49 - 472,258.55 2.5%
Wuhu
=7 10 194,309.21 203,586.70 196,671.15 594,567.06 3.1%
Xuancheng
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s
At A R RIR rEH hAEE
BREMN TEERE BB TE b L ith FE{E £ i
b HE#HE ExTIME EEEE BEEE RBHEE REEE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (FEFHK) (F53K) (FFHK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
SR 11 196,303.37 322,148.61 - 518,451.98 2.7%
Chuzhou
HEz 2 48,577.76 109,997.37 - 158,575.13 0.8%
Ma'anshan
T 2 - 164,709.33 - 164,709.33 0.9%
Anging
a M 2 - 280,382.28 - 280,382.28 1.5%
Suzhou
B85 1 - 111,981.19 123,009.20 234,990.39 1.2%
Fuyang
AR 7 118,975.85 460,667.10 142,059.13 721,702.08 3.8%
Jiangxi
ma 1 - 130,353.99 - 130,353.99 0.7%
Nanchang
T 2 56,476.69 - 142,059.13 198,535.82 1.0%
Jiujiang
N 4 62,499.16 330,313.11 - 392,812.27 2.1%
Fuzhou
At 13 128,558.19 249,333.30 404,527.96 782,419.45 4.1%
Hubei
EWE] 4 12,736.61 - 67,293.00 80,029.61 0.4%
Wuhan
Il 5 86,350.16 112,721.32 155,033.57 354,105.05 1.9%
Xiantao
FiFY 1 7,277.48 136,611.98 182,201.39 326,090.85 1.7%
Jingmen
FIN 3 22,193.94 - - 22,193.94 0.1%
Jingzhou
RERR(EBAERAT —T-FFH
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s
At A R RI rEH hAEE
REMN TEERE BB TE b L ith FE{E £ i
b HE#HE ExTIME EEEE BEEE RBHEE REEE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (FEFHK) (FEHXK) (FFHK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
T 3 89,525.25 363,187.50 146,894.39 599,607.14 3.2%
Hunan
&k% 1 - 233,449.50 - 233,449.50 1.2%
Hengyang
&% 1 42,600.53 69,501.50 18,312.80 130,414.83 0.7%
Yueyang
BE 1 46,924.72 60,236.50 128,581.59 235,742.81 1.2%
Changde
AN 6 39,318.70 875,204.47 - 914,523.17 4.8%
Inner Mongolia
S IpE =3 6 39,318.70 875,204.47 - 914,523.17 4.8%
Hohhot
wE 1 68,582.00 - 192,521.34 261,103.34 1.4%
Fujian
¥ 1 68,582.00 - 192,521.34 261,103.34 1.4%
Nanping
E= 3 44,417.65 - - 44,417.65 0.2%
Liaoning
g1l 3 44,417.65 - - 44,417.65 0.2%
Anshan
It 198  3,837,453.33 12,206,926.21  2,927,302.83 18,971,682.37 100.0%
Subtotal
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Developed by the Group’s joint ventures and associates

e
AR E rEH hAEE
REMN EERE ol S ERE R+t FE{E i
W HEHE EXIWE EEEE EEmEE ERE REEE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FEFHK) (FFHK) (FHXK) (FFHK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
WL 23 93,404 734,456 396,804 1,224,663 5.9%
Zhejiang
A 3 63,742 254,660 - 318,402 1.5%
Hangzhou
s 1 17,309 - - 17,309 0.1%
Ningbo
R 8 9,983 105,106 358,777 473,867 2.3%
Shaoxing
BN 1 - 40,914 - 40,914 0.2%
Wenzhou
=i 5 - 171,633 38,027 209,660 1.0%
Jiaxing
N 2 2,370 - - 2,370 0.0%
Huzhou
&I 1 - 46,666 - 46,666 0.2%
Quzhou
B 2 - 115,476 - 115,476 0.6%
Jinhua
SLER 4 20,591 52,748 - 73,338 0.4%
Jiangsu
Eh 1 14,133 19,158 - 33,291 0.2%
Nanjing
$ET 1 - 33,590 - 33,590 0.2%
Zhenjiang
Z=M 2 6,458 - - 6,458 0.0%
Taizhou
R 1 - 24,103 97,491 121,594 0.6%
Shandong
1E 1 - 24,103 97,491 121,594 0.6%
Zibo
HEER(EE)BRAR —T-—FF%
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s
At R RIR rEH hAEE
REMN TEERE BB TE b L ith FE{E £ i
b HE#HE EREIYE EEEE BEEE RBHEE REEE
Completed
properties Percentage
available for Estimated Total of total
sale/lease Planned GFA land bank land bank
Number of and for GFA under for future attributable attributable
Cities projects investment development development to the Group to the Group
(FFHK) (FEFHK) (FEHXK) (FFHK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
ZH# 4 41,887 81,185 39,382 81,269 0.4%
Anhui
=07 1 - 81,185 - 81,185 0.4%
Xuancheng
SR 2 23,732 - - 23,732 0.1%
Chuzhou
T 1 18,154 - 39,382 57,537 0.3%
Anging
AR 2 54,098 - 200,000 254,098 1.2%
Jiangxi
% 1 54,098 - - 54,098 0.3%
Shangrao
N 1 - - 200,000 200,000 1.0%
Fuzhou
Nt 34 209,980 892,491 733,677 1,836,148 8.8%
Subtotal
st 232 4,047,433 13,099,417 3,660,980 20,807,830 100.0%
Total
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A E hAEE
EIRE s k=LY R rEE FE{E + i
[EE TERE ok § R FEAh L it REHE
HEHE EEmE EEER EEEE REHEE AT
Percentage
Completed Estimated Total land of total
GFA Planned GFA bank land bank
Number of available GFA under for future attributable attributable
projects for sale/lease development development to the Group to the Group
(FFH3K) (FF3K) (FF3K) (FFHXK) (%)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
RiEE D
By regions
peripan 125 2,038,814 7,021,080 1,403,097 10,462,991 50.3%
Zhejiang
wR=A 81 1,638,217 4,590,612 1,513,939 7,742,768 37.2%
Pan-Yangtze
River Delta
Hb @iy 26 370,402 1,487,725 743,944 2,602,071 12.5%
Other regions
st 232 4,047,433 13,099,417 3,660,980 20,807,830 100%
Total
HFELHENERTYE Completed properties held for sale

FIFELENCRIMERERNSRESHMRIDK
RO R TEEmE - WRKARATEE
FEMBEEIIR - FFHENDRIYE
FIRR AR R & R E A ROARBIRCA o

R-EBE-—F+-_F=+—H A&EEEAE
134EEB R TYWEIEE - HRRBERENE
BIMENAARKE6,441.7THET 8=
E_EF+ A=+ —HARK4,272.78H
BIULEREM - AEED R THEEERER
A05ABEF K B-_E-ZTE+ A=+
—HAM3.028&FHARBAHTIEM -

RAERR(EE)ERAT —T-F45H

Completed properties held for sale represents completed GFA
remaining unrecognised at the end of each reporting period and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of the
completed properties held for sale refers to the related costs incurred
attributable to the unsold properties.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 134 completed property
projects with completed properties held for sale amounted to
approximately RMB6,441.7 million, representing an increase from
RMB4,272.7 million as at 31 December 2020. The Group's total
completed GFA amounted to 4.05 million sg.m., representing an
increase from 3.02 million sgq.m as at 31 December 2020.



4dj%tf-- nE nE

REFIEE

BRTPVERNERTEFELE - ZERTY
EERA (BELHKA - BEKAS - EX
EMERRABRPRELNERBBNZE
MENEMRA) A ERFEOBREED
fR - MRTR  ZEVMEREBBEERFELE
MBERTIYE o

R-E-—F+-"A=+—H AEEHF9
MERTYEEE  EHFEEFDEAAR
#96,433.7H8 L  R_ZT_TF+_A=
+—HBAR105,8409E&ETBEFAD
AEBERPAEZEMELRIZI0BEFS
K BB -TEE+_A=+—HHN16.22
BBFEFABRAD

Bt %5 1o R

W2t

REBFEE  AEBENREKE LIRERS
B B)VERABEREE  (DEEXAR
B (iMERE : (VBERE  RWDE
EERY c AEBEMRETEZRERHE
PREE - TR AKRERAIRERELRE
AR HER MU 7B

EEEFIWR DN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Projects under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost, which comprises land costs, construction costs, capitalised
interests and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period, and net realisable value.
Upon completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 89 property projects under
development with properties under development amounted to
RMB96,433.7 million, representing a decrease from RMB105,840.9
million as at 31 December 2020. The Group's total GFA under
development amounted to 13.10 million sq.m., representing a
decrease from 16.22 million sgq.m as at 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Relevant Year, the Group derived its revenue from
five business lines, namely (i) property development and sales; (ii)
management consulting services; (iii) property leasing; (iv) hotel
services; and (v) property management services. The revenue of the
Group was primarily derived from the sales of properties in the PRC.
The following table sets forth the details of the Group's revenue
recognised by business line for the years indicated:

BE+TZA=T—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December

—EZ—fF T TF EFalad
Change in
2021 2020 Percentage

(AR¥F ) (AE®EF7T)

(RMB’'000) (RMB'000)

W == Revenue

VHERERIEE Property development and sales 43,560,590 46,487,347 (6.3)%
B RRT Management consulting services 64,648 83,383 (22.5)%
YEHEE Property leasing 76,467 39,191 95.1%
Y E IR Property management services 17,323 12,084 43.4%
B JE S8 Hotel operation 0 16,408 100%
“at Total 43,719,028 46,638,413 (6.3)%
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VEFEBEREERE

TREINNPIRFERE R EEABELETE
15

Revenue from property development and sales
The following sets forth the details of revenue and GFA recognised for
the years indicated:

BET-A=1t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

“E--F e 223
2021 2020

o 28378 2R E®R
& BEER THEE s BEEE THERE
Recognised  Recognised Recognised Recognised
Revenue GFA ASP Revenue GFA ASP
(AR¥R/ (ARET/
(AR¥F7) (£5XK) Ak (AREFT) (FHK) FHK)
(RMB’000) (sgq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB'000) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
T Zhejiang 30,155,104 1,938,251 15,558 28,517,643 1,789,071 15,940
wR=A Pan-Yangtze River Delta 10,815,850 1,472,739 7,344 16,990,106 2,207,621 7,696
HipEi Other regions 2,589,635 365,763 7,080 979,598 190,430 5,144
@t Total 43,560,590 3,776,753 11,534 46,487,347 4,187,123 11,102

RZZZ—F  AEEMNMERBEREER
HHBARKEAL3, 5606 BH T BLHE D
6.3%  FEARRXNABR_-_Z-_ZFREE
T79.8%  RNFHEBR_Z_ZFLHT
3.9% °

EEEARBE WS

R-FZ—F  ARENEEH DRSS
HRAR¥646EBET - RLLMA22.5% -
TERNEMRHEEFZAREHOARRIA
BEERDPTE -

E N6

AEBR_FT_—FHYPEEE Hﬁl/\%’]ﬁ';’}\
R¥765887T © RLEMNAI5.1% -
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HEWA -
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The Group’s revenue from property development and sales in 2021
amounted to approximately RMB43,560.6 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 6.3%, mainly due to a 9.8% decrease in GFA
delivered as compared to 2020 and an increase of 3.9% in average
selling price as compared to 2020.

Revenue from management consulting services

The Group’s revenue from management consulting services in 2021
amounted to approximately RMB64.6 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 22.5%, primarily due to the decrease in the
content and number of projects for which we provided management
consulting services.

Revenue from property leasing

The Group's revenue from property leasing in 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB76.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 95.1%, mainly due to (i) leasing of new project
assets; and (ii) the decrease in vacancy rate of related assets as
compared to the previous period, and thus leading to the increase in
rental income.

Revenue from hotel services

The Group had no revenue from hotel services in 2021, primarily due
to the disposal of the hotel business as part of the reorganisation.
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Revenue from property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services in 2021
amounted to approximately RMB17.3 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 43.4%, primarily due to the increase in
business management income from commercial plazas.

Cost of sales

The Group incurred the vast majority of its cost of sales in its property
development and sales business. The Group’s cost of sales increased
by approximately 2.5% from approximately RMB38,203.6 million in
2020 to approximately RMB39,147.4 million for 2021. Such increase
was due to the impact of the different regions in which the property
projects are located, as well as fluctuations in costs due to the
different business types of the properties sold.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately RMB4,571.6 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 45.8%.

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
10.5%, representing a decrease of 7.6% as compared to 18.1% for
the same period of last year, mainly due to changes in gross profit
margin as a result of the different layout of properties in different
regions and the difference in selling price and gross profit margin
levels resulted from the different structure of properties sold, and
furthermore, as affected by the systemic risk of the real estate sector
in 2021, the Group sold those projects in slow destocking located in
third-tier and fourth-tier cities at a discount in order to improve its
liquidity, resulting in a decrease in the overall gross profit margin in
2021.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of interest income from bank
deposits. The Group's finance income increased by approximately
304.8% from approximately RMB75.8 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB306.8 million in 2021, mainly due to the increase
in interest income from associates and joint ventures, interest income
from wealth management products and income from bank demand
deposit accounts recognized in 2021.
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Other income and gains

The Group's other income and other gains primarily include (i) gain
on disposal of joint ventures; (i) subsidy income; and (iii) deposit
forfeiture.

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 19.3% from
approximately RMB108.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB129.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly due to (i) subsidies or returns from
some local governments in order to support those companies which
were impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic; and (ii) gain arising from
the conversion of a joint venture into a subsidiary.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 2.1% from approximately RMB1,240.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1,266.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to (i)
the increase in marketing facilities expenses as we increased our
investment in marketing facilities to upgrade the interior decoration
of such facilities; and (ii) the increase in advertising expenses.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately
11.7% from approximately RMB1,132.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB999.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the non-incurring of listing
expenses in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Other expenses

The Group's other expenses primarily consist of (i) donations to
non-profit organizations and local communities for purposes of
poverty elimination, tuition sponsorship, infrastructure construction,
disaster relief and elderly care approximately RMB19.7 million; (ii)
penalties related to construction violations, taxation penalties and
losses incurred in the disposal of subsidiaries approximately RMB252.9
million; and (iii) others approximately RMB34.1 million. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s other expenses increased
by approximately 203.0% from RMB101.2 million to approximately
RMB306.7 million as compared with the corresponding period in
the previous year, primarily due to the increase in construction and
taxation penalties and the increase in loss on disposal of investments
in subsidiaries.
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Fair value gains on investment properties

The Group’s fair value gains on investment properties increased by
approximately 283.4% from approximately RMB4.6 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB17.7 million in 2021, which was mainly due to the
increase in appraisal value as compared to the previous period as the
vacancy rate decreased due to the increase in the business hours of
Xiangsheng Tiantai Commercial Plaza.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly consist of (i) interest on loans and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities, senior notes, corporate bonds
and lease liabilities; and (ii) interest expense arising from revenue
contracts which represents interest expenses recognised for the
significant financing components included in contract liabilities
during the period from the receipt of sales proceeds to the delivery of
underlying properties, less capitalised interests.

The Group's finance costs increased from approximately RMB1,113.4
million in 2020 to approximately RMB1,257.3 million in 2021, mainly
due to (i) a decrease in the size of interest-bearing liabilities, resulting
in a decrease in total interest expense of RMB419.1 million, or 9%,
in 2021 as compared to 2020; (ii) a decrease in the capitalization rate
in 2021 as compared to 2020, mainly due to the interest expense on
bonds.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

The Group recorded share of profit of RMB2.0 million in 2020 and
share of profit of RMB349.2 million in 2021. In 2020, most joint
ventures projects that the Group co-developed were not delivered and
therefore did not generate significant revenue. The Group recorded
share of profit of joint ventures in 2021 in relation to the profit from
joint venture projects operated by joint ventures in Nanjing, Huzhou
and other cities.

Share of profits and losses of associates

The Group recorded shares of loss of RMB19.8 million in 2020
and share of profit of RMB95.6 million in 2021, mainly due to the
recognition of revenue from the delivery of the Nantong project.

Profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's profit before tax was
approximately RMB1,639.9 million in 2021, compared to its profit
before tax of approximately RMB5,018.9 million in 2020.
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Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense decreased from approximately
RMB1,965.5 million in 2020 to approximately RMB1,159.2 million in
2021, primarily due to a decrease in the LAT as a result of a decrease
in gross profit.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group operates in a capital-intensive industry and property
development requires substantial capital investments for land
acquisition and property construction. As at the date of this report,
the Group has funded its operations, working capital, capital
expenditure and other capital requirements primarily from cash
generated from its operations, mainly including proceeds from the
pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt of property lease income
from its investment properties, management consulting service fees,
and property management service fees, as well as bank and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities and senior notes. The financing
methods of the Group vary from project to project, and are subject to
limitations imposed by PRC regulations and monetary policies.

Cash position

The Group’s cash and bank balances, comprising cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits,
amounted to approximately RMB8,448.1 million in total as at 31
December 2021, of which RMB7,825.3 million, RMB598.9 million,
RMB23.9 million were denominated in RMB, HKD and USD,
respectively (31 December 2020: approximately RMB24,304.7 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 65.2%.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total borrowings, comprising
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds and
senior notes, amounted to approximately RMB34,386.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB46,176.6 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 25.5% as compared with 31 December 2020.
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TREHNANEEERRAT A BRI EHIE The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group's

P borrowings as at the dates indicated:
R+=HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F “E-FTF
2021 2020
(AR¥T ) (AR¥EFTT)
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
R—FAREE Repayable within one year 17,247,884 22,195,042
RE_FEE Repayable in the second year 8,634,377 10,827,031
RZERFAEE Repayable within two to five years 8,504,175 12,359,215
RAEFUAEEER Repayable over five years - 795,000
et Total 34,386,436 46,176,558
MEEEFE Net current assets

R-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8  XEBEHR As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s net current assets amounted
HEEFENAARKE27,063.688L (= to approximately RMB27,063.6 million (31 December 2020:
T-EFF+-A=+—H: AR¥34,120.8 RMB34,120.8 million). Specifically, the Group's total current assets
BEL) - LER  AEBMNRBEELE decreased by approximately 9.8% from approximately RMB153,557.4
H-_Z_TF+_A=+—HBHHNOARE million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB138,469.9
153,557.4B 8L KI9.8% ERN T - — million as at 31 December 2021. The Group's total current liabilities
F+ZA=+T—AMNNOARYK138,469.98 decreased by approximately 6.7% from approximately RMB119,436.6
B ARBERNRDBELRER_TTF million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB111,406.2
F+TZA=+T—HHHARKE119,43668 5 million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease in the Group's net
TTRDH6T7T%E—_FE-_—F+_-_A=+—H current assets was mainly due to (i) the decrease in cash and cash
HEAREE111,4062 58T - AEBHR equivalents of RMB15,856.7 million, which was mainly due to the
PEEFERLDHIETZEARNESRESS repayment of borrowings, payment for land, construction work and
BRI ARK15,856.7EETL  TEARN counterparties, etc., (ii) the decrease in bank borrowings, senior notes
BEMEH IR IRANEIERE and corporate bonds of RMB4,947.2 million.

RRE - (RITER - BERBRABES

WO AREE4,947 2B & T -

BEERA Pledge of assets

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H  TEENE As at 31 December 2021, the Group's borrowings were secured by
RIBHAEBNEENARKE3S,012.2HE8 the Group's assets of approximately RMB38,012.2 million which
T(BREEREWME  BERTYE  DE#F include investment properties, properties under development, pledged
P ZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H : HYARE deposits (31 December 2020: approximately RMB71,391.8 million),
71,391.88 &) &R - TZHRAEEE primarily due to the decrease in the amount of the Group's loans.
AR PIE o
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Financial risks

The main risks arising from the Group's activities are: interest rate risk,
credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group
introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To keep
the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to its interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
interest rate risks. The Group manages its interest costs using variable
rate bank borrowings and other borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and
bills receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit
terms are made only to counterparties with an appropriate credit
history and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the
Group’s counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers
is generally six months and the credit quality of these customers is
assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any significant losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.
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The Group also makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts
due from related parties as well as individual assessments on the
recoverability of other receivables and amounts due from related
parties based on historical settlement records and past experience.
The Group has classified financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables and amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and
continuously monitored their credit risk.

The Group expects that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding balance of financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties.

Foreign currency risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. Therefore,
the Group’s businesses are principally conducted in RMB, which is
the functional currency of the group companies. Foreign currency
transaction included mainly receipts of proceeds from the initial
public offering of the Company’s shares, proceeds from senior notes
and payment of professional fees which are dominated in HK$ or
USS$. As at 31 December 2021, major non-RMB assets are 7,285.3
million denominated in HK$ in the amount of RMB5,956.5 million.
Major non-RMB assets are 1,356.2 million denominate in US$ in the
amount of RMB8,646.5 million. Major non-RMB liabilities are 1,348.5
million denominated in US$ in the amount of RMB8,597.6 million.
Fluctuation of the exchange rates of RMB against foreign currency
could affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group currently
does not engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage
foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange changes to best preserve the Group's cash value.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash through internally
generated sales proceeds and an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its operation needs and commitments in
respect of property projects. The Group's objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group reviews
its liquidity position on an ongoing basis, including review of the
expected cash inflows and outflows, pre-sales/sales results, maturity
of its borrowings and the progress of the property projects in order to
monitor its liquidity requirements in the short and long terms.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no plan for any material
investments or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has no significant
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mortgage guarantees

In line with market practice in the PRC, the Group has arrangements
with various banks for the provision of mortgage financing and
where required, provide its customers with guarantees as security for
mortgage loans. The terms of such guarantees typically last until the
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate upon the completion
of guarantee registration or satisfaction of mortgage loan by the
purchaser. As a guarantor, if the purchaser defaults in payment, the
Group is obligated to repay all outstanding amounts owed by the
purchaser to the mortgagee bank under the loan and have the right
to claim such amount from the defaulting purchaser.

The total outstanding mortgage guarantee amounts provided by the
Group to banks amounted to RMB22,250.9 million as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB27,241.5 million).

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year ended 31
December 2021 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of its completed properties held for
sale.

Financial guarantees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group guaranteed certain of the bank
and other borrowings made to its related companies up to RMB913.7
million (as at 31 December 2020, the Group guaranteed certain of the
bank and other borrowings made to its related companies and a third
party up to RMB943.6 million).
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Legal contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its
ordinary course of business from time to time. The Group believes
that no liabilities resulting from these proceedings will have a material
and adverse effect on its business, financial condition or operating
results.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment of
RMB28,227.0 million in relation to the signing of a construction
contract or land contract that is being or will be performed (31
December 2020: RMB29,718.7 million).

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 1.2 times (31 December 2020: approximately 1.3
times). The Group’s current ratio was relatively stable and the increase
was mainly due to the decrease in current assets.

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by
the total current liabilities as at the respective dates and multiplied by
100%.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 88.4% (2020: approximately 90.0%), mainly due to
the increase in net assets as a result of revenue recognition. This ratio
is calculated as total debts divided by total assets as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Net gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio increased
to 1.5 as compared with the net gearing ratio of 1.4 as at 31
December 2020 (which was calculated based on total bank and other
borrowings, asset-backed securities, corporate bonds and senior
notes less cash and bank balances divided by total equity as of the
respective dates), which was primarily due to the increase in net assets
as a result of revenue recognition.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above, the Group has
not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments
to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties and
related parties. The Group does not have any variable interest in any
uncombined entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or
credit support to the Group.

NET PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 18 November 2020 (the “Listing”). The net proceeds from the
Listing (including the full exercise of the over-allotment option), after
deducting the underwriting commission and other estimated expenses
in connection with the Listing which the Company received amounted
to approximately HK$3,514.0 million. The Group fully utilised the net
proceeds raised from the Listing according to the plans set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
(the “Prospectus”) of the Company dated 30 October 2020.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the utilization and

proposed utilization of net proceeds as at 31 December 2021:

R-ZB=-F

EARERML +=BA=+-HH
PERBHERE EBRRBNERR
Allocation of Utilised net

net proceeds

proceeds as at

FREREFEN Intended use as described in 31 December
RERZ of net proceeds the Prospectus 2021
BEERL BEER
HKS$ in million HKS in million
RASENZEEEN To finance the development of
BRENES the Group's property projects 2,108.4 2,108.4
EBEAEERER To repay a portion of existing
REEBRZEREN trust loans of the Group
BAETER which are used for its project
development purposes 1,054.2 1,054.2
—REBEEREEES For general business operations
and working capital 351.4 3514
@t Total 3,514.0 3,514.0

REZZE-—F+-A=+—8 FIBMAER
BHOETHPA -
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EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 2,966 full-
time employees (31 December 2020: 3,488). For the year ended 31
December 2021, the staff cost recognised as expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB840 million (31 December 2020: RMB900 million).

The remuneration policy of the Group is to provide remuneration
packages, including salary, bonus and other cash subsidies. The
Company has also conditionally adopted a share option scheme on
20 October 2020 to recognise and reward the eligible employees for
their contributions to the business and development of the Group.
In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. The Group has
designed an annual review system to assess the performance of our
employees, which forms the basis of our determination on salary
raises, bonuses and promotions. As required by PRC regulations, the
Group makes contributions to mandatory housing funds and social
insurance funds.

The Group has also incorporated mentorship, assessment, feedback
and evaluation processes into its various training programs, which the
Group believes will facilitate its employees to better learn and grow.
The Group believes that its training programs, combined with on-the-
job learning, facilitate advancement of its employees.

The Group has a labor union which represents the interests of its
employees and works closely with its management on labor-related
issues. As at 31 December 2021, no labor dispute had occurred which
materially and adversely affected or was likely to have a material and
adverse effect on the Group’s operations.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (BREIF) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 71, founded the
Group in 1995. Mr. Chen was appointed as Director on 13 December
2019 and was re-designated as executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board on 21 May 2020. Mr. Chen is primarily
responsible for formulating the overall business direction and strategic
development of the Group. Mr. Chen has been the chairman of
Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. (a company established in the PRC
with limited liability on 4 January 1995 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Industrial”) (a company established in the PRC
with limited liability on 7 July 1995 and owned as to 99% by Mr.
Chen Guoxiang and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr. Chen
Guoxiang) since January 1995 and July 1995, respectively. Mr. Chen
also serves as a director of our various subsidiaries. From November
2014 to December 2018, Mr. Chen successively served as a director
and the vice chairman of the 7th board of directors and a director of
the 8th board of directors of Great Wall International ACG Co., Ltd.
(R E 2RI AR A A]) (formerly known as Sichuan Great
Wall International ACG Co., Ltd. (PO)I &35 BB &) )2 B AR (7 B TR A 7))
and Sichuan Shengda Industrial Co., Ltd. (FOJI|EEEEEBRMHBREA
Al)), a company engages in the animation industry, whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000835.5Z). Mr.
Chen is the father of Mr. Chen Hongni, the executive Director, chief
executive officer and president of the Company.
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Mr. Chen has over 29 years of experience in the PRC real estate
industry. Prior to founding the Group in January 1995, Mr. Chen
established Zhejiang Zhuji Xiangsheng Enterprise Development Co.,
Ltd. I TARBMEEE ML ANF]), a company engaged in real
estate property development in Zhejiang Province of the PRC, in June
1993 and acted as its chairman and general manager.

Mr. Chen obtained the qualification of senior economist from Zhejiang
Zhuji Personnel Bureau (#) T & # & A= /3) of the PRC in December
2003. Mr. Chen has successively served as a council member and an
executive council member of the 7th and 8th Council of the China
Real Estate Industry Association (FBIEHEZE ) from May 2014 to
December 2018 and from May 2019 till now, respectively. He was also
appointed as the vice chairman of the New Urbanization Committee
of the General Association of Zhejiang Entrepreneurs (I 48 € i
SEE¥ZEE) in April 2019 and the honorary chairman of Zhoushan
Charity General Association (LT ZZ42) in June 2019.

Mr. Chen has received multiple awards in recognition of his experience
in the real estate industry. He was named as one of the “Top 10
Leading Persons in Residential Property Industry in Zhejiang Province”
MIBETEXTREEAY) in 2004, 2008, 2010, 2011 and 2014
and was awarded the “Outstanding Economic Contribution in Zhuji
City of Zhejiang Province” award in 2006, 2007, 2019 and 2020. In
2008, Mr. Chen was recognised as one of the “Top 100 Outstanding
China Real Estate Entrepreneurs in 2008" (2008/FEl A ZEFE M
EM®ZZK) by All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (&
BEMEREH ). He was awarded the “2012 Shaoxing Charity
Star” (#REITHZEE 2 £) by Shaoxing City Charity Federation (43
M#EZE4EE) in 2012 and “5th Charity Award of Zhejiang Province”
CIMIASEREMNT2ZE1) by the People’'s Government of Zhejiang
Province (3T/I& AERET) in 2016. Mr. Chen was also awarded the
“Economic Development Merit Award” (4% 2 E 1 8)#2) by Shaoxing
Development Conference (4AB125fE K€) and the “Golden Narcissus
Award” (£ 7K1L2E) by 2019 World Zhoushanese Congress (201915
F 1A KE) in 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Mr. Chen was a director of Zhuji Fuerda Clothing Embroidery Co.,
Ltd. (EEMEBEREREFR A A) (“Fuerda Clothing”), a company
established in the PRC. On August 16, 2005, the business license of
Fuerda Clothing was revoked. Mr. Chen confirmed that, to the best
of his knowledge and belief, Zhuji Fuerda was solvent as at the time
when its business license was revoked and as of the Latest Practicable
Date, no claims had been made against him and he was not aware of
any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against
him as a result of the revocation of license of Fuerda Clothing.
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Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Chen will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB1.35 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Chen Hongni (FR5A{%), aged 39, was appointed as the executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company on 21 May 2020.
He has been the president of the Group since January 2019 and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall business management
and operations of the property projects of the Group. He is also a
director of various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Chen Hongni
is the son of Mr. Chen, our founder, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, an executive Director and the chairman of our Board.

He has over 9 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
joined the Group in November 2012 as the general manager of the
hotel management company of Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (“Xiangsheng Industrial Group”), where he was
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the hotels. From
November 2014 to December 2017, Mr. Chen served as the chairman
of the branch company in Zhuji City, where he was responsible for
overseeing the operations and management of the Group's project
companies in Zhuji area. From December 2017 to January 2019, he
served as the executive president of Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shinsun Property”) (a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on January 4, 1995 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), where he assisted the president in the overall business
management of Shinsun Property.

Since July 2016, Mr. Chen Hongni has served as the vice chairman of
the Zhuji Young Entrepreneurs Association (EEBHMHAERDERH D)
of the Zhuji city in the PRC. Mr. Chen Hongni obtained a bachelor’s
degree in general studies (business management) from Fort Hays State
University in the United States in May 2010.
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Mr. Chen Hongni has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 20 October
2020, and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant
to the service contract, Mr. Chen Hongni will be entitled to receive
an annual remuneration (including salary, allowances and benefits
in kind) of approximately RMB4.7 million for his role as executive
Director, which is determined by the Board upon recommendation
from the remuneration committee with reference to his qualification,
level of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and
the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Zhao Leiyi (#8%&%) (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 60, was appointed as
the executive Director on 21 May 2020. Mr. Zhao has over 14 years of
experience in the real estate industry. He joined the Group in August
2007 as its vice president and he is responsible for overseeing the
management of key property projects of the Group.

Mr. Zhao graduated from Zhejiang Open University CIiITEESE
R ARE) (majoring in finance) in the PRC in August 1986. He has
completed a degree course in legal studies provided by China
Agricultural University (FEIR%KZ) in the PRC in January 2005
through distance learning and the Senior Marketing Professional
Managers Training Course (= A8 3 4C 32 514k IE) provided by Tsinghua
University (B2 KX2) in the PRC in April 2006.

Mr. Zhao has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Zhao will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB2.5 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Han Bo (%) (“Mr. Han"), aged 48, was appointed as the
executive Director on 12 March 2021. He joined the Group as vice
president. He was the president in Suwan region where he was
responsible for overseeing the daily operation in Suwan region
from July 2018 to February 2020. Since January 2020, he has been
responsible for overseeing the construction and contract center of the
Group.

He has over 24 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.
From November 1998 to December 2014, he served as an executive
general manager of Greentown China Holdings Limited (%E3k A Bl4%
BB AT, a real estate development company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03900),
where he was mainly responsible for overseeing daily operation of
the group’s products and projects. From January 2015 to July 2018,
he served as the regional vice president of Sunac China Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 01918) (Tianmao Properties (Nanjing) Limited), where he
was mainly responsible for overseeing the group’s regional business
operations.

Mr. Han is a qualified civil engineer as certified by Economic and
Trade Commission of Zhejiang Province (MTEKEZ HEEE) since
December 2002. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Zhejiang University (4T K2 in the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Han has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 12 March 2021, and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Han will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMB2.5 million for his role as executive Director, which is determined
by the Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee
with reference to his qualification, level of duties and responsibilities
undertaken in the Company and the prevailing market conditions.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ding Jiangang (T #Hl) (“Mr. Ding”), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020. Mr
Ding has approximately 32 years of experience in the media industry.
From November 1985 to April 1989, Mr. Ding was the teacher and
leader of the teaching and research group of building structure
of Zhejiang Construction Industrial College (HT/I#& BHETEELR),
where he was responsible for teaching building structure courses and
management of the teaching and research group. From April 1989 to
September 2008, he was the journalist and producer of Zhejiang Radio
& TV Group (HIEFEEHEE), a group engaged in publication and
sales of newspaper, magazines and videos, where he was responsible
for production of property programs. From September 2008 to
February 2013, he was the assistant supervisor of the economic
department of, and the vice chief editor of the website “Live in
Hangzhou” of, Zhejiang Online News Website Co., Ltd. (HIiT 7 4% 57
#uf AR /A7]), a company engaged in online news publication, where
he was responsible for researching financial properties and providing
commentaries. From March 2013 to May 2014, Mr. Ding was the head
of Hangzhou Joint Founder Information Technology Co., Ltd. (fu/!
FEEBREEAR AR, which is engaged in the provision of market
analysis of real estate industry, and was responsible for research on
real estate policy and real estate market. Since January 2019, Mr.
Ding has been an independent non-executive director of Dexin China
Holdings Company Limited ({25 E{ZBR 2 &), a PRC property
developer whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2019). Since 21 February 2019, Mr. Ding has
been an independent non-executive director of Binjiang Service Group
Co. Ltd., a property management service provider whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3316)
Since May 2014, Mr. Ding has been the dean of Zhejiang Daily Media
Real Estate Institute (Hf#R{EHEHEFELT), which is engaged in the
provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and is responsible
for research on real estate policy and real estate market. He has also
been serving at Zhejiang Real Estate Institute (IIEMEZERE) as a
council member and is responsible for research in relation to policies
and market trends in the real estate industry since October 2017. Mr.
Ding obtained a bachelor's degree in civil engineering (L E1R A
ELHE) from Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology (78% &
SR AE) (formerly known as Xi'an Metallurgy Architecture College
(A% &2 EEPR)), in the PRC, in July 1983.
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Mr. Ding has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Ding will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMBO.2 million for his role as independent non-executive Director,
which is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee with reference to his qualification, level
of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Ma Hongman (FBAL)2) (“Mr. Ma"), aged 46, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 20 October 2020. Mr.
Ma has more than 18 years of experience in the media industry. From
April 2002 to April 2017, he served as a producer and host of various
financial television programs for Shanghai First Financial Media Co.,
Ltd. (BB —F&EEERAR]). From September 2014 to August
2016, he served as an external postgraduate adviser of master of
finance (& REMBTHESMFFRAERINEEEAD) in Tonji University
(B AKE) in the PRC. From April 2017 to April 2020, he served as
the director and a senior researcher of the Institute of Enterprises
Competitiveness (B ¥ F IIAFEFT) under the Institute of Chinese
Enterprises Development of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (\E/8%
BABPRREMEERMIT). Since April 2017, Mr. Ma has been a
director and president of Shanghai Youera Media Co., Ltd. (/&%)
EEEABR AR, a media company, where he oversees the business
operation, and a member of the experts committee of Shanghai Brand
Development Center (/&M R#EFLY). Since December 2018,
he has been a guest lecturer of SILC Business School of Shanghai
University (_ E/8KEEE T ER) for a period of three years.

Mr. Ma obtained the qualification of an international actuary (E
ST MASE D) from the USA Federal International Qualification
Authentication Corp. (EREFBFERRBER L) in September
2017. He was named as one of “2011-2012 Top Ten Young Economic
Figures in Shanghai” (2011%F-2012F b8+ KT FLEAY) by
Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association (&M EHFLERWG
&) in March 2013, and “Shanghai Top Ten Outstanding Youth” (£
AL EF) by the 18th Shanghai Top Ten Outstanding Youth
Selection Activity Group (F+/\[E L&+ RELFFTESEHE)
formed by representatives of various organizations including Shanghai
Youth Federation, Xinhua News Agency (Shanghai branch), Shanghai
Television Station and Liberation Daily Newspaper Group in December
2015. He was also awarded the “Shanghai Youth May Fourth Medal”
(LEMSFERIEEE) by the Central Committee of the Communist
Youth League (& ®E EEMZE ) and Shanghai Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (M ANERMEERERS) in May
2014.
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Mr. Ma obtained a master’'s degree in industrial economics from
Shanghai University (E/&KZ) in the PRC in April 2002 and a
doctorate degree in economics from Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences (/84 &RIEP7) in the PRC in July 2007.

Mr. Ma has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 20 October 2020, and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the service
contract, Mr. Ma will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration
(including salary, allowances and benefits in kind) of approximately
RMBO.2 million for his role as independent non-executive Director,
which is determined by the Board upon recommendation from the
remuneration committee with reference to his qualification, level
of duties and responsibilities undertaken in the Company and the
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu, Jason (GEE#) (“Mr. Hung"”), aged 41,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
March 2022. Mr. Hung has more than 15 years of experiences in
accounting and audit, corporate finance, investor relations, company
secretarial and governance. Mr. Hung currently holds directorship in
ST International Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 8521) as an
non-executive director.

From August 2004 to October 2006, Mr. Hung worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong branch, an accountancy firm, and his
last position was senior accountant, responsible for external audit
works. From October 2006 to May 2014, he worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, Shenzhen branch,
an accountancy firm, and his last position was manager in audit
department, responsible for external audit works. From March 2017
up to now, Mr. Hung successively served as an executive director, chief
financial officer, company secretary and non-executive director during
his employment with ST International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8521). From July 2019 to May 2020, Mr. Hung served as
chief financial officer and company secretary of Sheng Yuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 851). From June 2020 up to now, Mr. Hung
served as vice president, company secretary and chief financial officer
of Greentech Technology International Limited (stock code: 195).

Mr. Hung graduated from Curtin University of Technology in Australia
with a Bachelor of Commerce (double major in accounting and
finance) in September 2004. In November 2007, Mr. Hung was
admitted as a certified practising accountant of the Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia Ltd. Since January 2011, he has been
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
in respect of the appointment as an independent non-executive
Director for a term of three years commencing from 1 March 2022.
He is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum for his
directorship in the Company, which was determined by the Board
on the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Company with reference to his qualifications, experience, duties and
responsibilities, as well as the prevailing market conditions.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yihui (FRE &), aged 33, joined the Group as the regional
president. He served as the regional president of the Group for Eastern
Zhejiang from January 2019 to January 2020 and was responsible for
the overall day-to-day business operations in the Eastern Zhejiang
region. Since January 2021, he has been promoted to the position
of vice president of the Group and regional president for Eastern
Zhejiang. He has 11 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. From July 2011 to November 2018, he successively
served as secretary to the chairman of the board and senior manager
of operation, general manager of construction company, general
manager of Fuzhou regional company, general manager of Fujian
regional company, president of the first business unit, general
manager of Ronshine operation and management center and general
manager of the president’s office of Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 03301, a property development company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange), during which he
was mainly responsible for the overall day-to-day business operation
of the business unit and the operation and management center.

Mr. Zhong Chao (i) (“Mr. Zhong”), aged 48, joined the Group
in December 2016 and has successively served as a general manager
of the Group’s project company in Wuhu, vice general manager of the
Group’s city companies in Hangjia area and regional assistant to the
president of the Group’s business operations in North Zhejiang area.
Since October 2019, he has been the regional general vice president
of the Group’s business operation in North Zhejiang area, where he is
responsible for overseeing its daily operations in North Zhejiang area.

Prior to joining the Group, from April 2007 to December 2016,
Mr. Zhong served as the general manager at Zhejiang Zhuji Tianma
Experimental School (/T KFHEHE EE BB A F]), a real estate project
company, where he was responsible for the management of the
company'’s business.
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Mr. Zhong has been a qualified civil engineer as certified by Shaoxing
City Educational Training Group (4RETBEFERESEE /M) since
October 2002. He has obtained a bachelor’'s degree in the operation
and management of real estate (BHIELZEIE) from Zhejiang
University of Technology (I L2 KX2Z) in the PRC in July 1997. He
also completed the Wharton & E-House Real Estate Executive Program
provided by E-House-Wharton Case Study and Teaching Facility in
April 2019.

Mr. Chen Guonong (FREIE), aged 46, was appointed on 31 January
2022 as chief financial officer of the Group. He has over 22 years of
accounting and financial management experience. Prior to joining
the Group, from July 1998 to April 2003, he served as a financial
controller of Hangzhou Want Want Foods Co., Ltd. (fi/NEEFER M@
BIRAF]), a subsidiary of Want Want China Holdings Limited (4
AERTIERE EBR A 7]), a food and beverage manufacturer in the PRC,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
151). From May 2003 to June 2006, he served as a manager of the
financial management department in Zhongdu Holdings Group Co.,
Ltd. (FEBIZERREEAFBR A A]) (formerly known as Zhejiang Zhongdu
Property Investment Co, Ltd. (#)TH & E IR EBR A F])), a property
developer in the PRC. From June 2006 to August 2017, he served
as a manager of the financial management department in Canhigh
Construction Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (#AZEZREBHD AR AQR),
a property developer in the PRC. He served as a financial manager
and director of Zhejiang Shinsun Property Service Co., Ltd. (HT#E
EYE RIS AR AR, a property management service provider, since
August 2017 and May 2020 respectively. Since 24 May 2021, he has
been appointed as executive director and chief financial officer of
Shinsun Lifestyle Services Group Limited (f£4ERIEEBBR AR, a
comprehensive property management service provider.

Mr. Chen Guonong obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Zhejiang Gongshang University (#/LLEAZ) (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Commerce (T EZFT)) in the PRC in July
1998. He has been an intermediate accountant (FRAREEHAN) as
certified by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC since September
2003.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie (5RE(&) was appointed as one of
the joint company secretaries on 10 September 2021. Mr. Cheung
is a senior manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited mainly responsible for assisting listed companies
in professional company secretarial work. Prior to joining SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, he served as the
company secretary of certain companies, each of which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree of Arts (Honors) in Accounting and Finance at the University
of Glamorgan in the United Kingdom in June 1996.

Mr. Chen Guonong as the chief financial officer of the Company will
be the contact person at the Company for Mr. Cheung, the company
secretary of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeqguard the interests of the holders (the
“Shareholders”) of the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
on corporate governance and, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company had complied with all applicable code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Non-compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21
after the Relevant Year

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 January
2022, following the resignation of Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason from
independent non-executive Director and his cessation to be the
chairman of the Audit Committee on 31 January 2022, (i) the
number of independent non-executive Directors of the Company
fell below the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (ii) the Company did not meet the
requirement under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise; and (iii) the Company did not meet the
composition requirements of the Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules to comprise a majority of independent non-executive
Directors and with at least one independent non-executive Director
with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2).




R-ZE-——F=ZA—BZATABELLEAEE
VIRTEERERZESEEER KRR
DS FHRAIE3.10(1) » 3.10(2) * 3.10A
%3.211&

Exg

BiTES

BREIRE R (2/F)

BROAR A (TTERABEL)

Yzt (RS- AR BEE)
BREE (R -_E-_—F=A+_-REZME)
HEELE

BYFHTES

F@kts (RS- —F—A=+—H&T)
TEmEE

BaekE
WEEEE (R —F=A—AEZF)

EFSAA

R-ZE-——F+-_A=+—08 EFgeE
WA ITE BB E (EFF) - BRoAR T
E(ITHREE)  BEEERBEESE K
ZEBUIERTEETTR AL - T ERL
ERBIEEE -BERMCEETREURE
E7ABERBES TR B TIERE AT R
RARML - EECAEARAEENERE
BIEREBANGITERISESRR

REFEERARRRNITES  THAEHF
BERAMRREZR o R EXFRHEEIN
EFENBZEMESY X5 RikH
ERERE -

TEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Following the appointment of Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason as independent
non-executive Director and chairman of the Audit Committee on 1
March 2022, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2),
3.10A, 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Hongni (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yao Xiaozhen (resigned on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Han Bo (appointed on 12 March 2021)

Mr. Zhao Leiyi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Ma Hongman

Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason (appointed on 1 March 2022)

Board composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consists of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Guoxiang (chairman), Mr. Chen Hongni
(chief executive officer), Mr. Han Bo and Mr. Zhao Leiyi, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kon Man
Jason, Mr. Ding Jiangang, and Mr. Ma Hongman. An updated list
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company, respectively. The
overall management and supervision of the Company’s operation and
the function of formulating overall business strategies are vested in
the Board.

Mr. Chen Guoxiang is the father of Mr. Chen Hongni, the executive
Director, chief executive officer and president of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other
material relationships among the members of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third
of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a
listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board
believes there is sufficient independence element in the Board to
safeguard the interest of Shareholders.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Senior Management

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company and
takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to the management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
Before entering into any significant transactions or commitments on
behalf of the Company, members of the senior management should
obtain prior approval and authorization from the Board. In order to
have a clear division between the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business operations of the Group,
the role of the chairman is separate from that of the chief executive
officer. Mr. Chen Guoxiang, executive Director and chairman of the
Board, is responsible for formulating the overall business direction
and strategic development of the Group. Mr. Chen Hongni, executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company, is responsible
for overseeing the overall business management of the Group and
operations of the Group’s property projects.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing
their duties.




EFXSHERED

EXeREEEE (MRTESRAEMSR
THRABHK)  BEETHEZEE TR
MEVRBE R YRBAEERAEEER
BE -HTEELERATRARSEHS
| RAARERBNETRE - HAER
BRMELMBREERE - EEGTEHN
mEZEEREN BREEEANERSE
WEWER - (FHIBMRIES] - T e EH®
NEREINRZY  BR-BEVAAEEN

== gh
2 °

EERMBEHREREZERE

EENTHEEARBARERERNE
FHER - mEAKBELGRAMBRE - YR
HEEEHRERAMAEEERS VB ®
%o

FREXRR(FABRXRER)

ARRZBMLZ X ETMEBRERAEE
MEEMBRRELNTERER - HFEH
KB ZBENRE

TRRERZER
FHRFAKENZSETRERE

BINAR A BRI 1078 RZF
Z—f+=ZA=1+—H8  BEH£EMNET
REMERBE BEFEBERAAES
B ARY34,386,436,00070 ' EF AR
#17,247,884,000 LR ARKI12{E A R
FHEE mMRERBESSEVAAR
#2,931,923,0000t c R E-——F +=
A=+—H#%&  EBE&BITREEHIR
—E - F—ARZAIHYHETERL
ZHEAR419,470,000E T (HER AR
123,461,0007T) & E12,000,0003% 7T
(BBENAR®76,110,0007T) - AL - &
EZBRFAERITEEMERELARE
8,135,267,000 L E AR XGEX) + WA
BEREIMN - ZEBRANETBHRERWM T
QAR ENEMNETERTEEATEEE
= Wil BEEERBECEMNRENBKRE
A& o

TEERRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to
review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a
timely manner.

Disclaimer of Opinion (the “Disclaimer of Opinion”)

The Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young issued a disclaimer of opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, details of
which are set out in the independent auditor’s report.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, as
at 31 December 2021, the Group's total bank and other borrowings,
senior notes and corporate bonds amounted to RMB34,386,436,000,
out of which RMB17,247,884,000 will be due for repayment
within the next twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB2,931,923,000. Subsequent to 31 December 2021,
the Group did not repay a principal of US$19,470,000 (equivalent
to RMB123,461,000) and an interest of US$12,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB76,110,000) for certain senior notes due in January 2022
and March 2022 respectively. As a result, senior notes and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with an aggregate amount of
RMB8,135,267,000 became default or cross-default and were payable
on demand. These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in
note 2.1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set
out in note 2.1 to the financial statements. The validity of the going
concern assumptions on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including: (i) successfully
completing the restructuring of its senior notes; (ii) successfully
negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the renewal or
extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and other borrowings;
(iii) successfully securing project development loans for qualified
project development timely; (iv) successfully obtaining of additional
new sources of financing as and when needed; (v) successfully carrying
out the Group's business strategy plan including the acceleration of
the sales of properties; and (vi) successfully implementing measures to
speed up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively
control costs and expenses and (vii) successfully disposing of the
Group’s equity interest in project development companies when
suitable.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the abovementioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Management’s Position, View and Assessment on the
Disclaimer of Opinion

In view of the uncertainties relating to going concern, the Directors
have undertaken a number of plans and measures to improve the
Group's liquidity and financial position, including that the Group:

(i) has appointed a financial adviser to assist it with a restructuring
of its senior notes, in order to reach a consensual solution with all
the stakeholders as soon as practicable;

(i) has been actively negotiating with a number of financial
institutions for renewal, extension and replacement of bank loans
and other borrowings;

(iii) will continue to actively communicate with banks to timely
secure relevant project development loans for qualified project
development;

(iv) will continue to seek for other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital expenditures;
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(v) has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing on the
acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) has implemented measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and
expenses; and

(vii) will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose of its equity
interest in certain project development companies in order to
generate additional cash inflows.

In respect of the acceleration of sales of properties, the Company has
(i) optimized the management structure in the business department
so to enable the senior management of the Group to have access to
the first-hand knowledge on the market demand for making timely
decision on the selling strategies; (ii) strategically concentrated its sales
resources on key areas including Zhejiang province where the market
environment is more positive to the Group; and (iii) implemented the
sales incentive policy for the sales team including the sales commission
and bonus to motivate the sales team. The Company has published
monthly operating data in order to keep Shareholders updated of the
sales of properties.

In addition, the Company has closely monitored the collection of the
outstanding sales proceeds with the coordination between different
departments. The finance department has closely worked with the
business department so to ensure mortgage loans from the banks
will be timely released to the customers to settle the outstanding
sales proceeds. In terms of expenses and cost control, the Group
has streamlined its management structure, downsized the business
department and strategically reduced its cost and expenses on land
acquisition or project designing.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the above
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the next twelve months from 31 December 2021.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above plans and measures, significant
uncertainties exist as to whether the Group will be able to implement
them successfully. Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments may have to be made to write down the
carrying values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Since 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this report, the
Company has successfully (i) renewed or extended the bank loans
and other borrowings in a total amount of approximately RMB1.88
billion; and (ii) obtained the loans for its project development in a
total amount of approximately RMB496 million. For other measures,
the Company will continue to take proactive measures so to resolve
its liquidity issue and will publish an appropriate announcement if
there is any material development in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Inside Information Provisions (as defined in the Listing Rules)
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Ernst & Young has indicated to the Company that whether the
multiple uncertainties relating to going concern can be adequately
addressed depends on the implementation of the Company’s actions
taken/proposed plans and measures to be taken as mentioned above
to address the Disclaimer of Opinion.

Audit Committee’s View on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer of
Opinion, the management’s position concerning the Disclaimer of
Opinion (the “Management’s Position”) and measures taken by the
Group for addressing the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit Committee
agreed with the Management’s Position based on the reasons above.
Moreover, the Audit Committee requested the management to take
all necessary actions to address the uncertainties regarding going
concern underlying the Disclaimer of Opinion that no such Disclaimer
of Opinion will be made in the forthcoming audited financial
statements. The Audit Committee had also discussed with Ernst and
Young regarding the financial position of the Group, measures taken
and to be taken by the Group, and considered the Ernst and Young's
rationale and understood their consideration in arriving their opinion.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in
the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views
carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. The functions of
independent non-executive Directors include bringing an impartial
view and judgement on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control; and scrutinising the Company’s performance
and monitoring performance reporting.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have made positive contributions to the development of the Company
through providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years.
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Confirmation of independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has
been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and
each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
written confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board diversity policy

To enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
board diversity policy in October 2020, which sets out the objective
and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board. Pursuant
to the board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board
diversity by taking into consideration of various factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service
with the Group.

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company is responsible for ensuring the diversity of the Board
members and compliance with relevant codes governing board
diversity under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee will
review the board diversity policy and its diversity profile from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experience, including the areas of real estate, accounting, financial
management, education and manufacturing industries. They
obtained academic diplomas and degrees in various majors, including
economics, business studies, accounting and management science
and engineering. The Company has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing more than
one-third of the members of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a
wide range of age, ranging from 39 years old to 71 years old.
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As at 31 December 2021, Board diversification in terms of gender and
age group is set out below:
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The Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and the management levels. In order to
ensure gender diversity at the Board level, the Nomination Committee
is currently in the process of identifying at least one suitable female
candidate who has necessary skills and experience to the Board
for its consideration of Director. The Board will strive to achieve
an appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference to the
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a
pipeline of female senior management and potential successors to the
Board in a few years’ time. As female representation in senior roles
throughout the economy and the pool of qualified females keeps
growing, the Group expects to have more female members in the
Board from time to time.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his
retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”). Pursuant to the Article 83(3) of the
Articles of Association, the Board shall have power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director, there shall be no maximum
number of Directors unless otherwise determined from time to time
by the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.




RIRAMERAMAEAN) K RARFEE
BERBFAEL ERETN=DZ—EF
(HWABRALIF=)WEE - A AHZEILE
POR=DZ—WMAR) BRFESE - HES
EERELB=FRESE-RLGERE
BEE - ARFRIRRAMRREMERZAR
BRRBITNEMBRERAE LT BRER
BER B —RERARERNESE - MTH
EEBEREMAARREZREFE ZHTL
ZEMBHEERRBRE - BWEHAAERR
HEERRRERZ—BATREERA -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=Z+—HILFE &
ARNEMWEL EBEARESHRE B2
T —F+A=+—HIEFEREEALRF
HRAH  EEERWEMTABRE ETHEL
E1351BKIETR 22 -

EERIIRERRE

BERHFZANEFHTEZERES 2T
FARESFTEHOABE) - Eig - £
B EMAA - EERHEMEERTEZRW
FHEMEAEBERNENER - WES
B2HEBEEEER  UBRESNE T
- BE_T-_—F+A=+—HILEF
B EFCL2HBEZTERREEI - 28
EFCMARARHESENRFREZEIN
Rk - HE-_FE-_—F+-_A=+—H1
FE - 2REE (BIRBEELE - BT E
o BRIRSTE - BEESE - TERISAE
BB ERTHRXEE) 2HAEEESEN
EHRARBESREGRIIETERE - &
AREBOEIRE - ABFBELENR=ZT=
ZF=-A—HEZEARES  WEWRIILE
MEBREZEMEEES ABMEIME -

EXEER

EEg T BT RN W LT B R R
RASEzEERMBRER - EEARITH
NEFBASTARNEHE - EFTSHN LD
BREFELBITOREGE  ANEFTE—
R-WMBRBE  MERTRHFEHE - BRE
FNEHHERLRTE  WEEFEBHLE

A

TEERRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less that one-third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The members of the Company may, at any
general meetings convened and held in accordance with the Articles
of Association, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any time
before the expiration of his period of office notwithstanding anything
contrary in the Articles of Association or in any agreement between
the Company and such Director and may by ordinary resolution elect
or appoint another person in his stead.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, after specific enquiry by the
Company and confirmation by the Directors, there has not been
any change in the information of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2021 and until the date of this annual report that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the
Directors will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the latest development of the Group's
business and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop their knowledge and skills. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have participated in
continuing professional development trainings. All Directors have
provided the Company with their records of training received for the
year. During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors
(namely Mr. Chen Guoxiang, Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr. Han Bo, Mr. Zhao
Leiyi, Mr. Ding Jiangang, Mr. Ma Hongman and Mr. Wong Kon Man
Jason) attended a training course on the duties, responsibilities and
obligations of the Directors under the Listing Rules and the SFO. Mr.
Hung Yuk Miu was appointed as a Director on 1 March 2022 and has
received and reviewed the relevant director’s induction and training
materials for his appointment.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Board intends to hold at least four
meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals after Listing.
Additional meetings would be arranged, if and when required. The
date of each meeting is decided in advance to enable the Directors to
attend the meeting in person.
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A meeting of the Board has been held on 9 May 2022 to consider and
approve the audited annual results for the year ending 31 December
2021. The Company will fully comply with the then applicable code
provision A.1.1 of the CG Code and will hold at least four Board
meetings annually at approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, seven Board meetings
and one general meeting were held. Two meetings of the Audit
Committee, two meetings of the remuneration committee of the

Zeg([FHNZES) S RMARER Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and two meetings of the
BEggH ZREFEHENDHFELEETI Nomination Committee was held. The attendance records of each
o member of the Board is set out below:
HEER L HERE
tEESE  ZEeeH/ FEged/  Zaggd/
g5/ #8358 ENZEE yHzEE BEZEE HEREAE/
EE VL EER VR EERE  RRABRE
Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
S Name of Director Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting(s)
REREE Mr. Chen Guoxiang 7 TER NA TR NA 22 11
MR Mr. Chen Hongni mn TER NA 2 TER NA 171
i3 Ms. Yao Xiaozhen
(W-F-—-£-ARARHE) (resigned on 5 February 2021) 010 TR NIA NER NIA TR NIA 0/0
BREE Mr. Han Bo
(R=B=-£=AT-HEZH) (appointed on 12 March 2021) 1 TER NA AER A TER VA 11
BEREE Mr. Zhao Lelyi mn TER NIA TER NIA TER NA 171
IBNELE Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason
(RZB-ZF-A=+-REE) (resigned on 31 January 2022) 1 22 TER NA TEA NA 11
TERI%E Mr. Ding Jiangang n 22 22 Wy 11
SiIgks Mr. Ma Hongman n 22 22 Wy 11
HEELE Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason
(W=FZZF=-A-HEEH) (appointed on 1 March 2022) 0/0 0/0 TR NA NEA NA 0/0
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the guidelines for the Directors’
dealings in the securities of the Company since the Listing. Following
specific enquiries to each of the Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to
deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
insider information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees
was noted by the Company.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of members of the senior management
(other than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2021
is set out below:

SREEEBRE AH
Number of members of
senior management

AR #2,000,001 7TE AKR¥2,500,0007T
AE¥2,500,001 7TE AK¥3,000,0007T
AR #4,000,001 7TE AKR¥4,500,0007T

Wi

(1) — 2R EBEKREE-_Z-__F—A=1+—8H
BIEETEREERERE -

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 3

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 0

RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000 0
Note:

(1) One senior management member ceased to be a member of the senior management
with effect from 31 January 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal
operations of the Group. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into
account (i) the Group's financial results; (ii) shareholders” interests; (iii)
general business conditions and strategies; (iv) capital requirements;
(v) taxation considerations; (vi) contractual, statutory and regulatory
restriction, if any; and any other conditions that the Board may
consider relevant. Whilst the Board will review from time to time for
determination on proposed dividend with the above factors taken into
account, there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

— to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The Board had performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the positions of the
chairman and the chief executive officer were held separately. The role
of chairman was held by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, and the role of chief
executive officer was held by Mr. Chen Hongni. The segregation of
duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a clear
distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and provide
leadership for the Board and the chief executive officer’s responsibility
to manage the Company’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs.

Audit committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set forth in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on 20 October 2020. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, (i)
reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group, risk management and internal
audit; (ii) providing advice and comments to the Board; and (iii)
performing other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the
Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason (being the chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Ma Hongman.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of
the audit committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held the meeting on 9 May 2022 at which,
among other things, it reviewed the audited consolidated results
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and made recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the annual general meeting (the
“2022 Annual General Meeting”) of the Company to be held on
30 June 2022 as the independent auditor of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had no disagreement
with the Audit Committee’s view on the appointment of the external
auditor.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review the Group’s interim and annual
financial results for submission to the Board for approval, make
recommendation on the re-appointment of the external auditor,
review the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, review and monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function
and oversee the audit process.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibility for the
consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards and principles,
applicable laws and disclosure provisions required of the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the view that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 has
been prepared on this basis.

The statements by external auditor, Ernst & Young, about their
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the section headed “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT" in this annual report.

Remuneration committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
on 20 October 2020. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid
by the Group to its Directors and senior management. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not limited to
(i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies concerning such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of each Director and senior management member; and
(iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors
from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The three members
are Mr. Ding Jiangang (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Chen Hongni and Mr. Ma Hongman.
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The Remuneration Committee reviewed and passed the relevant
resolutions on 1 March 2022 in relation to the remuneration of Mr.
Hung Yuk Miu upon his appointment as independent non-executive
Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held for making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors
and the senior management. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Nomination committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules on 20 October 2020. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure,
size and composition of our Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes to
the composition of the Board; (ii) identifying, selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, and ensuring the diversity of our Board
members; (iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr.
Chen Guoxiang (being the chairman of the Nomination Committee),
Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Ma Hongman.

The Nomination Committee reviewed and passed the relevant

resolutions on 1 March 2022 in relation to the appointment of Mr.
Hung Yuk Miu as independent non-executive Director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, the board diversity policy, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of the new Director in accordance
with the Company’s nomination policy including the nomination
procedures and criteria listed below and composition of the Board
Committees.

Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
selection criteria and procedures to nominate board candidates. The
Nomination Committee aims to nominate suitable candidates to the
Board and advise the Board on the appointment of directors and make
recommendation to the Board, after assessing a number of factors of
a candidate as set out in the nomination policy.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee shall
identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation to the
Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate, including,
but not limited to:

e reputation for integrity

e accomplishment and experience

e compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

e commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

e diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors

as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and the

Shareholders as a whole.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy, as

appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration
and approval from time to time.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In preparation of the financial statements, International
Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and the appropriate
accounting policies have been consistently used and applied. The
Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's
performance in the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders,
and make appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely
manner. Pursuant to the then applicable code provision C.1.1 of the
Code, management would provide such explanation and information
to the Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The work scope and reporting responsibilities of Ernst and Young, the
Company’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 113 of this report.

Risk management and internal control system

The Board confirms that it is responsible for maintaining adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group as a going concern and reviews annually the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal controls and risk management systems to
ensure the adequacy of the internal controls and the risk management
systems in place. These systems are designed to manage, not
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that there will be
no material misstatement or loss.
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The Board and senior management are responsible for determining
the Group's overall business and investment plans, formulating annual
financial budgets, proposals for final accounting and proposals for
profit distributions, and is in charge of the overall risk control of the
Group. The internal control system covers all major aspects of the
Group’s operations, including, among others, property development,
property sales, investment property management, procurement,
financial reporting, asset management, budgeting and accounting
processes. The Group also has an internal audit and risk control
function which primarily carries out analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board
on, at least, an annual basis. The finance and fund management
center is primarily responsible for managing liquidity risks. Also, the
legal and risk management department is required to involve and
obtain inputs from the investment and development center with
respect to any investment plan, and is responsible for evaluating the
investment plan from the legal perspective and updating the internal
departments if there are relevant changes to the applicable laws
relating to investment and financing.

With respect to the Group's risk management and internal control
measures, the Group has a set of comprehensive policies and
guidelines which set out details regarding the internal control
standards, segregation of responsibilities, approval procedures and
personnel accountability in each aspect. The Group also carries out
regular internal assessments and training to ensure its employees are
equipped with sufficient knowledge on such policies and guidelines.
In addition, the Group also implemented risk management policies
against corruption and fraudulent activities. The Group’s major
anti-corruption and anti-fraud measures and procedures include:

— the internal audit and risk control function shall be primarily
responsible for establishing, reviewing and evaluating the Group’s
anti-corruption and anti-fraud policies and monitoring their
implementation;

— as specified in the Group's staff handbooks, employees are
explicitly prohibited from taking/offering bribes or kickbacks
from/to suppliers or other third parties, manipulating bidding
procedures, misusing the Group's assets, or providing improper
hospitality and entertainment to suppliers or other third parties;
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— all of the Directors and senior management are requested to
identify and make periodical reports to the headquarters about
conflicts of interest, including potential related party transactions,
the engagement of competing businesses, or the receipt of unjust
benefits or enrichment by using the Group’s assets or resources or
taking advantage of his or her position;

— the Group plans to provide anti-corruption and anti-fraud
compliance trainings periodically to the Directors, senior
management and employees to enhance their knowledge and
awareness of the relevant laws and regulations; and

— the Group undertakes rectification measures with respect to any
identified corruption or fraudulent activities, evaluating such
activities and proposing and establishing preventative measures to
avoid future non-compliances.

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising in
identifying and evaluation of significant risk of its business and
operation. The external consultant does not have any connection
with the Group and the Board believes that their involvement could
enhance the objectivity and transparency of evaluation process. In
conjunction with the Group’s internal audit and risk control function
and senior management, the external consultant conducts an annual
assessment on risk management and internal control systems of
the Group to identify the major risk and significant deficiencies and
resolve any material internal control defects (as appropriate), together
with suggestion and solutions and submit to the Board for their
consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
implemented procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. In particular, the Group:

— has conducted its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012;

— has established its own disclosure obligation procedures, which
set out the procedures and controls for the assessment of
potential inside information and the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The procedures have been communicated
to the senior management and staff of the Company, and their
implementation was monitored by the Company; and

— has made broad, non-exclusive disclosure of information to

the public through channels such as financial reports, public
announcements and its website.
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The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the audit committee and the
executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least
once each year by the Board. During the year ended 31 December
2021, these systems were reviewed, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls of the Group,
and considered effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately as follows:

B (ARETT)
R ER Type of Services Amount (RMB’000)
ZERTE Audit services 8,800
FEIZ BRI Non-audit services
— EHERM; - bond exchange 1,800
—ESGART — ESG services 236
— BA RS RIB 2R 58 s AR 7S - financial and tax due diligence advisory services 758
“at Total 11,594
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie as
company secretary. Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie is a senior manager
of an external service provider, SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie has confirmed that
for the year ended 31 December 2021, he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The biography of Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie
is set out in the “Biographies of Directors and senior management”
section on pages 51 and 62 of this report.




Z it

AEBEEETE—EA2ERIENIIERE -
WHELE D (TR - FE#e - HEEMERE
HES)NEZTEITEEERAESDS - B
—E_—F+-A=1+—H K&EAH#HF
2,996 % EE (BiEaREEE)  E+ B
HEERZHEEED A A1,770% K% 1,196
% °

R SR AE R

BHRRGFFAE

RIFABEIZMAESSE  RRFFIREA
E—RFALRERZREBFARERR
BRRE ERENARBABERAT DR
DZ—HBRRERTAN - ARERANE
EFAMEFSHWERL  MAERES
ARSI AR S ARIEEBERANETH
A EE - RAGEARZEREZRM(2)
EAARRT - WREBEZR_-T—21A
N BFEEREARAZARE  AIE2EFRA
TRAIBTTUERA R BHRARE  MAREA
FAEEBERATENEEZRKALTREES
REEBRAAGMEL ZFIERIERM

REBERAE LIBHES

ARERANLEEFRRNBRRAE LIZ
HRBARE o BRI L EE - ATRIE
EXTBRABRRERAE | —BRASETEX
ARBARBRRFRIAE

TEERRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIVERSITY

The Group aims to create a comprehensive and collaborative
workplace environment and see great strength in the diversity of
workforce, regardless of the gender, age, sexual orientation or
religious backgrounds. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a
total number of 2,996 employees (including senior management),
among them, 1,770 are male and 1,196 are female.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the above paragraph headed
“Convening an extraordinary general meeting”.
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Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:
Address: Room 2907-08, Tower 2, Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

E-mail address: ir@xsjt.cn

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming 2022 Annual General
Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’s Articles of Association has been amended and
restated with effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the
respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not made
any significant changes to its constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in developing and selling properties in cities
in Zhejiang Province and other cities in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta
Region in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 by its principal activities
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on page 206 in this report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” section of this report and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the Group on pages 117 to 118 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion on the
Group's future business development during the year are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s statement” and “Management
discussion and analysis” on pages 12 to 19 and pages 21 to 51,
respectively, of this report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental protection
policies, performance and relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and major stakeholders are set out below in this directors’
report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 293 in this report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the section headed “Management discussion and analysis”
on pages 21 to 51 of this report. An account of the Company’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers, please
refer to the sections headed “Management discussion and analysis —
Employee, Remuneration Policy and Training” and “Directors’ Report —
Major customers and suppliers” in this report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's operations involve certain risks, some of which are
beyond its control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i)
risks relating to its business; (ii) risks relating to the industry; and (iii)
risks relating to the PRC.

A discussion of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
businesses and other relevant information, can also be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.
Such discussion forms part of this “Directors’ Report”. The Directors
believe that there are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the
operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.

Some of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
include the following:

— the Group’s business and prospects are susceptible to adverse
movements in the PRC real estate market, particularly in provinces
and cities where the Group has property projects;

— the Group generates a majority of its revenue from property
development and sales in the Zhejiang Province, and therefore is
susceptible to any significant decline in the economic condition of
Zhejiang Province;

— the Group may not have adequate financing to fund its future
property development, and capital resources may not be available
on favorable terms, or at all;

— the Group may not be able to identify desirable locations or
acquire land use rights for future property development on
favorable terms, or at all;

However, the above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to
make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors
before making any investment in the shares of the Company.

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Environmental policies and performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group
strives to minimise its environmental impact and comply with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The measures it takes to ensure its compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include:

(i) strictly selecting construction contractors and supervising the
process of construction;

(ii) applying for review by the relevant government authorities in a
timely manner after the project is completed; and

(iii)  actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and
designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with respect to
environmental protection and make energy conservation and
emission reduction as primary considerations when designing
its property projects.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or
penalties associated with the breach of any environmental laws or
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2021. The 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group shall be
published separately.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with the Shares
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group's
subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Group's subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate
and administrative office in Hong Kong.

Its establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong that have a significant impact
on the Group.
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Relationship with Employees

The Group places emphasis on human capital and strives to create an
environment that enables employees to develop their full potential
and assists them in their personal and professional development. The
Group provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity among
its employees, offers competitive remuneration and benefits and
career development opportunities based on their achievements and
performance, and makes continuous efforts to provide employees
with comprehensive training and development resources to attract
and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable universities
of PRC.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
businesses.

Relationship with Customers

The Group's customers are primarily individual buyers and corporate
entities. Customer satisfaction with our services and products has
a profound impact on our profitability. The Group values customer
feedback on its products, its dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with its customers and potential customers to identify
customers’ pain points alongside grasping the market trend, thus
helping the Group to timely adjust our operating strategies to fit the
market requirement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended not to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$0.20 per share).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of senior notes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on
pages 121 and 122 of this report. In respect of Company, the amount
of reserves available for distribution under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands as at 31 December 2021 was RMB2,888.7 million.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB19.6 million.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 120 in this
report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report were:

Position
Executive Director
Executive Director

Name of director
Mr. Chen Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hongni
(Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yao Xiaozhen
(resigned on 5
February 2021)
Mr. Han Bo
(appointed on 12
March 2021)
Mr. Zhao Leiyi
Mr. Wong Kon Man Jason
(resigned on 31
January 2022)
Mr. Ding Jiangang
Mr. Ma Hongman
Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason
(appointed on
1 March 2022)

Executive Director

Executive Director

Executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. Accordingly, in accordance with Article 84(1),
Mr. Chen Guoxiang, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Ma Hongman shall
retire from office at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. In addition,
pursuant to Article 83(3), any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. Hung Yuk Miu Jason shall retire and be re-elected at
the 2022 Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article 83(3).
All the above Directors are eligible and willing to be re-elected at the
2022 Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of 3 years.

The appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and
shall continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ prior written notice.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, the
management or controlling shareholders of the Company nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competed or might compete with the business of
the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved and adopted the Share Option Scheme
on 20 October 2020. The Share Option Scheme is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Share Option Scheme
(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide selected
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage selected participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of
the Company and Shareholders as a whole. The Directors believe the
Share Option Scheme will enable the Group to reward its employees,
the Directors and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme provides the Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected participants.
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2) Participants

Any individual, being an employee, director, officer, consultant,
advisor, distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner or service provider of any
member of the Company or any affiliate who the Board or its
delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or
will contribute to the Company is entitled to be offered and granted
options. However, no individual who is resident in a place where the
grant, acceptance or exercise of options pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted under the laws and regulations of such place
or where, in the view of the Board or its delegate(s), compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary
or expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be offered or
granted options.

3) The maximum number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Shares commences on the Stock
Exchange, and such 10% limit represents 300,000,000 Shares,
representing 9.86% of the total Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.

(4) The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being.

(5) Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may, subject to the terms and conditions upon which such
option is granted, be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
giving notice in writing to the Company in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after the
Listing Date.
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(6)  Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(7) Grant offer letter and notification of grant of options

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to
have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number
of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein together with a remittance in favor of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
our Company on or before the date upon which an offer of an option
must be accepted by the relevant selected participants, which must
be received by the Company within ten business days from the date
on which the offer letter is delivered to the grantee. Such remittance
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted in respect of less than the number of
Shares for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of
a board lot for dealing in Shares or a multiple thereof. To the extent
that the offer is not accepted within ten business days from the date
on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that selected
participant, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.
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(8) The duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of
ten years commencing on the Listing (after which, no further options
shall be offered or granted under the Share Option Scheme), but in all
other respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the rules of the Share
Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme is approximately 8 years and 6 months.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
the section headed “Statutory and general information — D. Share
incentive scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of
this report, no option was granted or agreed to be granted, exercised
or cancelled by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
There was no outstanding share option under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were otherwise required, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:
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RAR TR HER INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

B BETRABER ERtE RORARER G EE W= BRRFRE 2 e
Name of Director/ Number of Shares or Approximate percentage
Chief Executive Nature of Interest underlying Shares (Note ™ of shareholding Mete "
R B 4 ST {SrEEIE A HE2) 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
Mr. Chen Guoxiang Founder of a trust Mot 2

BR AR SE 4 BrEzEmA 2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
Mr. Chen Hongni Beneficiary of a trust

st Notes:

1) RZB=-—F+=-_A=+—8 " KNAAIET (1) As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L)
3,043,403,000% 055 - TRLIENZ ggﬁgu denotes the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.
BB BAF R ©

(2) Shinlight Limited#9% 82 277 B4 g1 Shinfamily (2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited is held by Shinfamily Holdings
Holdings Limited ([ Shinfamily Holdings )% - Limited (“Shinfamily Holdings”), which is the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
ifiShinfamily HoldingsATMF (Cayman) Ltd. #4% TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is the trustee of the CGX Family Trust (the “Family Trust”), a
f& AT ° TMF (Cayman) Ltd.ACGX Family Trust discretionary trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as settlor, the beneficiaries of
([REES]) (BFEEELEEEATIEARTIHE which are Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family members including Mr. Chen Hongni.
WES  ESZABBBENLERERKEKE (8 Accordingly, each of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and Mr. Chen Hongni is deemed under the
FEPRROACA) ) T A - Eilt - BB ENE SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Shinlight Limited.

BB REFEERRATEESBWERRN
Shinlight Limited #5788k #E B s ©

B FYEFIREEN R E-—F+-F= Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the

+—B HEEERARTIESTHEAER Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or

AATREMESEB RS - ABERHDRE short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of

BRI ADENIRIEBZEL SRS the Company or its associated corporations, recorded in the register

352 KB T HEENEEMARIREELESTR required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be

BEIE AN T R AT T (RS Sk A - notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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RZZEZ—F+ZRA=+—8  BERQFMR
o TIAL(BREARREETLRSITHA
BN AR BEE S LM EEIEXVEEE2
K37 BBV R M AR D B3 R B A A B AL D
FAEEBRDWEEIORE - HRBEARRFR
EHRBERPIE3I36IRFENELMATRL
BZEEIRR  HEERIMEERARRFN
&R R HEA 5% Sk A FRERS

BRREE EB EEME

Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the Company:

P AERE R D BB =D BIA SR T 2t e
Number of Shares or Approximate percentage
underlying Shares Mot of shareholding Mot

ek B 4 5 A

Mr. Chen Guoxiang
TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
Shinfamily Holdings
Shinfamily Holdings

Shinlight Limited
Shinlight Limited
KEIR 2+

Ms. Zhu Guoling

{SFEAIER A (HiE2)

Founder of a trust Mote 2

EFEZFEA (M)

Trustee of a trust MNete2

SIS E S

Interest in a controlled
corporation

BEmEa A W)

Beneficial owner Mote2)

Hip (B 2w (153)

Interest of spouse Mote 3

2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%
2,376,000,000 (L) 78.07%

Mt

1) RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 XRa%E1T
3,043,403,000 k5 - FRLIERZEERE
BRI E -

(2) Shinlight Limited®) & #2217 A E Shinfamily
Holdings#4 * mShinfamily Holdings BTMF
(Cayman) Ltd.H)#EARAE] « TMF (Cayman) Ltd.
REGET(AREEERZTARINDER
it AR ARMBEEEERARIEKE) HZE
Ao Bt - RIBFES RBABRD - REIFEE -
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. % Shinfamily Holdings9i8 &
R Shinlight Limited #5889 & R A #E# o

(3) RERLLTAMBEFLENLE - REZF LY

D) - R KR AR R 5 A A
A HFHLAR 5 o AR -

HEER(EE)ERAT —T-—FFH

Note:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, the Company issued 3,043,403,000 Shares. The letter (L)
denotes the entity’s long position in the relevant Shares.

(2) The entire issued share capital of Shinlight Limited is held by Shinfamily Holdings,
which is the holding vehicle of TMF (Cayman) Ltd.. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is the trustee
of the Family Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang as
settlor, the beneficiaries of which are Mr. Chen Guoxiang and his family members.
Accordingly, each of Mr. Chen Guoxiang, TMF (Cayman) Ltd. and Shinfamily Holdings
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Shinlight Limited.

(3) Ms. Zhu Guoling is the spouse of Mr. Chen Guoxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu
Guoling is deemed to be interested in the same Shares in which Mr. Chen Guoxiang
is interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the
Company.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or his connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance (i) in
relation to the Group's business; or (i) for provision of services to
the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) by a controlling shareholder
(or any of its subsidiaries) between the Company (or any of its
subsidiaries) and a controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries)
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's customers primarily consist of individual purchasers and
corporate entities.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer amounted to approximately 0.08% of
the Group's total revenue and the Group five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for 0.26% of the Group’s revenue for the year.
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The Group's suppliers primarily include construction contractors and
equipment suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier amounted to approximately 33.1% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for 42.6% of the Group’s total purchase for the
year.

One of the Group's five largest suppliers, Zhejiang Xiangsheng
Construction Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Construction”) is wholly-owned
by Xiangsheng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Industrial”),
which is owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, one of the
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), executive
Director and chairman of the Company, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni,
Mr. Chen Guoxiang’'s son and the executive Director. Xiangsheng
Construction is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen Guoxiang
and Mr. Chen Hongni and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The purchase from Xiangsheng Construction
amounted to RMB5,393.3 million, which accounted for 33.1% of the
Group’s total purchase for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had an interest in the
share capital of any of the five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Group entered into the following transactions as described
below with persons who are regarded as “connected persons”
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company conducted
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules), which are subject to the
reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:
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Property Agency Services

On 2 July 2021, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Shinsun Lifestyle Services Group Limited (the
“Shinsun Services”, together with its subsidiaries and their respective
associates “Shinsun Services Group”) (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) entered into the property agency service framework
agreement (the “Property Agency Service Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which Shinsun Services Group has agreed to provide
property agency services and other ancillary services to the Group
for unsold car parking spaces located in properties developed by the
Group for a period commencing from 2 July 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023 (both days inclusive).

Shinsun Services is owned as to 98% by Top Honour Global Limited, a
company wholly owned by Shinlight Limited (the “Shinlight”), which
is wholly owned by Shinfamily Holdings Limited (the “Shinfamily
Holdings”), which is in turn wholly owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd.,
the trustee of the Family Trust. The Family Trust is a discretionary
trust established by Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the settlor, with Mr. Chen
and his family members as the beneficiaries. Accordingly, Shinsun
Services is an associate of Mr. Chen Guoxiang and a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As such, the transactions contemplated under the Property Agency
Service Framework Agreement shall constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios as defined under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules for the highest amount of the annual
caps under the Property Agency Service Framework Agreement
exceed 0.1% but all of which are less than 5%, the Property Agency
Service Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but exempt from the circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the Property Agency Service Framework Agreement, it
is proposed that the annual caps for the transactions contemplated
thereunder the three years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 will not exceed RMB63.4 million, RMB122.4 million and
RMB125.8 million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/
payable by the Group to Shinsun Services Group in relation to the
Property Management Services for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB32.4 million.
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Property Management Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a property
management service framework agreement (the “Property
Management Service Framework Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Xiangsheng Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng
Property Management”), pursuant to which members of the Group
could engage Xiangsheng Property Management and its subsidiaries
("Xiangsheng Property Management Group”) to provide property
management services, including but not limited to (i) pre-delivery
services prior to the delivery of properties to property owners, such
as security, car park management, cleaning, gardening, repair,
maintenance and operation of common area and shared facilities;
and (ii) property management services for unsold property units held
by the Group (the “Property Management Services”). The Property
Management Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing
from 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned
as to 99% by Mr. Chen and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr.
Chen and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Property
Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Property Management Service
Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Property
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 will not exceed RMB54.7 million, RMB59.4 million and
RMB64.0 million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable
by the Group to Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation
to the Property Management Services for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB49.9 million.
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Sales Management Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a sales management
service framework agreement (the “Sales Management Service
Framework Agreement”) with Xiangsheng Property Management,
pursuant to which members of the Group could engage members
of the Xiangsheng Property Management Group to provide sales
management and other services, including but not limited to reception
services, cleaning, car park management, security and maintenance
services in showrooms, display units and sales offices for our property
projects, as well as the commercial properties occupied or operated by
the Group (the “Sales Management Services”). The Sales Management
Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing from the 18
November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Property Management is owned as to 98% by Xiangsheng
Industrial and 2% by Ms. Zhu Guoling, the spouse of Mr. Chen,
being the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and executive Director. Xiangsheng Industrial is owned
as to 99% by Mr. Chen and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, the son of Mr.
Chen and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Property Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Sales
Management Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions.

The transactions under the Sales Management Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to the
Xiangsheng Property Management Group in relation to the Sales
Management Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 will not exceed RMB134.9 million, RMB177.9 million and
RMB216.2 million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/
payable by the Group to Xiangsheng Property Management Group
in relation to the Sales Management Services for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to RMB104.5 million.
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Hotel Lease

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a master hotel
lease agreement (the “Master Hotel Lease Agreement”) with Zhuji
Xiangsheng Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Hotel
Management”), pursuant to which the Group shall lease certain hotels
to Xiangsheng Hotel Management at an aggregate monthly rental of
approximately RMB3.3 million, RMB3.4 million and RMB3.4 million
for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. The Master
Hotel Lease Agreement has a term commencing from 18 November
2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Hotel Management is wholly owned by Zhejiang
Xiangsheng Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* (WIH4EBEEEEAR
fR A7), which is in turn wholly owned by Xiangsheng Industrial.
Xiangsheng Industrial is owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen, the
controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and executive Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr.
Chen’s son and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Hotel Management
is therefore an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and
thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Master Hotel
Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Hotel Lease Agreement are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the amount of rentals payable by
Xiangsheng Hotel Management to the Group for the lease of hotels
contemplated under the Master Hotel Lease Agreement for the years
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB39.0
million, RMB39.8 million and RMB40.6 million, respectively. Such
estimate of the maximum amount is based on the fixed rentals for the
hotels as set out in the Master Hotel Lease Agreement. The amount of
rentals paid/payable by Xiangsheng Hotel Management to the Group
for the lease of hotels contemplated under the Master Hotel Lease
Agreement for year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB22.0
million.
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Landscape Engineering Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a landscape
engineering service framework agreement (the “Landscape
Engineering Service Framework Agreement”) with Zhuji Xiangsheng
Landscape Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xiangsheng Landscape”), pursuant
to which members of the Group could engage Xiangsheng Landscape
to provide landscape engineering services, including but not limited
to greening services, landscaping services, and outdoor road and
drainage engineering services (the “Landscape Engineering Services”).
The Landscape Engineering Service Framework Agreement has a term
commencing from 18 November 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Xiangsheng Landscape is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chen Guoging, the
brother of Mr. Chen, and 50% by Ms. Chen Zhiping, the sister of Mr.
Chen. Xiangsheng Landscape is therefore an associate of Mr. Chen,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and executive Director, and thus a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions.

The transactions under the Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Landscape in relation to the Landscape Engineering
Services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
will not exceed RMB414.9 million, RMB496.6 million and RMB619.2
million, respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by
the Group to Xiangsheng Landscape in relation to the Landscape
Engineering Services for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to RMB294.7 million.

Construction Services

On 26 October 2020, the Company entered into a construction
service framework agreement (the “Construction Service Framework
Agreement”) with Zhejiang Xiangsheng Construction Co., Ltd.
("Xiangsheng Construction”), pursuant to which members of the
Group could engage Xiangsheng Construction to provide construction
and related services as main contractor for the Group’s property
development projects (the “Construction Services”). The Construction
Service Framework Agreement has a term commencing from the 18
November 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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Xiangsheng Construction is wholly-owned by Xiangsheng Industrial,
which is in turn owned as to 99% by Mr. Chen, the controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
executive Director, and 1% by Mr. Chen Hongni, Mr. Chen’s son
and the executive Director. Xiangsheng Construction is therefore
an associate of both Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen Hongni and thus a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Construction
Service Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions.

The transactions under the Construction Service Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of service fees payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Construction in relation to the Construction Services for
the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed
RMB9,077.5 million, RMB11,324.4 million and RMB13,401.7 million,
respectively. The amount of service fees paid/payable by the Group to
Xiangsheng Construction in relation to the Construction Services for
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB5,393.3 million.

Further details of Property Agency Service Framework Agreement are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2021.
Further details of the Property Management Service Framework
Agreement, the Sales Management Service Framework Agreement,
the Master Hotel Lease Agreement, the Landscape Engineering Service
Framework Agreement and the Construction Service Framework
Agreement are set out under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions have been entered into in
(i) the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant
agreements governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmations from the Company’s Independent Auditor

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst and Young,
the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board,
confirming that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group
(for the Master Hotel Lease Agreement); (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the respective
annual cap.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's
securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has been granted a waiver by the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange
has accepted the minimum public float of 20.8% of the total issued
share capital of the Company taking into account the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the number of shares held by the public in the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report has been
in compliance with the minimum percentage of public float prescribed
by the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and
complied with the then applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
"Five-year financial summary” on page 296 of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provide that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
for the year ended 31 December 2021, which provides appropriate
cover for the Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2021 and remained in force
as at the date of this report for the benefit of the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

US$200,000,000 10.5% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2022

On 8 June 2021, the Company issued US$200 million 10.5% senior
notes due June 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) (stock code: 40713). The
2022 Notes are listed and traded on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2021, the 2022 Notes with an aggregate principal amount
of US$200,000,000 remained outstanding.




200,000,000 E TR =—E=-=F 25
W1I2EEBEERE

RZZE=_—FNA+/\B  K"2QFEETT200
BEETR-_Z-_=FN\A3HN12EE
EEBR(ZTZ=FFE]) (RHKRR
mmw CE R ERRBRAIETRE
B -RZZTEZ—F+ZA=+—0 £&4
¥8/5200,000,000E€ LA —F = = F =&
REE -

BRETREEN  ARARETAHER AR
HE—_Z2-—F+-A=+—HLEFEAL
EmEE - HEKBERARQRMIMA LHE
gjéo

f SR 8 1

BRANED [ ERAERT 8 — BT ESN  BE
TEC-F+-A=t+—HIFESRH  #
EREEHBH AR A EER L FE

EEEH

BE-_ZTZ-_—F+_A=+—HUHFE &
EABANREBEESTMNERRINE
BRITHRAERNE NS SFE -

BRRBFAEREENERDBF
BRFE

ARARBR_ZE-_—_FA=Z+H(EHM)
BIIZE__FRIERAFAE - BT =
ZERFEFASHBEGRE ETRAE
BRAARR R LB TIE  WERE
BETRR - ARERIEELF -_T=-__F
BREEFASETRS FERERRENE
W ARRER _ZE-_—_FXA-_1++HZE
—E-FARA=Z+TH(BEEHEEMX) i
TIEWBERNBEELTE  HABTEE
TRhER - RETAREF S __FK
RAFAGURE FRENKRRESH @ ATE
BHOBPEXHERBBREAN f:*i
ANAZTHEAB TFNUE=+2ERERAR
NEBRDELD BB B RES %%ﬁﬁ
NE MU ABEEBTERABRISIRA
AR 7HE1712-1716584 ©

ExewRs
DIRECTORS' REPORT

US$200,000,000 12% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2023

On 18 August 2021, the Company issued US$200 million 12% senior
notes due August 2023 (the “2023 Notes") (stock code: 40808). The
2023 Notes are listed and traded on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2021, the 2023 Notes with an aggregate principal amount
of US$200,000,000 remained outstanding.

Save as disclosed, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2022 Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday, 30 June
2022. A notice convening the 2022 Annual General Meeting will
be published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and dispatched to the Shareholders in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purposes of
determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak and vote
at the 2022 Annual General Meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 27 June 2022 to 30 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are
entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 Annual General Meeting,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 24 June 2022.
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AUDITOR

The Company’s shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange on 18
November 2020, and there has been no change in auditors since the
Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Ernst and
Young who will retire at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. Ernst
and Young, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst and Young as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022 Annual General
Meeting.

By order of the Board

Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
Chen Guoxiang

Chairman
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To the shareholders of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 295, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the potential interaction of
the multiple uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on
the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us
to form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all
other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2021, the Group's total bank and other borrowings,
senior notes and corporate bonds amounted to RMB34,386,436,000,
out of which RMB17,247,884,000 will be due for repayment
within the next twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB2,931,923,000. Subsequent to 31 December 2021,
the Group did not repay a principal of US$19,470,000 (equivalent
to RMB123,461,000) and an interest of US$12,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB76,110,000) for certain senior notes due in January and
March 2022 respectively. As a result, senior notes and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with an aggregate amount of
RMB8,135,267,000 became default or cross-default and were payable
on demand. These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in
note 2.1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, which are set
out in note 2.1 to the financial statements. The validity of the going
concern assumptions on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including: (i) successfully
completing the restructuring of its senior notes; (ii) successfully
negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the renewal or
extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and other borrowings;
(iii) successfully securing project development loans for qualified
project development timely; (iv) successfully obtaining of additional
new sources of financing as and when needed; (v) successfully
carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan including the
acceleration of the sales of properties; (vi) successfully implementing
measures to speed up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds
and effectively control costs and expenses and (vii) successfully
disposing of the Group’s equity interest in project development
companies when suitable.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (conTINUED)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to achieve the abovementioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (conTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’s report. We report
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not
possible for us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE-Z-——F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —E-FF
gz ARET T ARETIT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
g REVENUE 5 43,719,028 46,638,413
SHE KA Cost of sales (39,147,417)  (38,203,574)
EF GROSS PROFIT 4,571,611 8,434,839
BT U Finance income 306,770 75,773
E U A R s Other income and gains 5 129,638 108,621
SHE R D HAX Selling and distribution expenses (1,266,839) (1,240,318)
TERAX Administrative expenses (999,754) (1,132,252)
B Other expenses (306,661) (101,221)
EMERN D FE RS Fair value gains on investment properties 15 17,726 4,624
EURi I %N Finance costs 7 (1,257,317) (1,113,405)
FEMR TP R E)NE A R EE ¢ Share of profits and losses of:
B EE Joint ventures 349,184 2,026
RN Associates 95,563 (19,770)
BR B AR PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,639,921 5,018,917
FIB A Income tax expense 10 (1,159,246) (1,965,546)
FRHEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 480,675 3,053,371
AR B IE fEf : Attributable to:
ISYNCIE PPN Owners of the parent (215,363) 2,646,006
FEPE AR R = Non-controlling interests 696,038 407,365
480,675 3,053,371
BAREEEREEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EEERAER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT
FRREAR RS A T Basic and diluted earnings per share 12 AR¥(0.07)t AR®1.077T
RMB RMB
(0.07) Yuan 1.07 Yuan
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REE2HERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—EZ—F —E-TF
fifaE AR®ET T ARETTT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FR=F PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 480,675 3,053,371
Hib 2 E Kz OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REfE R ETEE Other comprehensive income that
B E 2 E s will be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
B - HWE R e Revaluation gains on transfer from
EREYFENE NS property, plant and equipment to
investment properties 15 - 161,395
FriStis & Income tax effect = (40,348)
RER R EF»EE Net other comprehensive income that
B mHE 2 KR EF 5 will be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods - 121,047
FREAMZE MK (BRFE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX - 121,047
FRE2EWNHEEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 480,675 3,174,418
AT & IE RS - Attributable to:
ISYNEIEZZEPN Owners of the parent (215,363) 2,767,053
JEVE R RE Non-controlling interests 696,038 407,365
480,675 3,174,418
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B R R X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

—EZ—F —E-TF
fifaE ARET T ARETIT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 13 105,672 127,132
EREEE Right-of-use assets 14 58,122 74,064
"EYE Investment properties 15 2,029,480 2,018,554
mILEE Intangible assets 16 9,917 10,832
REEEENTE Investments in joint ventures 17 1,467,007 1,164,904
REEZE AR E Investments in associates 18 1,399,643 686,226
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets 19 2,203,424 2,100,518
IEREBEERE Total non-current assets 7,273,265 6,182,230
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BERERPYE Properties under development 20 96,433,665 105,840,944
FEREMBE R Ty Completed properties held for sale 21 6,441,718 4,272,697
B 5 e GRIA K R E IR Trade and bills receivables 22 13,281 127,380
BHEE Contract assets 23 248,320 227,970
JiE s B e 75 BOR Due from related parties 39 4,284,362 2,700,144
TENFIE - ke Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H A e UK IR receivables 24 19,103,774 13,265,996
A Ug 7 IR Tax recoverable 2,656,552 2,191,243
BATEFAERT Financial assets at fair value through
EHMEE profit or loss 25 840,117 626,231
e MIRTT R Cash and bank balances 26 8,448,078 24,304,747
MENEERE Total current assets 138,469,867 153,557,352
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 N IE R EN R R Trade and bills payables 27 6,587,113 6,977,322
HAth fERT /I8 R FEET & Other payables and accruals 28 11,238,515 13,220,334
BHEE Contract liabilities 29 70,018,866 68,791,434
FE T NG 75 IR Due to related parties 39 4,236,529 5,809,050
FTEERTT RAMERK Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 30 14,040,104 20,754,820
BEER Senior notes 31 3,204,513 1,437,058
NEES Corporate bonds 32 3,267 3,164
FERTRE IR Tax payable 10 2,044,991 2,409,194
HEAE Lease liabilities 14 32,332 34,207
MEN B E4REE Total current liabilities 111,406,230 119,436,583
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mEMBRR K

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E=—%F+=HA=+—H 31 December 2021

—E-—F —EFF
HtaF ARET T ARETIT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 27,063,637 34,120,769
BEABRRBES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 34,336,902 40,302,999
FRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTEIRIT R EMER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 30 15,382,675 21,531,087
BEER Senior notes 31 1,258,377 1,952,929
NRIEH Corporate bonds 32 497,500 497,500
HEEE Lease liabilities 14 35,343 51,910
IRIEFIIE A E Deferred tax liabilities 19 210,651 232,537
EmB A ERRE Total non-current liabilities 17,384,546 24,265,963
BEEFE NET ASSETS 16,952,356 16,037,036
e EQUITY
BAREE ABGES Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
&7 Share capital 33 199,616 199,616
B Reserves 34 7,518,097 8,231,939
7,717,713 8,431,555
FEERER Non-controlling interests 9,234,643 7,605,481
ESAE TOTAL EQUITY 16,952,356 16,037,036
BR B BREA
Chen Guoxiang Chen Hongni
- -
Director Director
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REEZEH R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZT-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2021

BRTERARLE
Attributable to owners of the parent
EE gE

BR ROEE EREGE  BRRE  BfEE  REEH B FERER  EnEE
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETH
33 W34 WaEsdb) B4

Statutory Asset Non-
Share Share Capital surplus  revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Note 33 Note 34 (a) Note 34 (b) Note 34 (c)

R=F-F£-f-H As at 1 January 2020 - - 3213473 506,557 - 897395 4617425 1,357,691 5975,116
ENEHR2AREAE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 121,047 2,646,006 2,767,053 407365 3,174,418
LBl Issuance of new shares 199,616 4,147,720 - - - - 4347336 - 4347336
AN

HEATEERBRLE  Capital contribution by the
non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries - - 160471 - - - 160471 5884245 6,044,716
Uiteath v n Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - (8,617) - - - (8,617) 6,117 (2,500)
WEE B AR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 289% 28956
BRERAZBEREEA Acquisition of subsidiaries from
YEHEAR the then equity holder of
the subsidiaries - - (3,470,373) - - - (3.470373) - (3,470,373)
T THEAT Dividends paid to a non-controlling
FERRRRRE shareholder of the subsidiary - - - - - - - (83224 (83,20
HEHBAF Disposal of subsidiaries = - = = - = = 1,144 1,144
BEATRAER Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve - - - 312280 - (312,280) - - -
HENHBEATNDAES Disposal of partial interests
(RALIESIE) in subsidiaries without
losing control - - 18,260 - - - 18,260 3,187 21,447
R-E-F& As at 31 December 2020
T-A=t-H 199,616 4,147,720* (86,786)* 818,837*  121,047* 3,231,121 8431555 7605481 16,037,036
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RERZEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-Z-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2021

BATEEARE
Attributable to owners of the parent
EE gE
Bk REE EARE BRRE ERRE RO A FERER RREE
AEETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETr ARETR ARETz
W33 BiEE34(a) HE34(b) KE34(0)
Statutory Asset Non-
Share Share  Capital  surplus revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Note 33 Note 34 (a) Note 34 (b) Note 34 (c)
R=F-—-%-A-H As at 1 January 2021 199,616  4,147,720* (86,786)* 818,837*  121,047* 3,231,121* 8,431,555 7,605,481 16,037,036
ERENR2ANEEE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - (215363) (215363) 696,038 480,675
HEATEERBRLE  Capital contribution by the
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 197,801 197,801
Ut eatihu n Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - (107,928) - - - (107,928) (2,016,589) (2,124,517)
WEHBAA Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 169626 169,626
RERAK Dividends and distributions - (512,150) - - - - (512,150) - (512,150)
BN THEAT Dividends distributed to a
FERBRRRORE non-controlling shareholder of
the subsidiary - - - - - - - (160,445)  (160,445)
HEHBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (56,960)  (56,960)
BEATRAER Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve - - - 127,065 - (127,065) - - -
HENHEATMSBS  Disposal of partial interests in
& (RREEHE) subsidiaries without losing
control - - 12159 - - - 121599 2,799,691 2,921,290
RZEZ-F As at 31 December 2021
TZh=1-A 199,616  3,635,570* (73,115)* 945,902%  121,047* 2,888,693* 7,717,713 9,234,643 16,952,356

* ZERBEEREGAMBRARNREEE *
AR#7,518,097,000 L (ZE=FF : AR¥

8,231,939,0007T) °

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB7,518,097,000
(2020: RMB8,231,939,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.




RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z-——F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—-§ C_—ZT_ZF
izt ARETR ARETRT
2021 2020
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RETHMEBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 258 A s A1) Profit before tax 1,639,921 5,018,917
HE Adjustments for:
Y% BELREEETE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6,13 31,682 56,206
CHREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,14 26,467 40,224
B B Amortisation of intangible assets 6,16 3,370 2,353
HEM B QA EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 37 39,577 15,264
BN ERAING ERER Gain on re-measurement of the previously

B ) held equity interests in joint ventures (55,914) (26,842)
DIEEEDEREN N EE Share of profits and losses of joint ventures (349,184) (2,026)
DEE & N El RN KR Share of profits and losses of associates (95,563) 19,770
KEMERN DT EES) Changes in fair value of investment properties 15 (17,726) (4,624)
HENE - BEREEEE B (Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property,

(Mz%),/ B8 plant and equipment (1,539) 236
HEZFH W Gain on change of lease (1,523) (3,772)
HE—HEE A RER Loss on disposal of an associate - 1,810
HE—HBEE L EEE Loss on disposal of a joint venture = 12,439
BREREENRERE Impairment losses recognised for financial assets 6 12,403 5,174
BRATEFABRNEREE Fair value gains on financial assets at

NEERE fair value through profit or loss (7,476) (31,344)
BE 5. W % Exchange gain (87,523) (229,208)
REKA Finance costs 1,257,317 1,113,405
MEHEA Interest income (305,334) (75,714)

2,088,955 5,912,268
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RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

124

—B-—-§ C_—ZT_ZF
izt ARETR ARETRT
2021 2020
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BRANERFELED Decrease/(increase) in properties under
BRIWERD /(3EMN) development and completed properties
held for sale 12,303,140 (5,056,933)
HFERD Decrease in inventories = 7,585
FE L FEEE N Increase in land development for sale = (1,987)
JRE UK BB B 5 SRR R Decrease in amounts due from related parties 588,815 303,904
BREE (M), wHY (Increase)/decrease in contract assets (20,350) 50,290
ZREBR S /() Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 157,450 (16,938)
EBETRD /(38 0) Decrease/(increase) in time deposits 3,935,009  (4,142,956)
WMEBEERBM D /(1) Decrease/(increase) in property pre-sale
proceeds 3,440,576  (3,073,914)
IR L o0 Increase in pledged deposits (120,357) (114,696)
Z 5 WA M RN E R R Decrease in trade and bills receivables 113,982 65,346
BNRIE - &e kEA (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
PR FRIB (32 0),/ R > deposits and other receivables (7,705,970) 1,877,018
BIRNTERENEE (Decrease)/increase in trade and bills
CRL),/ 8 m payables (243,422) 1,713,442
HAihER IR ETE R (Decrease)/increase in other payables
CRL),/ 8 m and accruals (490,548) 8,552,209
EHNEERD Decrease in contract liabilities (711,504) (11,460,272)
JEA g 75 SR IR0R D Decrease in amounts due to related parties (1,759,171) (758,033)
RETHFEBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REESE (TR Re Cash generated from/(used in) operations 11,576,605  (6,143,667)
BUFE Interest received 305,334 75,714
RENEAE] Tax paid (2,065,043) (1,798,732)
RETEHRE(FA) Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
ReRETH operating activities 9,816,896  (7,866,685)
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REBRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z-——F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—-§ C_—ZT_ZF
[t et ARETR ARETRT
2021 2020
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RETHMERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries 37 (42,206) 61,023
HEGZ R Disposal of joint ventures - 3,300
HE—FEE AR Disposal of an associate = 25,000
HERATEFTABRED Disposal of financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 811,190 433,140
HEME « BB R&E Disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,475 3,903
Bl —FHE QAR E Dividend received from an associate 4,017 =
BEWME  BELREEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (8,481) (20,678)
BEEWEE Purchase of intangible assets (2,455) (1,711)
Yo B B 2 A) Acquisition of subsidiaries 36 (803,210) 562,711
REBTENEE Investments in joint ventures (423,985) (452,310)
REE & A RINEE Investments in associates (342,490) =
[ Bk 77 B Advances to related parties 39 (7,141,206) (25,332,891)
M EAE T B RE K Repayment of advances to related parties 39 5,027,538 27,970,286
Wit A FER ABREA Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss (1,017,600)  (1,010,460)
AEBEEHBR R SR ER Acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group from
BE AWEKBAR R the then equity holder of the subsidiaries = (59,833)
RETEE (FTA) /e Net cash flows (used in)/generated
RERETH from investing activities (3,932,413) 2,181,480
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RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z=-—F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—-§ C_—ZT_ZF
[t et ARETR ARETRT
2021 2020
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RMETHRERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITRD P15 508 Proceeds from issue of shares - 4,431,802
RO EITHY Share issue expenses = (84,466)
B8 R AISEER AR T & Capital contribution by the non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 197,801 3,115,540
BERKRE Dividends paid (506,556) -
B FIEERRRAR S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders = (83,224)
W s e e i = Acquisition of non-controlling interests (62,602) (2,500)
BENBRRERERREEA Acquisition of equity interests from the then
WA B s e equity holder of the subsidiaries - (3,410,540)
BOHEHRBLAR (REXE Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries
P b4E) P13 FRIE without losing control 2,265,670 21,447
RaR 7 B Advances from related parties 39 8,770,472 1,577,559
BEBH 2R Repayment of advances from related parties 39 (8,347,061) (760,454)
BRI FRER Repayment of pledged deposits 4,188,564 46,951
[REeiEEENIEN Receipt of pledged deposits (3,550,167)  (1,474,866)
BB EZEMEHRIREFH Net proceeds from the issuance of senior notes 31 2,554,313 3,480,265
NEEFERIBFE Net proceeds from the corporate bonds 32 - 497,500
BEEBLEEE Repayment of senior notes (1,293,000) (994,918)
BRELEE Redemption of senior notes 31 (116,039) =
SHERIT REAMER Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and
PS5 3E other borrowings 21,884,601 28,079,738
ERET S IRT REMER Repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (35,400,955) (14,406,853)
BEEEHRHES Repayment of asset-backed securities = (205,551)
HENFNEELS Principal portion of lease payments (32,195) (44,539)
ERFE Interest paid (4,423,306) (5,595,242)
METE (FA),/ s Net cash flows (used in)/generated
RERETH from financing activities (13,870,460) 14,187,649
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HE-Z-——F+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

REBRERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

—E--f —Z_FF
izt AR®TT ARETT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RERBELEEY RY) NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
B hnFEE CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,985,977) 8,502,444
FONHeRREEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,917,900 2,412,297
ERBERBELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 2,931,923 10,914,741
RERBESEYERIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be RIBTHER Cash and bank balances 26 8,448,078 24,304,747
o ZREIRE Less: Restricted cash 26 77,778 54,845
REMEBRERS Cash from property pre-sale proceeds
FIERRE 26 3,741,155 7,181,731
EHER Time deposits 26 330,000 4,265,009
[REEES Pledged deposits 26 1,367,222 1,885,262
BERRARFAFEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS
RBEEEEY STATED IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION 2,931,923 10,917,900
RIELENHNBAREIERS Cash and cash equivalents attributable to
RREZEY a subsidiary held for sale = (3,159)
REeERERMIEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED
REEEY IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 2,931,923 10,914,741
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Bt B R M A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

1. 2EIREEER

ARRR—ZFRZZBE-—NF+=-A+=0%&
AEBRESEMAINEREAR - ZAFIH
ST = EE b3k A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-

1111, Cayman Islands °

RRBRBREERAT - RER > RNEER
FETHEBARZEYERE  NEHER

et EE IR R -

EERA  ARAINERA R REFEFER
N R R L A S S MACZ Y Shinlight

Limited °

BRENEB R AEHR

ARBIEEME A FFEHSMT -

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 13 December 2019. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in
property development, property leasing and the provision of property

management services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Shinlight Limited, which is

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

i/ BRIRE LN
ERMRL/ RIBER HiE EEER
WELAREH frit  BHUREXHE (F7) RERAL TEXH
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
EREE:
Directly held:
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited EERES FIL50 100% REER
Silver Rock Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$50 100%  Investment holding
Shinsun International Holdings Limited EERHS FIL50 100% REER
Shinsun International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$50 100%  Investment holding
BiERE
Indirectly held:
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited i AIL10 100% REER
Golden Stone Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited i AIL10 100% REER
Shinsun Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100%  Investment holding
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited EERUHS eI 100% REER
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100%  Investment holding
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1. 2PEIREEER @)

BEHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIMT :

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
HIRBERAARRAR hE*/ HEA AR#10,000 100% &REER
Zhejiang Xiangshen Business Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Investment holding
RESROEERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#25,000 100% &REER
Zhuji Zhuojie Business Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB25,000 100%  Investment holding
BENESEERAT e/ ERE AR#1,580,000 100% #ERE
Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,580,000 100%  Property development
BAREERERAA i 71,000 100% REER
Xiang Sheng Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%  Investment holding
HERRERAR AERNHS 71.200,000 100% REARER
Xiang Sheng Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$200,000 100%  Investment holding
HIREER R ERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% REER
Zhejiang Shinsun Yiyue Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Investment holding
RERERAERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#70,000 51%  ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xianghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 51%  Property development
AERENAERERAR hE*/ HEA AR%130,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xinhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB130,000 100%  Property development
RERERZERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#39,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB39,000 100%  Property development
AEREERERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#98,039 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 100%  Property development
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1. 2RIREBER @)

BHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MR ELAREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA ABR%100,000 100% #ERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BERERHEREARAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 60% WEA%
Haining Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
RMNE AR EREERAR hE*/ HEA AR%100,000 100% #ERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERERRERERAA R/ HEA AR#80,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
ANEEERERAR R/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Huzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
AN EREREREBRAT R/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Huzhou Shinsun Yiyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
FEREEHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Jiaxing Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
FERLIRRHERYBRAT R/ HEA AR#43,000 100% #ERE
Jiaxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB43,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

BERMBEARIER (&)

ARETENMBRARINFIERHIWMT :

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (@)
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERELREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 80% WEA%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELEEHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 80% WEA%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RLEEERARAT R/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Zhoushan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
RLEENERHEREARAT e/ RER AR%100,000 100% MERE
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
LERBREMEREERAR e/ ER AR%7,200,000 825% MERE
Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB7,200,000 82.5%  Property development
REMHHEFARLA R/ HEA AR%200,000 0% WERE
Taixing Xiangrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
ERAREEREHERYERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 0% WER%
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 90%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
SHREFIEERERAR e/ ERL AR%100,000 100% MERE
Xuancheng Minsheng New Town PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

132

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE LR
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AERERPERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#56,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development
BTREEHEREERAR e/ ERE AR%100,000 100% MERE
Nanping Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
AREEEPERARAT hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 0% WERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Jiyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 70%  Property development
FETFERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 67.8% MERZ
Shanghai Yuanyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 67.8%  Property development
LERAEEARAR hE*/ HEA AR#10,000 67.8% MERZ
Shanghai Xiangdan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 67.8%  Property development
REREEXARAA hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 55%  WIERE
Taixing Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 55%  Property development
EMNFEEXERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% MERE
Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
REREEHEREERARA e/ ER AR%100,000 100% MERE
Wuhan Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
itk R E R EREBRAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% MERE
Xiantao Xiangrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - FFR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERMAL/ RIBER HE LR
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) BEEAL TEER
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (@)
Indirectly held: (continued)
EHTREESERAR e/ ER AR#30,000 100% MERE
Honghu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
BEHIBEXERAR e/ ER AR%100,000 60% MERE
Jinan Xiangshun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 60%  Property development
REREUHEEERAR e/ ER AR#20,000 5% WERE
Liaoning Shinsun Yuedu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
WERBENEREERAR e/ ER AR#20,000 5% WERE
Xiuyan Xiangyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
HIHBREREARAR e/ ER AR#50,000 65% MERERULIRE
Zhejiang Xiangwei Tourism Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 65%  Property development and
cultural tourism
N EREERERAT e/ ER AR%1,100 100%  REHR
Hangzhou Xiangdi Investment Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,100 100%  Investment holding
ERRERHEREERAR e/ ER AR#50,000 100% MERE
Ningho Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
ERAR LR RRHEREERAR e/ ER AR%50,000 100% MERE
Lianyungang Shinsun Lianbao Hongjing Real PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
SRR ERHEREERAR e/ ER AR#50,000 100% WERE
Xuancheng Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

i/ ERITRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MiE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERELREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Haiyan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BMEELEEEARAA hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Chuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BN HEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 80% WEA%
Quzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
HIRERSHEARAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% EEEE
Zhejiang Shinsun Plaza Trading Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Hotel management
RERERHERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#75,000 53% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xianggi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB75,000 53%  Property development
RERERRERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
REREEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#56,000 100% #ERE
Taizhou Wenling Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
MR SIREEZERERAR R/ HEA AR#56,500 100% MEERRULKE
Zhejiang Xiangjing Tourism Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB56,500 100%  Property management and

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%

cultural tourism
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MisE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
BNEELREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 80% WEA%
Quzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REREREERERAA hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangpeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
REREEEARAA hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Aniji Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
HIANEEEHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Zhejiang Taizhou Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WML R R HEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Huzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BRI REHEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Nantong Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ENRELEEHEREERAR e/ ER ARES0,000 80% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BHRELREHEREBRAT e/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Xuancheng Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
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(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
PHTHEEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Zoucheng Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
PHTHLEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Zoucheng Xianghong Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BRI ERHEREBRAT hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Nantong Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
B RN EREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Longyou Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RN ESEERAF R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Wenzhou Shinsun Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
FEREEERHEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Sugian Shinsun Lianbao Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BERERHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#98,039 51%  ERE
Guangde Xiangyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARERHEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Tiantai Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (@)
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERERFERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangtai Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
BERELRRHEREBRAT hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Cixi Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELEEHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ZERAFRTEEREERAA e/ RER ARES0,000 100% MEEENUCKE
Anji Sante Tianye Muge Tourism PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. cultural tourism
ANTRERERHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Taizhou Lugiao Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ENREEHEREERAR L/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Suzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
RERELREHEREERAR L/ HEA AR#50,000 80% A%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELRRHEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Anji Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
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(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE YN
ERMAL/ RIBER HE FERRR
WEARER M  BEARE#ELY (Fr) BEEAL TEER
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of

incorporation/ of registered/

equity interest

establishment and issued share  attributable to

Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities

BMERE : ()

Indirectly held: (continued)

EREHEEARAR hE*/ hEAL AR#48,235 100% WERE

Yueyang Xiongcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB48,235 100%  Property development

e R HEREERAT hE*/ hE A AR#50,000 100% WERE

Linhai Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development

FERERARHEREERAT hE*/ hE A AR#30,000 100% WERE

Changde Shinsun Shuguang Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

EHRELERHEREBRAT hE*/ hE AL ARE50,000 100% WERE

Xuancheng Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

RRERELERHEREBRAT hE*/ RER AK#20,000 100% WERE

Zhangjiagang Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

BNSREEEEERAR (4)  hE/PERN ARE50,000 51%  MERR

Wenzhou Duofu Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development

BERELREHEREBRAT hE*/ hEAY AR%828,000 51% MERE

Longyou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB828,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

AR EEHEREERAR hE*/ RE AL AR#1,240,000 51% MERE

Tongxiang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,240,000 51%  Property development

RMEELEEHEREERAR hE*/ hE AL AR#2,200,000 100% WERE

Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,200,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

BERMBEARIER (&)

ARETENMBRARINFIERHIWMT :

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of

incorporation/

of registered/

equity interest

establishment and issued share attributable to

Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities

MisE : (R)

Indirectly held: (continued)

EREHELRRHEREERAT hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 51% WERE

Dingyuan Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

TR S EREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 60% WEA%

Jiangxi Zhongcheng Shinsun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

MR ELEEHEREERAR (2)  hE/PERY AE#1,076,923 100% HEH%

Hangzhou Shinsun Hongcheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,076,923 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

REAMFHEFARLA hE*/ HEA AR%592,875 100% #ERE

Taixing Tairui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB592,875 100%  Property development

M LR EREERAR e/ ER AR530,000 51%  MERE

Fuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB530,000 51%  Property development

PNEELREHEREERAR I/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE

Yangzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

AEHERBERARAA (4 hE/PERY ARE50,505 51%  MER%

Zhuji Shinsun Xiangyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,505 51%  Property development

RERERRERERAA R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE

Zhuji Shinsun Xiangkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
AERERBERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 0% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Jinghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 70%  Property development
RERERRBERERAA hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Future City Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
AR LR EHEREERAR (2)  hE/PERY ARE50,000 100% HEH%
Dongtai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARELREHERTARAR (2)  hE/PERY AR#153,061 100% HEH%
Tiantai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB153,061 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
AETHERHEREERAR L/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Tianchang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
FMEELREHEREERAR L/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Suzhou Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WomR R EREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Liaocheng Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
RERELBEHEREERAA (4 hE/PERY ARE50,000 51%  MER%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MisE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERLEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Jinan Xianghong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
ERRARHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Guangde Xiangsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BN ELREHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RN ELBE S ERSERAR (2)  hE/PERY AE#1,180,000 100% HEH%
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,180,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
AETHREHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 51% WERE
Tianchang Xiangrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BEREEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR%283,000 51% WERE
Langxi Xiangsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB283,000 51%  Property development
RERELERNEREBRAT R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Anji Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELRERERAA hE*/HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
BARERHEREARAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Lishui Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1. 2RIREBER @)

BHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BARELREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Lishui Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BARELERHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Lishui Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WA EEHEREERAR AT ARE615,000 51% MERE
Huhehaote Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB615,000 51%  Property development
AERELEERERAR e/ ER AR¥558,000 51% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongda Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB558,000 51%  Property development
RLEEAERHEREARAT hE*/ HEA AR¥58,824 100% #ERE
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB58,824 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BRE At ERHEREBRAT R/ HEA AR%92,000 100% #ERE
Nanjing Shinsun Century Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB92,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BREERHEREARAT R/ HEA AR%50,000 100% #ERE
Wuhu Xiangjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MisE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
MIEBH R ERARAR 2 E*/ER AR¥112,500 100% WEEERUCKE
Zhejiang Zhuji Shinsun Tourism Cultural PRC*/Mainland China RMB112,500 100%  Property management and
Development Co., Ltd. cultural tourism
B LR RN EREBR AT R/ HEA AR%35,000 73.01% WERE
Linhai Shinsun Hongjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 73.01%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RETENEHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#35,000 0% WERE
Zhuji Wanyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB35,000 70%  Property development
AERELHERERAR R/ HEA AR%422,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB422,000 100%  Property development
EEREERARAT R/ HEA AR#70,000 60% WERE
Deging Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 60%  Property development
AEREERESERAR R/ HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Zhuji Shinsun Yirui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
ENTARENEARHEREBRAT R/ HEA ARH5,000 100% #ERE
Quzhou Kecheng Jiulonggu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB5,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ERHIEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#70,000 100% #ERE
Guangde Xianghong Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB70,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1. 2RIREBER @)

BHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERMAL/ RIBER HE LR
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) BEEAL TEER
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERHERERAR e/ ER AR#20,000 51% WERE
Jinan Xiangyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 51%  Property development
SAREERRHEREERAR e/ ERE AR#50,000 100% MERE
Xuancheng Shinsun Yunjing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HERELEEXERAR e/ RER AR#30,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongze Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
ERHUEHEREERAR e/ RER AR#50,000 100% MERE
Guangde Xiangyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
MR EECERHEREERAA el /BRI AR#50,000 100%  MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yixin Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BLAREHEREERAR AT AR#30,000 80% A%
Hubei Kaixiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 80%  Property development
ME A E R EREARAT AT AR#30,000 100% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
M ERRERERAR hEl*/hEIRY AR#50,000 62.5% MERERXCKE
Fuzhou Shinsun Construction Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 62.5%  Property development and

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

BERMBEARIER (&)

ARETENMBRARINFIERHIWMT :

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BERE (@)
Indirectly held: (continued)
IEREEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#98,039 100% #ERE
Xianju Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB98,039 100%  Property development
RERELEEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#1,600,000 80% WEA%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongfeng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,600,000 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ARETHEEEARLA hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Hefei Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
RMEELAREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongteng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
PATHERHEREERAR R/ HEA AR%887,000 100% #ERE
Zoucheng Xiangyi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB887,000 100%  Property development
RMNEEENESERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 51%  WERE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guanghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
FEREEHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 60% WEA%
Suichang Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 60%  Property development
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1. 2RIREBER @)

BHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERMAL/ RIBER HE LR
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) BEEAL TEER
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BiERE ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
BT RN EXARAT hE*/PER ARH60,000 100% #xHEE
Hengyang Shanshan Outlets Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB60,000 100%  Property development
AR R HEREERAR hE*/PER ARE50,000 100% #xHEE
Huhehaote Xiangyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WAERR ERHEREERAR e/ RER AR#50,000 100% MERE
Huhehaote Xiangxin Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WHERR REHEREERAR AT AR%50,000 100% MERE
Hohhot Xiang'an Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
AR BEHEREERAR AT AR%50,000 100% MERE
Huhehaote Xiangbo Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ME AR R EREARAT e/ ER AR%2,095,880 80% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongtu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,095,880 80%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
ML EREARAT e/ ER AR%1,200,000 100% WERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongzhi Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MisE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
AETHERHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 60% WEA%
Tianchang Xiangchang Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 60%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HMNEEAZERARAR hE*/HEA AR#20,000 100% WEHEE
Hangzhou Xiangyi Apartment Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property leasing
BRTHEEHEREERAR hE*/HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Nantong Xiangqi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
ERHELBRHERSEERAA (2)  hE/PERY AK#100,000 100% HEH%
Ningbo Shinsun Honghui Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property development
BERARHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EEREEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 100% #ERE
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
ERH LR ERSEERAA (3 hE/PERY AK#100,000 50%  MER%
Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB100,000 50%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BMFEERESERAR R/ HEA AR%200,000 0% WERE
Wenzhou Shinsun Guangou Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB200,000 70%  Property development
BEERFLEERERAA L/ HEA AR%1,000 100% &REER
Nanchang Bintai Management Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Investment holding
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1. 2RIREBER @)

BHENBARIER (&)
ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of

incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest

148

establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERELBERERAA 2 BE+/PER AR#1,000 100% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development
NN EEREHEREERAA 2 BE+/PER ARE50,000 100% WERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yiyuan Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERELEBEERAT e/ ERL AR%1,000 100% MERE
Zhuji Shinsun Honghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,000 100%  Property development
AREREZARAT 2 BE+/wERH ARE50,000 100% WERE
Hefei Xiangwan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
BEREERERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 60% WEA%
Jinan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 60%  Property development
HERARHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#50,000 100% MERE
Nanchang Xianghe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
EEREEHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR#20,000 100% MERE
Dingyuan Xiangjun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
MRS BEHEREERAA El* /BRI AR#872,100 100%  MER%E
Hangzhou Shinshun Hongli Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB872,100 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REFUEHEREERAR e/ ER AR%300,000 100% MERE
Sugian Xiangyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB300,000 100%  Property development

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ BRIRE S
ERRL/ RIBER HE EEER
WELAREH Wi BENRERBE (F7) REAAL TEEHK
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
MisE : (R)
Indirectly held: (continued)
AERAEZERAT hE*/ HEA AR#80,000 100% #ERE
Hefei Xiangchuang Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB80,000 100%  Property development
RERELREHEREERAR hE*/ HEA AR%500,000 100% #ERE
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongxing Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB500,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
REREAASHEREERLA (2)  hE/PERY AR#1,200,000 100% HEH%
Shaoxing Shinsun Hongsheng Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
e LR HEREERAT hE*/ HEA AR#30,000 100% #ERE
Linhai Xianghong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB30,000 100%  Property development
R ELERHERSERAA (2)  hE/PERY ARE50,000 100% HEH%
Zhoushan Shinsun Hongrun Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
HERELRESERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 51% WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BRTHREHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#50,000 100% #ERE
Nantong Xiangrui Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RERNEHEREERAR R/ HEA AR#10,000 100% #ERE
Wenling Xianghe Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 100%  Property development
AR EREARAT R/ HEA ABR#2,900,000 100% WEFRE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongyu Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,900,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

1. 2EIREEER @)
EENBARER (&)

ARETENMBRARINFIERHIAT :

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(%) (continued)
i/ ERITRE LN
ERMAL/ RIBER HE LR
WEARER M RENREELE (F7) BEEAL TEER
Effective
Place and date of Nominal value percentage of
incorporation/ of registered/  equity interest
establishment and issued share  attributable to
Name of subsidiaries Notes  place of operations capital ('000) the Company  Principal activities
BMERE : ()
Indirectly held: (continued)
MM R EREARAR 2 hE*/ERY AR #2,690,000 100% WEFEE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongde Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB2,690,000 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd.
AEREARERERAR e/ ER AR#50,000 5%  WERE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 51%  Property development
BRI BRI EREARAT e/ ER AR#50,000 100% MERE
Quzhou Shinsun Hongho Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd.
EEREEXERAR e/ ER AR#20,000 100% MERE
Jinan Xiangyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC*/Mainland China RMB20,000 100%  Property development
MNEEN A RHEREARAT e/ ER AR#10,000 0% WERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Jiuhe Real Estate PRC*/Mainland China RMB10,000 70%  Property development

Development Co. Ltd.

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (conTiNUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

Notes:

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

This entity is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and,
accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over
it.

The equity interests in these entities legally held by the Group are less than the
beneficiary interests which are attributable to the trust financing arrangements
with the third party financing institutes. The Group legally transferred partial equity
interests of these subsidiaries as collateral as at the date of this report to the trust
financing institutes. Under such trust financing arrangements, the Group was obliged
to purchase the equity interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment
of the borrowings from the trust financing institutes.

Meanwhile, the Group retains the power to operate and manage these entities in the
ordinary course of business. In this regard, considering the facts that the substance
of the arrangements is to collateralise some equity interests in these entities for the
borrowings for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project entities so as to obtain
benefits from the operating activities of these project entities, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the financial position and operating results of these
entities should be combined into the Group's financial statements, irrespective of the
equity transfers from the legal perspective.

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has been delegated 1% of the
voting rights from the other equity holder, and thus, by holding 51% voting rights,
Ningbo Shinsun Hongsheng is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group.

During the year, the Group had capital contribution by the non-controlling
shareholders of these subsidiaries and partially disposed of its equity interests in these
entities without losing control.
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1. ARIREEER @)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management'’s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have
been registered or are available. The legal forms of all the above
disclosed principal subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all standards and interpretations, International Accounting Standards
("IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations)
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTINUED)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, senior notes and corporate bonds amounted to
RMB34,386,436,000, out of which RMB17,247,884,000 will be
due for repayment within the next twelve months, while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,931,923,000. Subsequent
to 31 December 2021, the Group did not repay a principal of
US$19,470,000 (equivalent to RMB123,461,000) and an interest of
US$12,000,000 (equivalent to RMB76,110,000) for certain senior
notes due in January and March 2022 respectively. As a result,
senior notes and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with an
aggregate amount of RMB8,135,267,000 became default or cross-
default and were payable on demand.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of
the Company have undertaken a number of plans and measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including:

(i) The Group has appointed a financial adviser to assist it with a
restructuring of its senior notes, in order to reach a consensual
solution with all the stakeholders as soon as practical;

(i) The Group has been actively negotiating with a number of

financial institutions for renewal, extension and replacement of
bank loans and other borrowings;
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2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTINUED)

Going concern basis (continued)

(iii) The Group will continue to actively communicate with banks to
timely secure relevant project development loans for qualified
project development;

(iv) The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing
and borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital expenditures;

(v) The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing
on the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) The Group has implemented measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and
expenses; and

(vii) The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose
of its equity interest in certain project development companies in
order to generate additional cash inflows.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve months
from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 on a
going concern basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTINUED)

Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the management of the Group will be able to implement the
aforementioned plans and measures, Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern will depend upon the Group's ability
to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows through the
following:

(i) successfully completing the restructuring of its senior notes;
(ii) successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the
renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and other

borrowings;

(iii) successfully securing project development loans for qualified
project development timely;

(iv) successfully obtaining of additional new sources of financing as
and when needed;

(v) successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan
including the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and

expenses; and

(vii) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interest in project
development companies when suitable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

155



156

Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
125EE @)

FEREEE ()

HAEBREFRBREE - BIEEL A
B A K A 5= [ 8 ) R T OB 22 L AT U
e RAREENEAE-—FTAEBIE
G YRERBEENRERBAED
AEFLPEARBDEERRBDAE - %F
HABNTEI AN ZFESMHHRERT R
BL o

REREE

BAMBBRRBEARFRENBERAR (4
BIAKEDHEE=ZZ=Z—F+=-A=1+—
BIEFENFERER HNEBARREHAAR
AREESEELHNNER (REABLLE
B)  EAKEREZEGIRE MRk E
BRI EEIHRAES - WHENRAEHIEE
HEMED (B FASEERNEREEY
KBTS AERN) ¥ EZE B R
BERAS 22 o

HARR EEAEEEFREHRFLEIAT
MR ERE AR - BIAKERFGEE
BAIHKREARITERNFEE E— )18
ZEREBER 8%

(a) BREHRHEMKREREATTLNAR
E7$7 3K

(b) Ef A RZHELRMER &
(0 AREMRERLEERERE -

MERARNPBHRRERARFRA —HNE
AR RR—HREHRERE - HEARN
EEAAEEBSEEZ BREA AR
UHEEAANER  BEZFERERLEZA
ALk e

S 3 B 18 B L At 2 T Y g Y % (B 4B R o3
HRBRARERRARNER A RIFERE
@ M REECRERES LR EM S
B BAKBERE AR HRZEROMAE
KERNBEERARE  #xm - BA  FAXRB
EREBINEARE BB -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTINUED)

Going concern basis (continued)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the carrying values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
2.1BASIS OF PRESENTATION (conTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
IAS 39, IFRS 7,

IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (conTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address

issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalents to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next
24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (conTINUED)

(b) Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021.
However, the Group has not received COVID-19-related rent
concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of application.

The Group has changed its accounting policy of the classification
of the interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
In prior periods, interest paid was classified as cash flows from
operating activities, whereas interest paid is now classified as cash
flows from financing activities (the “Policy Change”). In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is more appropriate to classify
all cash flows in respect of the Group’s borrowings, as cash flows
from financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows
to reflect the nature of the cash flows associated with the Group's
borrowings, including the interest paid as a cost of financing, and will
provide more relevant information about the cash flows associated
with the borrowings. The directors are also of the opinion that such
classification and presentation will provide greater comparability with
other industry peers of the Group. The comparative amounts have
been restated accordingly.
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22 BERBREE @)

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (conTINUED)

TREZHBHRERIBEERNBE_T_—F Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line
EZZB_TF+_A=+—HILFEHARK item was affected for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
KRNI EZ SR as a result of the Policy Change:
—E-—F —T-EF
AR%ET T ARETFIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
REKLETHNRSRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[EANEESS Interest paid 4,423,306 5,595,242
BRAKEEZHIRSMEL N Increase in cash flows related to operating
activities 4,423,306 5,595,242
REMETHNRSRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[EXNEESS Interest paid (4,423,306) (5,595,242)
FRAREEINRSRERD Decrease in cash flows related to financing
activities (4,423,306) (5,595,242)
ReRASEEYEHTFHE NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS -

Tmimﬁﬁlﬁ %D;T“ATE B 1@”&@%

#EZR(EE)ARA — T —EFR

The adoption of the Policy Change has had no impact on the
consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income,

financial position and changes in equity.



230 SEMEERE R 2 BRI
R 2R

AEERRRZEVHHRETRAUTER
B R A R HY T AT MARIE 7T B R B 75 3 5 2
Al o

BUPR B 5 3k & A B 35k (IBFTAN)

Amendments to IFRS 3

BB Bt 75 ¥ 5 22 RS2 1095 %
BIBR = Er2ERIFE 2857 ((B5]4%)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B PR B 5 3R 5 AR BI SR 17 5%
I[FRS 17
BUPR B 5 3R S A BIEE 17 5% (IBFTAN)
Amendments to IFRS 17
BIBR = ET 2RI 158 (BE]AN)
Amendments to IAS 1
BB = ET 2281 55 1 9% R BB B 5 k&
R EBIWEZL25% (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2
BIBR = ETERIZE R (B3] 4N)
Amendments to IAS 8
BIBR =25 RIS 1257 (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 12

Bl ERIZE 1657 (BRI A)

Amendments to IAS 16

Bl 25 RIS 3757 (BFTA)

Amendments to IAS 37

ZE - N\FEF-_TFEEAE
EER 2 FE

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

1 KRB —_F-H-HIZERBZFERRE
£33

2 R-ZE_=F-A-BRZERRZFESRHEE
53

3 HIAREEERGIAEREE - AR
B R — T = TR X B AR O B R B 7 S R B
FATHRZETAN - BRMBREENFARCAE
HERT - ABEAERHE  AFRBAFANR-E
—=F-A-RZARENFEERRERERE
sHAERISE 39 5% M SFBIFR A1 5 3R 5 2R RIS 9 5%

BEHHERARNAREZZERRU B RS E
A2 E—TERR T X#E A -

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

BERNEZR 2 $2it
Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
REZFHAMENAHEELFEEELESHTE’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

RER & 492

Insurance Contracts?

RERE 4924

Insurance Contracts®*

BESE BB IE T E?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

BHBEZ B

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

EEHbET 2 E &2
Definition of Accounting Estimates?
ELBE X SHKER B EEBEELHIA?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?
VI - BE KR - BEE RS BT TS kA
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use'
ERIEE R — BRI
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'
HTEIPRA 5 e 2RI 1 5% - BIBR BT RS #R & 2ERIFE 958
(IEETAR) - BRI & ERIE 1695 K
BURR ezt ERIE 41 5 BEHT B EE 11
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was

amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (CONTINUED)

The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an
effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial
application of these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred
tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. There is no adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
due to the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments is
insignificant.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (CONTINUED)

The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

e |FRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, respectively, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associate or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associate or joint ventures.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
FVTPL at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, investment properties and a subsidiary
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified
as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-
current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

3.33-5.00%
25.00-33.33%
20.00-33.33%

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and
electronic devices

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and useful lives
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents equipment under
installation and car campaign under construction, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and installation.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
leasehold property interests held as right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of each
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to
sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of
finished goods comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses and related tax.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor areas (“GFA") to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated according
to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 10
years, which is based on the expected period of usage and economic
benefits brought by the software.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office buildings
Motor vehicles

2 to 6 years
5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land held
as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“properties under development” or “completed properties held for
sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The corresponding
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of office equipment (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased assets is capitalised
at the present value of the lease payments and related payments
(including the initial direct costs) and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income
on the net investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for the expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 -

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds,
asset-backed securities, trade and bills payables, other payables, and
amounts due to related parties.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS
15.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
a. Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For a property development and sales contract for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the physical possession, or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has the present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.

b. Property management services

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered, and the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

c¢. Management consulting services

Consulting service income derived from the provision of support
services in connection with the development of property projects is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered, and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs.

d. Hotel services

Hotel revenue is recognised when the services have been rendered.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

195



196

Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

LABREFTBERE &)

WAER (&)
I B E A HR A
AL WA

A% WA SRS B B B2 R AR - B
BT EBAFENTRREN RAELNE
SRR AUA o

HWA

R8I\ 2 e 2050 B IS PR RERR -
FRARFI RO 8 96 5 B T AR TR BRIk
B2 KRR ST RESREAEETEE
2RI o

P 5 I TR i TE Pl B ER SR IR 2 A ) B
T JE B L AR B A B RO A B A 2R P BE O
AEE  AREESRERTFEHFTE -

BNARE

EMAERASEERABEmIRBA
W B % PSRN SR E B (AREE B%E)
R - aNEERAKEETAN (BEE
HEEMIMBENEFRETER) KHHERR
WA e

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received, or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Contract assets

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the
revenue to which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

Employee retirement benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion of these
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The only obligation of
the Company with respect to the central pension scheme is to make
the required contributions. No forfeited contribution under the central
pension scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than
one accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences
eligible for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and is
limited to the difference between the hypothetical interest amount for
the functional currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred
for foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that
did not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous years should not
be capitalised in subsequent years.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTINUED)

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements is presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency, because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The directors consider that the Group has the capability to continue
as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which may
give rise to business risks, that may individually or collectively cast a
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Classification between investment properties and completed properties
held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Significant financing component

In determining the transaction price of property sales, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
timing value of money if the timing of payments agreed by the parties
to the contract provides the Group with a significant benefit of
financing.

Certain advance payments received from customers provide a
significant financing benefit to the Group. Although the Group
is required by the government to place all deposits and periodic
payments received from the pre-completion sales in a stakeholder’s
account, the Group is able to benefit from those advance payments
as it can withdraw money from that account to pay for construction
costs on the project. The advance payments received in effect reduce
the Group's need to rely on other sources of financing.

The amount of the financing component is estimated at the inception
of the contract. After contract inception, the discount rate is not
updated for changes in interest rates or other circumstances, such as
a change in credit risk. The period of financing is from the time that
the payment is received until the transfer of goods to the customers is
completed.

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate is based on whether the Group is determined to
have control, joint control or significant influence over the investee,
which involves judgements through the analysis of various factors,
including the Group's representation on the chief decision-making
authorities of an investee, such as the board of directors’ meetings
and shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and circumstances.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)
Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

The Group has entered into voting right entrustment agreements
or articles of association with the equity holders of some entities,
pursuant to which the equity holders have agreed to entrust their
voting rights attached to certain equity interests in these entities to
the Group. Consequently, the Group considers that it controls these
entities, notwithstanding the fact that it does not hold the majority
equity interest. Accordingly, these entities have been accounted
for as subsidiaries during the year. As disclosed in note 1 (2) to the
financial statements, the Group legally transferred partial interests of
some entities as collateral to independent trust financing institutes
under financing arrangements, pursuant to which the Group was
obliged to repurchase the equity interests held by trust companies
at a fixed amount upon repayment of the borrowings. The Group is
exposed to variable returns from its involvement and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the relevant activities of
these entities in the ordinary course of business. The trust financing
institutes earn fixed returns from their investments and their rights in
these entities are considered protective in nature. In this regard, the
investments from trust financing institutes are treated as liabilities of
the Group and these investees are considered as subsidiaries.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below:



3. EXEFHETRMAF @)

155 THHBIAE (&)
SRR RS S A B 38 T Y 2B

AEBBERTFVEMBIEHENDRIYE
BN EA BB FEZRANBREEIIR - &
SEREBEABEERLEBAMENLEE - &
RBITMREFEE - BERPYERTRA
NIHEMRELNKA

fERTRAE N - REEFERD - RIA]
SIFEGR D LRI AMER AR ER
PR RISIEHEN D R T Y EHREMS -
S EAER A R o ERBRERERG
AREEZRR  SRZAEBRLEEHNHNEY
YIEOREE B BELRERR -

FEIREATER ([R5 ])

AEEABATBECRMEH - ARNB A
BURNETEEHAKIL S R BHER - 1
EEMEH RSB B AR AN B BTE A
BUOE  ERMEMBBBRERTEMET R
HIER KR - MR FEENRETRBERE R
RIEARREHEEE  ZRSEME LN
HAEH AT ARBEERE

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for properties under development and completed properties held
for sale

The Group's properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices,
the costs of completion of properties under development, and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result
in a provision for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods
in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for income
taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which
the differences realise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are included in note 19
to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has four reportable operating
segments which are property development, property leasing, hotel
operations and the provision of property management services.
The property leasing segment, hotel operations segment and
the provision of property management services segment have no
significant contribution to the revenue and net assets. The Group’s
chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results of the
Group as a whole, and accordingly, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by segment is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group
are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers
under common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue for each reporting period.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

5. W - HA R K 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WA DATIAT - An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—EB-—F —ETHF
AR¥T T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEEH W= Revenue from contracts with customers 43,642,561 46,599,222
At 2 7 Revenue from other sources
IEZIEN-CION Property lease income 76,467 39,191

43,719,028 46,638,413

EF&E# Nz Revenue from contracts with customers
a) Ao hmER a) Disaggregated revenue information
EmRAREER Types of goods or services:
Y SHE Sale of properties 43,560,590 46,487,347
)2 E IR AR TS Property management services 17,323 12,084
B G e Hotel operation = 16,408
B IR AR TS Management consulting services 64,648 83,383
P A HBI S Total revenue from contracts with customers 43,642,561 46,599,222
WS R Timing of revenue recognition:
R H B R % Properties transferred at a point in time 43,560,590 46,487,347
i PRy ] 8 e AR 765 Services transferred over time 81,971 111,875
BEA B Total revenue from contracts with customers 43,642,561 46,599,222

TRHEINBRERVFTAEHNEBRERRE The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the

HEERARRBAHAREBRITHROE TR current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities

REW S FE at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

—E-—F —E-FF
ARBT T ARBTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R E I AGLHBER Revenue recognised that was included
EERE in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:
MEIEE Sale of properties 42,527,785 41,692,890
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—EF - —%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (conTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the properties
and the Group has already received the payment or has the right to
receive the payment probably.

Property management services

For property management services, the Group recognises revenue
when the services are provided on a monthly basis and the Group
has a right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value
of performance completed. The Group has elected the practical
expedient not to disclose the remaining performance obligations for
these types of contracts. The majority of the property management
service contracts do not have a fixed term. The term of the contracts
for pre-delivery and property management services is generally set to
expire when the counterparties notify the Group that the services are
no longer required.

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance
to date. The Group has elected the practical expedient not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations for these types of contracts.
The majority of the management consulting service contracts do not
have a fixed term. The term of the contracts for pre-delivery and
consulting services is generally set to expire when the counterparties
notify the Group that the services are no longer required.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

5. Wz - HtW AR WS 4

EFEHKE (8)
b) BHEF (M)
EEBARYE (£)
R+—A=+—8%

REHRTRHOEME (K
BIT BN NETT) MR ZERTENT ¢

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

b) Performance obligations (continued)

Management consulting services (continued)

December are as follows:

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

—E-—F —EToFF
AR¥T R AR¥BTIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR R RA 2R Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
R—FA Within one year 41,834,067 37,526,237
R—F#& After one year 35,289,725 43,882,495
77,123,792 81,408,732
Hi WA R a=mm ST n T - An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:
—B-—f —EBFF
AR®T T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
HAbu A K& s Other income and gains
LN Subsidy income 41,364 32,384
RATEF ABENES R Investment income from financial assets at
BERERA fair value through profit or loss 6,040 31,285
HEGEERE Gain on disposal of joint ventures 55,914 14,403
BWE & Deposit forfeiture 10,025 4,405
HEME - BERZE Gain on disposal of items of property,
18 B ;9 4zs plant and equipment 1,539 553
Hth Others 14,756 25,591
129,638 108,621

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

B —F_FHF
Kizz AR®BTr ARETT
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEFERA Cost of inventories sold 21 39,119,606 38,171,068
BiRREREA AR Cost of services provided 27,811 32,506
ARV FERAREEE Impairment losses recognised for
properties under development 20 - 14,277
BREREENREREE Impairment losses recognised for
financial assets 22,24 12,403 5,174
M - HEREREITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 13 31,682 56,206
HREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 26,467 40,224
A EE Amortisation of intangible assets 16 3,370 2,353
R AHEBETED Lease payments not included in the
HEMZ measurement of lease liabilities 14(c) 5,517 14,221
ishilha Listing expense = 51,889
1% £ B 57 B Auditor’s remuneration 8,800 6,833
BEBAMFAZ (BREER Employee benefit expense
=11 A B (including directors’ and chief
(MI5E8)) = executive’s remuneration (note 8)):
ITERF® Wages and salaries 763,868 826,193
BRIRE I Pension scheme contributions 76,128 73,628
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

7. AR R 7. FINANCE COSTS
WIS AR DT T ¢ An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—EB-—F —ETF
AR¥TR AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
B ERHFE Interest on loans and borrowings 3,683,091 4,304,057
BEEENFE Interest on senior notes 461,827 278,737
ERFHFE Interest on corporate bonds 38,605 3,164
BEERKHBESNFE Interest on asset-backed securities = 15,464
HESBEHFE Interest on lease liabilities 6,601 7,771
WA HEENF RS Interest expense arising from revenue contracts 722,530 1,541,798
WIEE N FEFTABRA Total interest expense on financial liabilities
THEBENENSRX not at fair value through profit or loss 4,912,654 6,150,991
B BAMEFE Less: Interest capitalised (3,655,337) (5,037,586)
1,257,317 1,113,405
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

8. EERESTHAEEM 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
RIEEMAA - BB R RIEHIE383(1)(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

(b) ~ () RMNERAR (BBRESFZER) pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
BOIE—PRBCFRNEEREZTHAE the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

BT (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
—E-—F —ET-FF
AR¥T T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 640 121
H A 3REN - Other emoluments:
e RMEREYH = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,023 11,171
RS EIHR A SR Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 408 388
10,431 11,559
11,071 11,680
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

8. EERBRSITHAEBEM )

() BLHFBTEE

E#HXELE - BABAERT ZRAIEER -
T TRFETA-_+HEZREARRRARELI
HITER -

FAXNTELIFATEENEENT ¢

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Kon Man, Mr. Ma Hongman and Mr. Ding Jiangang were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company on
20 October 2020.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
were as follows:

—E-—F —ETHF

AR®T T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

FBELE Mr. Wong Kon Man* 240 41
BEg S E Mr. Ma Hongman 200 40
T 2R f A& Mr. Ding Jiangang 200 40
640 121

* IFRXEAR-_BE__F-A=+—HBHEERA
RAIBVIFNITES  MEBELER =T ==
= BEZAEARARBMIFNITES -

FRAVEMBILIENTES I FTHEMBEE
(ZZ=TF  #|) o

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%

*  Mr. Wong Kon Man resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 31 January 2022 and Mr. Hung Yuk Miu was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1 March 2022.

There was no other emolument payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2020: nil).
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Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (coNnTINUED)

(b)Executive directors and the chief executive

Certain of the Company’s directors received remuneration from the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group for their appointment as
directors of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these
directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries is
set out below:

e R EBiRE
REYF = Bl FEN e
AR® T AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T 2021
HITES : Executive directors:
— PRERE A& — Mr. Chen Guoxiang 1,350 - 1,350
— BREAR kA& — Mr. Chen Hongni 4,700 103 4,803
— B E — Mr. Han Bo* 2,500 240 2,740
—HEREE — Mr. Zhao Leiyi 833 65 898
9,383 408 9,791
—T T 2020
HITES : Executive directors:
— PREIRESo A — Mr. Chen Guoxiang 1,350 = 1,350
— BRaAR A — Mr. Chen Hongni 4,700 62 4,762
— ik > — Ms. Yao Xiaozhen* 2,500 163 2,663
—HERLE — Mr. Zhao Leiyi 2,500 163 2,663
11,050 388 11,438

* BB EITR T —F_ARHEEAAAH
TEERBREEN-_ZT-_—F=A+-HEZ
ERARARIMITES -

FA - MBEEFHERTHRABTLNER
Al E A A 155% o

*  Ms. Yao Xiaozhen resigned as an executive director of the Company on 5 February
2021 and Mr. Han Bo was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 12
March 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

213



214

Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
9. EIEBREHMES

HEZZ-_—F+-A=+—HILFE -
AR THEEREMEBEE (==
THE: —REF)  EHEMFBEEHN LM
H8 - HE—ZT-_—F+-—A=+—HLHF
B HEHB=FR(ZT=F : NEEZF) I
RAAREENMEEETBRABNERRTEE
REBEFBAT ¢

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December
2021 included 2 directors (2020: 1 director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the remaining 3 (2020: 4
directors) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

—E-—F —T-TF

AR®Tx ARETIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

e R REYEAR Salaries, allowances, bonus and benefits in kind 6,400 14,560
BN EIER LSRR Pension scheme contributions and social welfare 666 649
7,066 15,209

FMNFTIRENFEZNIERSITEA
BM&=FHMES ABWMT

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

—B=—F —EF_%F

ARMT T ARETT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

500,001 87T 1,000,000/ 7T HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 - -
1,000,001/87C% 1,500,000/ HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - =
1,500,001/87C%2,000,000/7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - -
2,000,00187L%2,500,00087  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - -
2,500,00187L%3,000,00087C  HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 -
3,000,00187L%3,500,000/87C  HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 1
3,500,001/87C%4,000,000/87C  HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - -
4,000,00187C%4,500,000/87C  HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 /87T %5,000,00087C  HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 3
3 4

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
10.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong were not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profits currently arising in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject
to PRC corporate income tax with a tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) for
the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures, including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review
and approval by the local tax bureau.

—E-—F —E-TF
ARET T ARET T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

BVEAFRIE : Current tax:
THEEH Corporate income tax 936,645 1,456,612
T HIIE(ET LAT 343,261 581,575
FIETIE (FEE19) Deferred tax (note 19) (120,660) (72,641)
FABIEX KA Total tax charge for the year 1,159,246 1,965,546
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
10. FREBL (@)
BARRQ R RERE 2 M B A R M ATE /A

REXERERFERORT AN ERNPIE
BRAX EBRERMERERAERNREHRAX

10.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax

HIERERAME (AVAEM X ) BT R expense at the effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
BRAAT - applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate are
as follows:

—E-—F —ETF

AR®ET T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5% B g A Profit before tax 1,639,921 5,018,917

BEEMSHEGHE At the statutory income tax rate 498,699 1,296,947
AR Expenses not deductible for tax 102,736 64,500
IR A Income not subject to tax = (593)

BELEEBERT

Profits and losses attributable to joint

&5 5 T & 518 ventures and associates (111,187) 4,436
RIERILIEEE Tax losses not recognised 295,731 134,088
RUEFR AT R R = 5 Unrecognised deductible temporary

differences 115,821 29,987
T IR ET R Provision for LAT 343,261 581,575
IR EMRB G E Tax effect on LAT (85,815) (145,394)
BAREEEERREFENH B N Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 1,159,246 1,965,546

BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE  H
EEECERBMERNREMBTEEILAA
R¥ 186,046,000 (ZE =5 F : ARM
42,845,0007T) c BE_TE-_—F+_-_A=
+—HIEFE  DEEECERBENFE
EFREE R A ARE37,797,000T (ZE =
T4 AR#48,759,0007T) ° 2SS EH
AAGHERRAIDEAELERBEA
AR F RBRIET -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

The share of tax charges attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB186,046,000 (2020: RMB42,845,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The share of tax credit attributable to
joint ventures and associates amounted to RMB37,797,000 (2020:
RMB48,759,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021. These
amounts are included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
10.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the following:

—E-—F —T-EF
AR¥T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEASBiE : Tax payable:

TEMER Corporate income tax 1,583,988 1,799,027
T B E LAT 461,003 610,167
FE T IR 4R %R Total tax payable 2,044,991 2,409,194

1"MKE 11.DIVIDENDS

AR RO BEERFRENEZ =
TERHARBEFR0.208 T © AL A
608,680,600/ 7T ' EHRRENR=_ZT=—%F
NATNBRITHREBAFERE EHE -

EEDHRTERAFEEARBBE -

NBAREERSERAARLE
B (E18) BF

BREABINEENREBEE AR L BERT
EABRMGFRENRFEANDETEBRM
W 15%03,043,403,0001 (— =T 4 :
2,472,468,2710%) 51 & -

HRAREERBE T - —FR T _TF
+-— A=+ BLEEYEDRTEECHS
LR M ERBEE T FR T
TE+ A=+ HALEFEZINERER
BN CBEEDEEHE -

The proposed 2020 final dividend of HK$0.20 per share, distributed
out of the Company’s share premium account, amounting to a total
of approximately HK$608,680,600 was approved by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting on 18 June 2021.

The Directors have resolved not to declare any final dividend for the
year.

12.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
3,043,403,000 (2020: 2,472,468,271) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

NBAREBEEBEAAELSE  12.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
B (&E8), BF @ ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)
BRERREESRNSHENAEER The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts
are based on:
—B-—-F —EEF
AR®T T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZR Earnings
SRR EEERSFEA Profit attributable to ordinary equity
FE(R)5 A holders of the parent (215,363) 2,646,006
a2 d=
Number of shares
—B-—fF —E-FF
2021 2020
4l Shares
FRE BT BN Weighted average number of ordinary
F5 2k shares in issue during the year 3,043,403,000 2,472,468,271
BREF Earnings per share
EXRREE Basic and diluted AR¥(0.07)t ARK1.077T

RMB(0.07) Yuan RMB1.07 Yuan

218 HEZR(EE)ERAE —T——F4F8
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BORME
BT RE  RETF#E HEIR HEXE @zt
ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT  AR¥TR
Office
equipment
and
Motor electronic ~ Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices in progress improvements Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=B=-F+ZA=+-H 31 December 2021
RZE-—F-f-H: At 1 January 2021:
A Cost 173,859 64,297 75,545 4,344 87,117 405,162
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (105,463) (51,736) (54,866) - (65,965)  (278,030)
REHE Net carrying amount 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127,132
RZEZ-%5-f—-H" At 1 January 2021, net of
Nk 2:E accumulated depreciation 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127,132
WE Additions - 2,211 4,911 1,017 30 8,481
SRARENE (W&15) Transferred from investment
properties (note 15) 6,800 - - - - 6,800
g3 Transfers - - - (1,824) 1,824 -
WEREAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 57 - - - 57
HEZR Disposals - (454) (8,127) - (355) (4,936)
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - (180) - - - (180)
ENERLE (Hf6) Depreciation provided during
the year (note 6) (3,940) (5,217) (9,787) - (12,738) (31,682)
RZFZ-FTZA=t—H'  At31 December 2021, net of
NBREHE accumulated depreciation 71,256 8,978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672
MZFZ—F+ZA=t-H:  At31December 2021:
A Cost 180,659 55,442 70,124 3,537 88,874 399,443
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (109,403) (46,464) (58,448) - (78,649)  (293,771)
REHE Net carrying amount 71,256 8,978 11,676 3,537 10,225 105,672
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

B.YE  BERKE @)

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

BT g REFRE LR HERE &5
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETRL
Office
equipment
and
Motor electronic  Construction Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices in progress  improvements Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZB-BF+ZA=1-A 31 December 2020
RZEZZE-F-RH: At 1 January 2020:
A Cost 536,714 75,113 113,220 2,748 77,431 805,226
Zitihe Accumulated depreciation (89,629)  (49,604) (78,748) - (48,009)  (265,990)
FEFE Net carrying amount 447,085 25,509 34,472 2,748 29,422 539,236
RZEZZ5-f-H" At 1 January 2020, net of
1k 25t E accumulated depreciation 447,085 25,509 34,472 2,748 29,422 539,236
AE Additions - 4,809 3,601 1,59 10,672 20,678
SRERENE (WEF15) Transferred to investment
properties (note 15) (359,905) - - - - (359,905)
AN Acquisition of subsidiaries - - Q1 - = 41
HESE Disposals - (2,607) (980) - (551) (4,138)
HERBAT Disposal of subsidiaries (1,745) (3,148) (7,681) - - (12,574)
ENERLE (o) Depreciation provided during the
year (note 6) (17,039) (12,002) (8,774) - (18,391) (56,206)
RZZ-ZE+-F=F+-H  At31 December 2020, net of
NBEHE accumulated depreciation 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127,132
BWZZZFETZA=+-H:  At31December 2020:
A Cost 173,859 64,297 75,545 4,344 87,117 405,162
Zitihe Accumulated depreciation (105,463)  (51,736) (54,866) - (65,965)  (278,030)
REFE Net carrying amount 68,396 12,561 20,679 4,344 21,152 127,132

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H  A&EEK@
EEL A AREE,030,0007T (T =T 4F :
E)NETEFEER  BASEEENE
77 R E A AR IR (BI5E30) o

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB6,030,000 (2020: nil) were
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group

(note 30).




13. Y% - BERXE &

RZF-_—F+-A=+—8 #EDX.
BERRE(ZZ-FF : ) CEH - K
B ERAOIRITIER R (HEE39) -

148

EEEEREAEA

REBREFTERAEIBEHEAR - BF
BHRENHEEBEA2E6F URABERE
WA —MASE - WARENHEPBES A
2@ A AR K AR R BN EERE -
—ME AEBETAI AL EAIALE
EROTERESE -

(a) EHEELE

AEEEAREAENEAERNENNED
T

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTINUED)

At 31 December 2021, no property, plant and equipment (2020:
nil) were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the related
parties (note 39).

14.LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office buildings and motor vehicles.
Leases of office buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and
6 years, and leases of motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 5
years. Office equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less
and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

BFE ] Fohy
ARETRT AREBTRT ARETR
Office Motor
buildings vehicles Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-_ZFTF—HF—H As at 1 January 2020 112,991 230 113,221
NE Additions 13,017 = 13,017
EHSHE A HE 2 Revision of a lease term arising from
FEHmERMEREE a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (11,950) - (11,950)
weEEA (MEe) Depreciation charge (note 6) (40,129) (95) (40,224)
RZZE-_ZTF+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2020
R=ZZT-—4%—H—H and 1 January 2021 73,929 135 74,064
NE Additions 15,062 - 15,062
H & HAE A AT 2 Revision of a lease term arising from
SEmMERMHIE a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (4,537) - (4,537)
WEEA (Mite) Depreciation charge (note 6) (26,372) (95) (26,467)
RZZEZ_—F+-HA=+—H Asat31 December 2021 58,082 40 58,122
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

14.788 »)

EEEESEBEA (8)
(b) HER &
FR - HERENREERESHNT

14.LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

: The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

—EB-—F —E-TF
ARET T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R—A—B®EAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 86,117 125,590
FEE New leases 13,212 13,017

E & S A s 2 Revision of a lease term arising from a change
& &) ) 28 By 7 HE in the non-cancellable period of a lease (6,060) (15,722)
FRE MR S IEIE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 6,601 7,771
(NEN Payments (32,195) (44,539)
R+—A=+—HZE@EE Carrying amount at 31 December 67,675 86,117
—E-—F —E_TF
AR%T T ARBTTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

Pak =1 Analysed into:

mENE D Current portion 32,332 34,207
JERBNE D Non-current portion 35,343 51,910

HE B EH BT EM B BER M E 42 B The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42 to the

= o

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%

financial statements.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

1478 @) 14.LEASES (CONTINUED)
EEBERARBA (8) The Group as a lessee (continued)
() REm RN BAMEN LT - (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
follows:
—EB-—F —E-THF
AR%T T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEAEFE Interest on lease liabilities 6,601 7,771
EREEENEER (He6) Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (note 6) 26,467 40,224
SHEENEESRY (HiEe6) Expense relating to short-term leases (note 6) 4,607 13,237
EEEEEHER Expense relating to leases of low-value
HERX (FE6) assets (note 6) 910 984
RERERNASHE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 38,585 62,216

(d) B HREMEEIS(OR42HDFIFEETHE (d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating

WIRERHARRERRRALRNEES to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 35
FEARRIRE M © (c) and 42, respectively, to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 223



224

Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

14.788 »)

AEEESHBEA

REERBCLHELHHBEEREYE
(FIEE15) - HAGEFBE T 2K P Z(THEA
Re WIRIRE RFIRR TSR HES#ETE
HAE  AEBRAFERIZNESHRASR
AR¥76,467,000L (ZE=—ZF : ARK
39,191,0007t) © B EFFIEE R B R FHT
55 °

R-ZB_—F+-_HA=1+—H8 AFERK
REARR AR N P RGH & & E e B 1 P YR

14.LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB76,467,000
(2020: RMB39,191,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

HARTIRBAERZIOT - with its tenants are as follows:
—B-—fF —E-TF
AR¥T T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
A —FKN Within one year 94,905 96,985
—F U EERMER After one year but within two years 46,894 96,950
RFA EER=ZFR After two years but within three years 45,720 44,437
=FLA FEREEA After three years but within four years 39,271 44,404
WEA EBERAFA After four years but within five years 34,051 39,799
AFE After five years 83,246 120,964
344,087 443,539

#EZR(EE)ARA — T —EER
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—EB-—F —E_TF

AR¥T T AREF T

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

R—A—HBZERmE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,018,554 1,492,630
EEEYE  BERZE Transferred from property, plant and

(PfFEE13) equipment (note 13) = 359,905
M - BB REEERE Revaluation gains on transfer from property,

REYHE 2 Bl plant and equipment to investment properties = 161,395
EEEE AW (M313) Transfer to owner-occupied property (note 13) (6,800) =
NEERABMEREFE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 17,726 4,624
R+ A=+—HZEAEE Carrying amount at 31 December 2,029,480 2,018,554

REEZREYHEMR R EAH o BRIFEBEL
BEELERGEMPEHITAET ZHE -
REB 7 REYMENR-—ZT-—F+-A=+
—BaRlEHHBERAR2,029,480,000
T (ZE=FF : AR®¥2,018,554,000
TL) c AKEZEISDEEMBEEAEEY
FRHNEDEE c BURERBEMIZHNZ - &
E2 BUYURREHEBEFERE - ASEH
= AR B TS A ER A Ik B A R SR 1 T (B A B
BRI SR A E R R ES

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H  A&£EEAE
E# A AR ¥ 240,500,0007T (Z B -T4F :
AR#244,900,0007T) B MEC LD -
BAE EERAIRIT & E A S FEE IR (B
££30) o

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2021 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at RMB2,029,480,000
(2020: RMB2,018,554,000). The Group appoints an external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
chief financial officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed for
financial reporting.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment properties with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB240,500,000 (2020:
RMB244,900,000) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 30).
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

15.R&EM*x @ 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

NFEER Fair value hierarchy

TRITAEEREMENRTFEAUEE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
IS the Group's investment properties:

RoB--F+-A=t-AEAUATAXETHATENE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

RERTS EXTBE EATAEE

HRME BARE BAYE
(B—-%4) (E=8) (B=4) @t
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000

S TEEETNAREEATEE ©  Recurring fair value measurement for:

BRTHEENE Commercial properties completed - - 2,029,480 2,029,480

RIB-ZRFE+ A=t -ARAUTIAETHATENER
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

WERTS BEAUHE EALIEER

HR(E BARE BARR
(B-8H) (B=8) (F=) @zt
ARETFT ARETT ARETR ARETT

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FATEEETHEEEATENE:  Recurring fair value measurement for:

BRTEENE Commercial properties completed = = 2,018,554 2,018,554
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

BEFIMETHT_A=1t—H
Range or weighted average
31 December

(ENIEESl] BERNAERGASE —EC-F —Z_TF

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2021 2020

ERIEENE Wa % BHRSER AR¥13-1410 ARK15-1387C

(BFAARKREAR)
Completed commercial Income approach Expected rental value RMB13-141 RMB15-138
properties (per square metre and per day)

B x 3%-6% 3%-6%

Capitalisation rate 3%-6% 3%-6%

ERTIEEDENATFENDEBWDAE
o AERBBANRBEHREMER, %
ERAEMS EARBNERSEA - BB
HREENERBAENEEERE  AER
HEENEAMERETENLABERFE -
EEEBRT  NEZELERETHATE
HENEERS °

AR & ARSI OAD) B ERBED
FORTEAREN ORD) - AA(LE KR
10 () BE IR AN E N AT EAR
L (50) -

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined using
the income approach by taking into account the rental income of
the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable in
the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market has also been considered.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease (increase) in
the fair value of the investment properties.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

15.REME &)

RFEELR (&)

BRAZHBERBEVENRIFEEBLEE
EBE K2EZE@AMS LAUELBNESE
R (2E ) EHRRIA TIE B RIS H M ER
AFE(BRREERT) :

s MEHEBHEESHWERRTHELNMGRE
REA - ZHEAA  BEERER  BEK
AREXER :

. THLEEBARMENEERINE
Bt st R o

EHHSEEES  BERERREMEN
RNFEMER -

AERERES  BERERREMENLDF
BERE -

BEHANERES  BEREZREVENR
FEBIE -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of most of the commercial properties under construction
was determined using the comparison method, with reference to
comparable rental prices as available in the relevant market to derive
the fair value of the properties assuming they were completed and,
where appropriate, after deducting the following items:

e Estimated construction cost, marketing cost, management fees,
finance costs and professional fees to be expensed to complete
the properties that would be incurred by a market participant;

e Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the properties to completion.

A higher expected rental value would result in a higher fair value of
the investment properties under construction.

A higher capitalisation rate would result in a lower fair value of the
investment properties under construction.

A higher expected profit margin would result in a lower fair value of
the investment properties under construction.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

16. B EE

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

—EB-—F —E_TF
AR¥T T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
B4 Software
R—H—H At 1 January
[N Cost 18,542 17,306
R5THESE Accumulated amortisation (7,710) (5,634)
R—A— BB Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
Mk R T8 amortisation 10,832 11,672
NE Additions 2,455 1,711
HEMB AR (FFE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) = (198)
FREH RS (Fiske) Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) (3,370) (2,353)
W+=ZA=+—8 At 31 December 9,917 10,832
%N Cost 20,997 18,542
S 5 Accumulated amortisation (11,080) (7,710)
RENFE Net carrying amount 9,917 10,832
17. REELENRE 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-—F —E_TF
ARET T ARETT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
DIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,467,007 1,164,904

REBEA 2 DR A B KSR SRS R
BRI BRI FE39

The Group's receivable and payable balances with joint ventures are
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
1T AEELENRE @)

(a) FEEXESL X (2BEERTER
HEE) FBT

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures, all of which

principally operate in Mainland China, are as follows:

REEERS
AR A FrEgRs
NAEH R E G WEE (T7r) WEAL TEED
Percentage
Nominal value  of ownership
of registered interest
Place and year share capital attributable
Name of companies of registration ('000)  tothe Group Principal activities
AN RELEHERERRAR (DM REE]) MENI-T—tF ARH#50,0007 50% MERE
Huzhou Jiaotou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2017 RMB50,000 50%  Property development
("Huzhou Jiaotou Shinsun")
ANRERBREERERAR (DAMRERER]) MEMI—T—tF ARH50,0007 50% MERE
Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2017 RMB50,000 50%  Property development
("Huzhou Wuxing Jiaotou")
MAELESEREREARAR (MMNEEER]) MEMI—T—tF ARH50,0007 60% MERE
Hangzhou Shinsun Yijing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2017 RMB50,000 60%  Property development
("Hangzhou Shinsun Yijing")
MMCRERERERRAR (MMCE]) RENIZS-\F ARH50,0007 49% MEFE
Hangzhou Renyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2018 RMB50,000 49%  Property development
("Hangzhou Renyuan")
ARTEEEXERAR ((HREE]) PETHE-Z-N\& ARHE500,0007 30% MERE
Nanjing Yihui Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Nanjing Yihui") Jiangsu, PRC 2018 RMB500,000 30%  Property development
AEREURERARAR ((REREUR]) RENI =3 -N\% AR%20,0007T 51% WEFE
Zhuji Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2018 RMB20,000 51%  Property development
(“Zhuji Shinsun Hongrui")
RERERREXARAR ((RERERE)) RENI = -NE AR %400,0007C 3%  NERE
Zhuji Shinsun Xiangjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2019 RMB400,000 31%  Property development
(“Zhuji Shinsun Xiangjun")
#EMBREHERSERAR ([FEER)) RENIZS-\F AR#20,0007 35%  MERE
Zhuji Wanxiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2018 RMB20,000 35%  Property development
("Zhuji Wanxiang")
IARESREREERAR (IAREESRERE]) HETR-_Z-RF ARH50,0007T 50% MERE
Jiangxi Futian Yishou Investment Development Co., Ltd. Jiangxi, PRC 2015 RMB50,000 50%  Property development
(“Jiangxi Futian Yishou Investment Development”)
BERTRAERERAR ((BEZT)) HEMI—T-MF AR#20,0007 58.5% MERE
Linhai Ziyuan Yintong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Linhai Ziyuan") Zhejiang, PRC 2014 RMB20,000 58.5%  Property development
RS HEHEREARAA (RESHRENE]) PEZH-T-NE ARE100,0007T 3%  MERE
Anging Jinshixiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, PRC 2019 RMB100,000 33%  Property development
(“Anging Jinshixiang Real Estate”)
MMEBLRERERAR ([MMEHR]) PEMI-S=FF ARE300,0007 49% REER
Hangzhou Xingyang Enterprise Management Zhejiang, PRC 2020 RMB300,000 49%  Investment holding

Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Xingyang")

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)
REBEE
A MRA FAEER
AREH o {26 I 4 WEfE (Fr) WEA EEED
Percentage
Nominal value  of ownership
of registered interest
Place and year share capital attributable
Name of companies of registration ('000) to the Group  Principal activities
AERREERERZERAR ((FEREEE]) PEML —T-2F AR¥200,0007T 51%  WERRERULKE
Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu Tourism Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2020 RMB200,000 51%  Property development
(“Zhuji Xianglv Yunlu") and cultural tourism
MR ZE S ERERRAR (RMBEZ]) PEML —E-—-F  AR10,0007T 3%  MERE
Hangzhou Yuekun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB10,000 34%  Property development
("Hangzhou Yuekun”)
FETANERERERWERZERAR ((FRTAMRERE]) HEMI —T--F  AR¥50,000% 50% MERE
Jiaxing Xiuzhou Jiaokong Shinsun Real Estate Development Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB50,000 50%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Jiaxing Xiuzhou Jiaokong Shinsun”)
ENREREEHEREARAR ((BMNRERE) PEML —T-—-F  AR¥300,0007T 49% NERE
Quzhou Tianrui Xiangji Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB300,000 49%  Property development
("Quzhou Tianrui Xiangji")
BMTRESEFERAR (DRM RS PEML —T-—-F  AR¥100,0007T 34%  MERE
Wenzhou Yayue Real Estate Co. Ltd. ("Wenzhou Yayue") Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB100,000 34%  Property development
HEHBEXERAR ([HEKEE]) PELR ZF--F  AR10,0007T 0% NERE
Yuchang (Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Yuchang Zibo") Shandong, PRC 2021 RMB10,000 40%  Property development

REREERGBHELZERARNAEABEEREAD
Al ZERARNMBERRAZRFTELRR
R—BURTE - At - ZRZFERBARFRAART
RAEEHNEEDRE -

BECERZFMBEHRRANEREALR °

ANARESHEFZEBEEBEBENAE -
MR—_ZE-_—F+_A=+—H BAME
ARG & ENRE T RERE -

RAMZES - BRRhEER A FHEX
FHAEEEZENHZFAATXEH =
% RERIY B R EEEME AT A o

Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and the articles of
association of these companies, all shareholders’ resolutions of these
companies shall be resolved by all shareholders on a unanimous basis.
Therefore, these companies were accounted for as joint ventures of
the Group during the year.

The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity method
in these financial statements.

The directors of the Company expect that these projects will be
profitable in the future and no provision for impairment for other
investments in joint ventures was necessary as at 31 December 2021.

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC referred to
above in this note represent management’s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names have
been registered or are available.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

17T.REELEENRE ») 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
(b)R=ZFE=—F+=-A=+—H8 BRHE (b)Nanjing Yihui was considered as material a joint venture of the
BEERAEENERGERE  FE Group as at 31 December 2021, which is principally engaged in
RAEBEAREREYERELRAERE property development in Mainland China and is accounted for
BH o using the equity method.
IR A R EE PR A B 7S A R A The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Nanjing Yihui:

—EBC-—F —E_TF
ARET T AREF T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RERRESEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,885 343,569
HEtrnsEE Other current assets 1,265,251 3,312,673
MENE Current assets 1,281,136 3,656,242
IEREEE Non-current assets 13,408 51,531
mEE & Current liabilities (171,832) (3,270,375)
ImBEemAE  TEEZES & Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade
E fth JE A< 5RIE KR B and other payables and provisions = =
BESE Net assets 1,122,712 437,398
HASERGE D E R Reconciliation to the Group's interest in
¥R ¢ the joint venture:
NEEEGEZ LB Proportion of the Group’s ownership 30% 30%
REBDEEEREZEEFE Group's share of net assets of the joint venture 336,814 131,219
& Revenue 3,090,193 =
X Expenses (2,200,777) (29,887)
I Tax (204,102) 7,472
FEREA S (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 685,314 (22,415)
FALHE W E LR Total comprehensive income for the year 685,314 (22,415)
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

17T.REELENRE &) 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
(c) TRINTAEELIEERBEBEANEE (c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
ENE I BER of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:
—B-—-F —EEF
AR¥ET T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
SMEEEREFNET Share of the joint ventures’ profits and
K&t losses for the year 143,590 8,751
NIEEEEFEEERA Share of the joint ventures' total
FELE comprehensive income 143,590 8,751
AEBRGEEREN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
BRI investments in the joint ventures 1,130,193 1,033,685
18.ABERTNRE 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E-—F —ETF
ARMET T AR®ETFTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
DREERE Share of net assets 1,399,643 686,226

7R £ [ ER B 28 N A A FE U % FE A SR IE A ER AR The Group's receivable and payable balances with associates are
BRI SR MEE39 ° disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 233



234

Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
18.ABHERNRINRE (&)

(a) REMEEHEAT (2 HHRB B
#B) MR :

18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(a)Particulars of the Group’s principal associates, all of which

principally operate in Mainland China, are as follows:

REEER
AR A FrEgR:
NEAEH R R E G WEE (F7r) WEAL TEER
Percentage of
Nominal value ownership
of registered interest
Place and year share capital attributable
Name of companies of registration ('000)  tothe Group  Principal activities
MR ELREHERERRAR (M £k FEHE]) MEMI —F-tF  AK%50,0007 49% MEFE
Hangzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2017 RMB50,000 49%  Property development
("Hangzhou Shinsun Hongrui Real Estate”)
FERE I NERERR AR ([FTEENRRE]) MEMI —T-+F  ARK100,0007 40% Xehki
Zhuji Xiyuan Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2017 RMB100,000 40%  Cultural tourism
("Zhuji Xiyuan Cultural Tourism Investment”)
TEGERERHEREARAR ((RRGEERHE]) mEZE - —F-+F  ARK600,0007 49% MEFE
Dingyuan Yuanbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, PRC 2017 RMB600,000 49%  Property development
("Dingyuan Yuanbi Real Estate"”)
MRAEEHERLERAR ((MEHEFHE]) MEIE  —T-+F  AK%20,0007 49% MEFE
Rudong Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, PRC 2017 RMB20,000 49%  Property development
("Rudong Xinbi Real Estate”)
ARTHERHEREARAA ((RRIABFHE]) hEZE - —F-+F  ARK120,0007 49% MEEE
Tianchang Xinbi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, PRC 2017 RMB120,000 49%  Property development
(“Tianchang Xinbi Real Estate”)
ERFELERHERSARAR ((ERAELE]) TEML —2-N\F  AR¥%400,0007 49% NERE
Ningbo Shinsun Hongyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2018 RMB400,000 49%  Property development
(“Ningbo Shinsun Hongyuan")
ERERCRERAAARLR ((EREAREXERE]) TEML —2-NE AR¥612,000% 49% RERR
Ningbo Yuansheng Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2019 RMB612,000 49%  Investment holding
("Ningbo Yuansheng Enterprise Management”)
FIMAEHERSERAR ([BINEEE]) PETEH —T-NF ARM255,018TC 40% MEFEE
Zhenjiang Kesheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, PRC 2019 RMB255,018 40%  Property development
(“Zhenjiang Kesheng Real Estate”)
REEERHEREARAR ((AREERHE]) MmEL 25 ARH2,000,0007T 49% MEEE
Shaoxing Xiangya Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB2,000,000 49%  Property development
("Shaoxing Xiangya Real Estate”)
RGBS ERAR (DRNAHEE)) PEML 2% AR¥%100,000% 6% NERE
Wenzhou Kaicheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB100,000 26%  Property development

("Wenzhou Kaicheng Real Estate”)

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(a) (&) (a) (continued)
REEERS
EmRA FrEgks
NREH R R E 4 WEfE (Fr) WEAL TEER
Percentage of
Nominal value ownership
of registered interest
Place and year share capital attributable
Name of companies of registration ('000)  to the Group Principal activities
ERRREFARLE ((BRERER]) TEML —2-%F  AR¥580,000% 50% WEFE
Ningbo Jingyao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2020 RMB580,000 50%  Property development
("Ningho Jingyao Real Estate”)
EREREERHENREAROA (RRREZE]) TEML 2%  AR¥%600,0007 5% NERE
Yiwu Cuiyu Huating Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. Zhejiang, PRC 2021 RMB600,000 25%  Property development

("Yiwu Cuiyu Huating")

RAKMEES - Bl B AT 2 2 R &Y
RNEABWREEERNHZERRPXEHE
ZiEE RARYERXABETMKA
A o

(b) F % 517 A % B3 35 16 518 & A 1 %
DA BB ER -

The English names of the companies registered in Mainland China
referred to above in this note represent management’s best efforts
in translating the Chinese names of those companies as no English
names have been registered or are available.

(b)The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

—EB-—-F —E-TF
ARET T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
DG ERE R Bl NE ) K& Share of the associates’ profits and losses
518 for the year 95,563 (19,770)
DIGEE A Al 2 E R Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
E5 18 4R %R income or losses 95,563 (19,770)
REE B E R RIRE R Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
BERHEE investments in the associates 1,399,643 686,226

B D FR R S TR R A AR AR ©

R-ZT-——F+-_fF=+—H8 AQRAESE
TEErZEEE B SENAIE - HE R
ERRMFREEL R ERE

The associates have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

The directors of the Company expect that these projects will be

profitable in the future and no provision for impairment of other
investments in associates was necessary as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

NEEHBREERAE

FRARLEHRBEEERAER

BT :

are as follows:

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

BEEHEEE Deferred tax assets
AHHEHERR EHAR
ERGRN  ERHEN AREEN  EHLd
i 22} MEx  AEHE RERKE BER &t
ARETR  ARETR AR%Tn ARETn ARETR AR%ETx
Losses
available Expenses Unrealised
for offsetting  for offsetting revenue
against future against future Impairment  in contract  Accrued
taxable profits taxable profits ~ of assets liabilities LAT Total
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W=E-Z%-f-H At 1 January 2020 171,419 18,077 2,586 1,641,708 100,175 1,993,965
IERRT B A & (Hf336) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) - = = 57,304 = 57,304
HERBAT (H7H37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (6,347) = = = = (6,347)
ERtA /(B E) BER Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
BEFRA (fzE10) profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 30,068 (32,222) 1,870 (63,516) 126,301 62,501
R-ZE-EF+-F=1+-HR At 31 December 2020 and
“2--F-Hf-H 1 January 2021 195,140 45,855 4,456 1,635,496 226,476 2,107,423
WEMB AR (M36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) = o o 31,590 = 31,590
HERBAT (H7437) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (73) o o o = (73)
EREA /(IR E)BED Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
ERERE (Mit10) profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 120,348 (21,870) (1,494) 111,195  (112,982) 95,197
R_E-_—F+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2021 315,415 23,985 2,962 1,778,281 113,494 2,234,137

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021
19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows: (continued)

EEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
RATE
BPN-EL REM A
tHEEEL EEM EEH
NATERE NERR AYERE &t
ARETR N S ARBTT ARBTTR
Fair value Fair value Fair value
adjustments  adjustments  adjustments
arising from arising from  arising from
financial assets investment business
at FVTPL properties  combinations Total
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZEZZ5-A-H At 1 January 2020 18 103,171 106,045 209,234
EMF A2 ERARMELEHE Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive
income during the year - 40,348 - 40,348
FRMBRE /GtA) Bk Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit or
BRI (FEE10) loss during the year (note 10) 15 7,980 (18,135) (10,140)
\ZZ-ZF+-A=1-H At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
k=Z=-5-f-H 33 151,499 87,910 239,442
IWEEMB AR (M36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) o = 27,385 27,385
ERIRE /GtA) Bt Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit or
B (FirzE10) loss during the year (note 10) 359 15,201 (41,023) 25,463
RZF_—%+-A=1-H At 31 December 2021 392 166,700 74,272 241,364
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
VEEHBEERERS @

VEELEHRBEENBBDRESPBMRR
R - LT AU BRERE NETHE
FEFLIBAEER DT -

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

No deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

—EB-—F —E_THF
ARET T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
R E BRI 2R A HE R Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

EEMIEEEFE consolidated statement of financial position 2,203,424 2,100,518

R E BRI 2R A HER A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
EENIE A EFRE consolidated statement of financial position (210,651) (232,537)
1,992,773 1,867,981

RIBCREARKMBEEMRFHE) - EH
BEAARZNIEIRELERBIMNIEES
IREIRR BB 10% VTR - ZREB —
ZENF-A-—HRERLEANR _ZTT L
FT_A=T—HRELENEM - HHER
o B 52 SN 4% B 3 P BR R A AR R AT A B U 17
E o URARERARE - ARENERHR
ER10% ° Hiit - AEBARZEETER
WK ZMBRARREZEENF—A—HE
EEAE R BT FT 0 IRk BB S AR TR o

MN-TE-——F+-A=+—0  TERAE
(] 72 HR B P 3 A 32 Y BB 2 R ZE R AR TR 0 R
oK BB 1 2 ) B A MO TN AR R SR AT (R T 7
1B ARRAEERE  AEENES A
BAEBALE MR R EAMRE @ MZE
MEBARINAI AR KRR TAIED KA @A
F o B NG 4 RE SRR AE T IE B E A R B i B
BARMEEEENEREEEEHARE
816,905,000 (ZE-FF+ - HF=+—
B : AR¥774,944,0007T) °

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for
the expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amounts of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised amounted to approximately
RMB816,905,000 (31 December 2020: RMB774,944,000).
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised:

—EB-—F —ETHF

AR®T AREFTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

I ER Tax losses 562,622 276,572
AT R ERE Deductible temporary differences 318,951 193,449
881,573 470,021

W 45 A Y B 2 A0 2R B ) 7 B X S 1R A
EENBEERRELCHEEE YRR/
BEAERTUEAN KA AR ERTIREE -

BREREBIER THEENEE - ERF AN
RIRFERBMA ©

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The relevant tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income in one to five years.

20.BAEE P I 20.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—B-—fF —E-TF
ARET T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
REA] At the beginning of the year 105,840,944 92,688,528
NE Additions 29,749,272 48,279,864
WM B AR (MIFE36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) 2,160,504 2,153,600
HENB AR (Ff:E37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) = (216,418)
EHREERFEHEERTIME Transferred to completed properties
(PfFEE21) held for sale (note 21) (41,317,055)  (37,061,141)
BERBEEE (fizEe) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) = (14,277)
HEERIEHNEERTIYMER Impairment losses transferred to completed
BAEEE (5E21) properties held for sale (note 21) = 10,788
RER At the end of the year 96,433,665 105,840,944
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

20.BA%HYWE &)

RERY R EREZSNT

20.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (conTiNUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under

development are as follows:

—EBC-—F —E_TF

AR¥T ARBT T

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

REA At the beginning of the year 273,510 270,021

B R EEE (Mi7E6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) = 14,277
HES I ELEE R TYEN Impairment losses transferred to

BEEE (H:E21) completed properties held for sale (note 21) = (10,788)

RER At the end of the year 273,510 273,510

AEBNFABEPYEIURHEANLNEE
bk e

The Group's properties under development are situated on leasehold
land in Mainland China.

R-ZZT-_—F+-_A=+—8  R"EBHHAK
HmEAHARK37,881,847,000 L (ZE ==&
£ : AR#69,672,081,0007T) HIFIZEH Y
XEEH  AAEEERARITREMER
YEEHR (BF5E30) ©

N.FEHENSRIYE

At 31 December 2021, the Group's properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB37,881,847,000 (2020: RMB69,672,081,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).

21.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

240

—B-—fF —E-TF

ARET T ARBT T

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

REA] At the beginning of the year 4,272,697 5,393,412
e RERYE (FiEE20) Transferred from properties under

development (note 20) 41,317,055 37,050,353

HERBAR (MizE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (28,428) =

EREEEFEXA (fizEe6) Transferred to cost of inventories sold (note 6) (38,984,995) (38,171,068)

BERBEEE (fizke) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) (134,611) =

RER At the end of the year 6,441,718 4,272,697

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK



N.BFEHENERIVE »)

HELENERTYEORERBEDEN
T

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
21.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (conTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties
held for sale are as follows:

—EB-—F —E_TF

AR®T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

REA At the beginning of the year 84,035 159,351

BERREBE Impairment losses recognised 134,611 =
EE g RERYERE Impairment losses transferred from properties

B8 (M95E20) under development (note 20) = 10,788

EE S HEN AR REEE Impairment losses transferred to cost of sales = (86,104)

RER At the end of the year 218,646 84,035

FIFLENERTITYENEENS RS HHE
RIEFFE - fMfRE{EBEE A 235 %E - Al
FHERE - JERFESEENRITHEN
EERERHERETE -

REFEWNFEREREE

The value of completed properties held for sale was assessed at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses.

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

—EB-—F —ETFF

AR¥ET T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 el ziIE & e U =ik Trade and bills receivables 14,594 128,855
RIE Impairment (1,313) (1,475)
13,281 127,380

AEENEZRIGRENERZEEIERRE
AEPRERHENMEEIERY  BEEEAR
% MEHREREEMENRUGKR -

The Group's trade and bills receivables primarily consist of receivables
from its property management services, management consulting
services provided to its customers, property leasing and sale of

properties.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
NESERREREKRERE @)

REHRERARRERERHHNE Z R IR
BN W RIENRE DT (MR EERE) 10
T~

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—EB-—F —E_TF

ARET T ARBT T

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

—FR Within 1 year 12,768 98,185
—ZE= 1 to 3 years 513 29,195
i =F Over 3 years = =
13,281 127,380

TRHBIR=_ZFE=-_—F+=-_A=+—8F
RS EE 5 U GRIBE K B U =15 5 B B
EEMNEERRMONER :

The following table sets out the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision
matrix as at 31 December 2021:

—FR —E=f BB=F HE

Less than 1to3 Over
1 year years 3 years Total
HHEEREX Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 0.0% 100.0% 9.0%
wEEE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) 12,781 513 1,300 14,594
BEEEER (ARBTIT)  Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 13 = 1,300 1,313

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

A=+—HB#& The following table sets out the information about the credit risk

matrix as at 31 December 2020:

exposure on the Group’s trade and bills receivables using a provision

—£R —-Z=F BB=F Mt

Less than 1to3 Over
1 year years 3 years Total
HHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0.1% 0.2% 100.0% 1.1%
BEHE(ARETT) Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) 98,292 29,263 1,300 128,855
EHEEEER(ARYETI) Expected credit losses (RMB'000) 107 68 1,300 1,475

REHRE A RRBREREETREIN
UFTERHREERBRE - BHEEBEDER
BEXRTE  MBEBXRIERE 5RKFIA
N W SR SR B A B & B IR AR

HMIRHRSH -

B 5 REGAREERENREBBRRES

and management'’s expectation of bad debt.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The expected
credit losses are calculated based on the migration rate, which is
based on the historical data of payments of trade and bills receivables

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills

R : receivables are as follows:
—E-—F e e 3
ARET T ARMEFIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
REA At the beginning of the year 1,475 1,398
REEE (MizE6) Impairment losses (note 6) (162) 77
(A 457 K [o] 1 61 £ /O & RE Amount written off as uncollectible = -
RER At the end of the year 1,313 1,475
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

B.EHNEE

23.CONTRACT ASSETS

—EB-—F —E_TF
AR®T AREFTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
SHEMEELENE KA Contract costs arising from the sale
of properties 248,320 227,970

EEEEGEAHNKA (EZHEERY X H
EaMEERAe) TkE - REEE T
T ARE - RBERE RIS EREEE
REZNG R-_ZT-_—F+=-F=+
—B BEEETHRESHBEANREEAR
#149,917,000c (ZE=_FF : AR
186,337,0007T) + B LG BRI R 4E R AR
B8 -

0. FENFE - RERAMEBWRER

Management expected that the contract costs, which represented
primarily sales commission for obtaining property sale contracts,
are recoverable. The Group has deferred the amounts paid and will
charge them to profit or loss when the related revenue is recognised.
As at 31 December 2021, the amounts amortised and charged to
profit or loss were RMB149,917,000 (2020: RMB186,337,000), and
there was no impairment loss in relation to the remaining balance.

24.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E-—F —EFF
ARET T AREBTIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR 18 I H b AT Y [B1 58 18 Prepaid taxes and other tax recoverables 3,465,082 3,955,338
L B8 2 B 0 FE PR AR AR 3R Due from non-controlling shareholders
RIE of the subsidiaries 7,801,856 4,194,234
L B R 1/ e 25 A - 3 5B PR A Progress prepayments for acquisition of
REE B R land use rights for development 2,907,951 1,107,516
Hihig® Other deposits 1,174,724 1,085,094
THIAE S Deposits for land auction 321,987 113,565
FEEERR AR TR FIE Prepayments for construction cost 258,663 260,873
HERBEELNRER Outstanding receivables arising from the
JE U SR TE sale of equity interests 21,800 127,589
B+ IAEEENASE =8 Advance to third parties related to land auction 74,167 237,257
H A fE W R IR Other receivables 3,123,781 2,218,202
19,150,011 13,299,668
W ORE Less: Impairment (46,237) (33,672)

19,103,774 13,265,996

H YRR SEERA - A5 S BERBEER
HIR o

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

24.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of receivables are as
follows:

—EB-—F —E_TF

AR®T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

REA At the beginning of the year 33,672 28,575
B R EEE (M7E6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 12,565 5,097
RER At the end of the year 46,237 33,672

JFE W BT B8 2 ) 2 45 AR S 3R IR % L At fE
WHRIEH A BE R RBER/RRBEFR - K
SECFHEREREFAEZEERR B G
R A SR S8 KRR A0 7% 5 FEWGRIA HY TR
HIB IR EIRME R0.1% « ASEE L TEEE
BERLEREE YR12E/ARBEEER
FERE - UEFEBERREERR -

BEAVEFABSENETMEE

The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of the subsidiaries and other receivables was regarded
as the grade of performing. The Group has assessed that the credit
risk of these receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition. The expected loss rate of these receivables is assessed to
be 0.1%. The Group has evaluated the expected loss rate and gross
carrying amount, measured the impairment based on the 12-month
expected credit losses, and assessed that there were no expected
credit losses.

25.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

—EB-—F —ETFF

AR®T T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

JELEMIERE FAFE) Unlisted investments, at fair value 840,117 626,231

FiF EMEERTESREBEITHEYN
EmREBEER ZERENBHOBR
BAVEFABENEHEE  REAREAS
HREMETRABESINRERHE o

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products
and structure deposits issued by financial institutions in the PRC. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments
of principal and interest.
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26. & RBITHEER 26.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
—EB-—F —E_TF
ARET T ARET T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Re RiRITH Cash and bank balances 8,448,078 24,304,747
D xIZE%UfE% Less: Restricted cash 77,778 54,845
MEREFRSHRIER & Cash from property pre-sale proceeds 3,741,155 7,181,731
JEBE R Time deposits 330,000 4,265,009
[REEEER N Pledged deposits 1,367,222 1,885,262
ReRBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,931,923 10,917,900

BREBEETRER  ASENE THWHEH
ZRRARBRETHERBGFEREER
TERFPIEFEERERZ=ZZE=Z—F+= A
=+t—H ZUEBRERBSREAAR
#3,741,155,000 (ZZE=FF : AR
#7,181,731,0000) c R=_T = —F +
ZA=+—H XBRHREBESEAA
R¥77,778,000L (ZE=ZZF : ARK
37,477,0007C) MEZEBERIZE - RZZT =
—F+ZA=1+—08 " BOERAEZ (==
:EE AR#17,368,0007T) BASKE A
REH IR R AE R T AR B o

R=ZF=Z—F+=ZA=+—H ' AR%
836,468,000 L (T _FF : ARK
1,474,865,00070) WIRITIF REEH - 1E
ABETREMERNERR (FE30) -
RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—"H AR%
530,754,000 c (ZZTE=_ZF : AR
410,397,0007T) MIRTTEREEW - 1EA
BEREIBER HHEXRENZ RN

o
an °

#EZR(EE)ARA — T —EFR

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use. As
at 31 December 2021, such property pre-sale proceeds amounted to
RMB3,741,155,000 (2020: RMB7,181,731,000). As at 31 December
2021, the restricted cash included construction loan mortgages
amounting to RMB77,778,000 (2020: RMB37,477,000). As at 31
December 2021, bank deposits of nil (2020: RMB17,368,000) were
restricted as to use by the Group due to legal actions against the
Group.

Bank deposits of RMB836,468,000 (2020: RMB1,474,865,000)
were pledged as security for bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2021 (note 30). Bank deposits of RMB530,754,000 (2020:
RMB410,397,000) were pledged as security for purchasers’ mortgage
loans, construction of projects and notes payable as at 31 December
2021.
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26.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (cCONTINUED)

—EB-—F —E-THF
AR%ET T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

RERRESEFEY Cash and cash equivalents
AREESHE Denominated in RMB 2,905,952 10,591,781
LAZETTEHE Denominated in US$ 2,075 166,232
LB TTETE Denominated in HK$ 23,896 159,887
2,931,923 10,917,900

ARBTSERABAEMER - BRED
B A 1t B SN EE B IR AR D)) R KHEBE - BT 2
NEEERE)  NEBEARBRERELTT
SNERTERRITIEARBH B SEMER -

RITRSBREET BRITHERNRRFHH X
AR RITERERNEIREZOCENEE
FASERRTT - RE MRS FEYHREER
HAFERE -

HERHRE - EEFER  MEXEERE
RERE  EHEAUARRERBEEEED
ETAMERTRERRRITER - AEE
ERFEXEHRE  BERFEFARRE R
REeFBEYHEE R B )46 7R A R &
AR - WIR12{E A WIREERBETE
mE - BEFHEEREEEBBRYTEX -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values.

The internal credit rating of restricted cash, pledged deposits, cash
from property pre-sale proceeds, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents was regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of restricted cash, pledged deposits and
cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and it has measured the impairment based on 12-month
expected credit losses, and has assessed that the expected credit
losses are immaterial.
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.ESENREAREMNRE 27.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REZEHAR  ERXEZEHNEZEN An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
TIARENZEORE ST each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—EBC-—F —E_TF
AR¥T T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—F LA Less than 1 year 6,284,308 6,764,319
—FPAE Over 1 year 302,805 213,003
6,587,113 6,977,322
B5RNBIERENZEAEER 28 - Trade and bills payables are unsecured and interest-free and are
BEERETLEEEE - normally settled based on the progress of construction.

REREHRARR - ARE F RN FERERN The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of the
SEEEmARBEERRE - H

HAF{EEEAE reporting period approximated to their corresponding carrying
JERREEMRS - amounts due to their relatively short maturity terms.
BHMEMNHIERESER 28.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—B-—fF —E-TF
ARBT T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR S EPNGIESE 22 Due to non-controlling shareholders and
N A% R IE predecessor shareholders of the subsidiaries 1,722,914 1,584,359
ESHEMEBBNZES Deposits related to sales of properties 277,711 391,986
ISR E E R R ER Outstanding payables arising from the
FE IR acquisition of equity interests 140,411 1,142,391
HELEENRE S Retention deposits related to construction 567,506 733,305
BT & MEF Payroll and welfare payable 117,456 237,743
Hi 4 N EAREN R B Prepayments from third parties related to
E=FEMNK land auction 110,000 =
FAth B 18 K BT a0 Other tax and surcharges 6,351,292 6,817,934
HAh, Others 1,951,225 2,312,616

11,238,515 13,220,334

H At 8 15 5108 I BT 8 A B SRR AR IR 3R K AT AR Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders and

RBRBEER RRREREERE - NFR predecessor shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable
H ) &~ RIE B A T B B E M R AR E B AR on demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of year
& e approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.
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29. E¥HEE

BRAHMARENFBNT

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

—EB-—F —ETF

ARET T ARETIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

EHEE Contract liabilities 70,018,866 68,791,434

AEBRBEMFEHEE S A HAERHERR The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
BEPBRMNR - AEBBERBESA (£ schedules as established in the property sales contracts. Payments are
EREMEREREE) B L AR AT BER R usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts

e which are mainly from property development and sales.

30,5 BRI R EAAE R 30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
it 3 e e 2
2021 2020
BRAZ(%) ER ARETR EBBAE%) Em ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
B Current
ROTEH - HHA Bank loans - secured 3.70-7.50 2022 650,000  3.70-5.66 2021 1,483,250
HEEH - AHA Other loans - secured 6.50-15.00 2022 3,064,327  7.00-15.40 2021 10,372,197
RERTERN Current portion of long term
MRS - BHEA bank loans - secured 5.61-15.00 2022 1,617,230  5.55-9.50 2021 713,000
REE M EFA Current portion of long term
HEHH - HHEA other loans - secured 6.8-15.00 2022 8,708,547  7.00-14.50 2021 8,071,310
REEMEFA Current portion of long term
ENERE S — EA AR other loans - unsecured = 2022 = 16.54 2021 115,063
14,040,104 20,754,820
FEEH Non-current
BITER - BHA Bank loans - secured 5.15-7.80 2023-24 10,326,475  5.15-8.64 2022-24 12,881,215
HipE7 - HHA Other loans - secured 6.80-13.50 2023-24 5,056,200  6.80-15.00 202226 8,349,372
HipE7 - EH A Other loans - unsecured = = - 12.00-13.00 2022 300,500
15,382,675 21,531,087
29,422,779 42,285,907
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30.;FERITREMMER @)

1

30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

—E-—F —EEF
AR¥T T AR®ET T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
DA Analysed into:
AR THIBREEAIRITE © Bank loans repayable
—&FR Within one year 2,267,230 2,196,250
EF In the second year 2,718,300 2,461,700
HEREAE In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEMEREERN) 7,608,175 10,419,515
RFELAE Over five year - _
12,593,705 15,077,465
AR AT HIBR BRI E A (E5K ©  Other borrowings repayable
—FNRN Within one year 11,772,874 18,558,570
EF In the second year 4,160,200 6,412,672
E=FFEAF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BERMEBEEARN) 896,000 1,442,200
RAELE Over five year = 795,000
16,829,074 27,208,442
29,422,779 42,285,907

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - —FFR
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30.;FERITREMMER @)

R-T-—F+-"F=+—8  "EFHE
FAARKEEHE °

REAEENETER GBS  AEEELE
BHERNEMELAFEERZIELD - X
HEAERERERERERERE - RZT=
—F+t-A=1t—H%E&  AEENETESL
ERHIELD  BHFBRTREMERK
4258 A K¥3,966,500,000 7T 37 22 XEH)
(IRXEQBFK]) - BREBREEGRKE
B TARXENERZIRNAEBR _-F
T+ A=t HNGEaBBARRKRE
HAERT -

RNEEE TRITREMERIATINEEER
e ZEEERSHREHEROETEN
T~
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30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2021.

Pursuant to some of the Group’s borrowings’ agreements, any default
under the Group’s senior notes or borrowings will trigger the cross-
default resulting in the relevant borrowings becoming repayable on
demand. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group was in default
of certain senior notes, causing a total amount of RMB3,966,500,000
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have become cross-
defaulted (the “cross-default borrowings”) and repayable on demand.
All cross-default borrowings are presented under current liabilities
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the
reporting period:

—E—F —E-TF

et AR®T ARBT T

2021 2020

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

M - BB k& E Property, plant and equipment 13 6,030 =
TEMZ Investment properties 15 240,500 244,900
gtk ES Properties under development 20 37,881,847 69,672,081
[REEECEER N Pledged deposits 26 836,468 1,474,865

ARBEEBRNERR  FHRRITREM
ERNAFEERERTERS  RAEEL
EHRNZEERRARERBYE =%
BUEREIZBIT IS RIED -

MN-TE——F+-_A=+—8 - RITRHM
BERARET7,343,781,900 tHAEBEE T
MEARMEBBRERER RZZT=Z—F
+—A=+—8 BOKEMERARE
334,626,400 THASEE T46 &% R
BN R AR R o

R-B-—F+-A=+—H - EREFER
BEELEARRZAAREI 161,130,8367T
(ZZ2=ZF : AR%6,667,611,0007T)
BTRITREMEFKIREIER o

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial
institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

Bank and other borrowings of RMB7,343,781,900 as at 31
December 2021 was guaranteed by the pledged equity interests of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Bank and other borrowings of
RMB334,626,400 as at 31 December 2021 was guaranteed by the
pledged equity interests of certain joint ventures and associates of the
Group.

The Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Guoxiang, has guaranteed

certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to RMB9,161,130,836
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB6,667,611,000).
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30.;FERITREMMER @)

R-EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H  #ZEBREBER
NEERKERBEERLTARZAARE
8,075,801,000c (ZZE=ZFF : ARK
4,011,300,0007T) B9 & THR1T R E M {EFKIE
HIELR o

R-T-—F+-_fF=+—H HLEBEE
BBERAR A%/ ARE359,000,0007T
(ZZT—Z4 : AR¥70,000,0007T) 7% F
$RIT R E M IEFIREIER -

R-ZT-——H+-"F=+—8 ' LEBHKKR
BEERARARZH/ARETI5,000,0007T
(ZZE =T : AR¥795,000,0007T) W#H
TFHR1T R M A FRIR R EAR o

R=ZFE=Z—F+=-A=+—H80 BIH
BHE(SE)ERAAARZAARE
960,000,000 L (=TT F : ARK
960,000,0007T) K935 T ER1T MK E b & IR
IR o

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H " LB EH
BERARARZAZT(ZE_TF : ARK
150,000,0007tT) A& FER1T & E Ath {8 5Kt
IR -

MN-ZE——F+-A=+—8  MEHL
XEEERAAARZAT (ZE-ZF :
AR¥740,000,0007T) A5 FER1T R EALE
SEREELR o

R—_ZE-_—F+—_A=+—8  #ImA
REREXLEREERLAARZAARK
140,600,000T (= =T F : &) HH TR
TR EAEFTIREIER -

N-E——F+-A=+—0 BEFHES
XERAFAEEZ A ARYI8,970,0007T
(ZZ2ZTF &) E TR REAERE
R o

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

30.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

A family member of the Controlling Shareholder, Ms. Zhu Guoling,
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB8,075,801,000 (2020: RMB4,011,300,000) as at 31 December
2021.

HFATEEEAER AT ("Shinsun Industrial Group Co., Ltd.”) has
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB359,000,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB70,000,000).

EEBBIEEFR AR ("Shanghai Julian Investment Co., Ltd.”)
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB795,000,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB795,000,000).

BETIHEEMEEE)BR AR (Agribusiness Real Estate (Group) Co.,
Ltd.) has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up
to RMB960,000,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB960,000,000).

shf5 B AR AFl(Hongyang Real Estate Co., Ltd.) has guaranteed
certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to nil at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB150,000,000).

MINEBHZEEEEFRA A (Hangzhou Qinyang Co., Ltd.) has
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to nil at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB740,000,000).

AT A A 2 E R E R AR AR (Zhejiang Sunflower Health Industry
Development Co., Ltd.) has guaranteed certain of the bank and other
borrowings of up to RMB140,600,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil).

B RIBE E AR AA(Ningbo Zhongjing Real Estate Co., Ltd.)
has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB98,970,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:nil).
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NELERE 31.SENIOR NOTES
RZB=-% RZBZ-%
-F-Bf R-E=-F TZA=1-H
B B ER ks FEEX e {2 MRER
ARETR ARBTT  AR®Tn  ARETR  AR%TR ARETR ARETTR
1 January 31 December
2021 2021
Opening Issued in Exchange Interest Closing
ZEAR Name of notes balance 2021 gains expense Payment  Redemption balance
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“Z-ZEZR (1) 2020 Notes 1 (note 1) 2,031,651 - (44,656) 242,507 (243,188) (116,039) 1,870,275
) 2020 Notes 2 1,358,336 - (5,129) 81,987 (1,435,194) - -
“Z--FZ81(fif2) 2021 Notes 1 (note 2) - 1,272,229 (8,437) 77,986 (66,887) - 1,274,891
“Z--FZ8)(W3) 2021 Notes 2 (note 3) - 1,282,084 (23,707) 59,347 - - 1,317,724
4,462,890
A Analysed into:
FREH Non-current portion 1,258,377
naHs Current portion 3,204,513
RZEZTE RZEZE%
—A-BR RZTZZE T-A=+-RA&
B B e MERZ I ) BREH
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
1 January 31 December
2020 2020
Opening Issued in Exchange Interest Closing
SRR Name of notes halance 2020 gains expense Payment  Redemption balance
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ZE-NERE 2019 Notes 1,016,301 - - 9,003 (1,025,304) - -
et | 2020 Notes 1 - 2,087,516 (134,588) 209,527 (130,804) - 2,031,651
) 2020 Notes 2 - 1,392,749 (94,620) 60,207 - - 1,358,336
3,389,987
LL:E Analysed into:
e Non-current portion 1,952,929
naHs Current portion 1,437,058
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NEBEEE »)

FYEET -

FaE2

MiGE3 :

HEZR

R-—ZE-—ZTF—B—-—+=H - —_ZT-_Z4&
ZA+ABR-_ZE-_ZEFRA=-1+AH
BFEERABRARLERTACHETER
300,000,000 TR = = =4 — A EIH#K
BAZER([ZT=_ZFZERK1]) - =T =%
FERIRFFNER12.5%:T8 - WHFEEHE
SEEBER A A R R R B 5E £ ER o

REZF=Z—F  ARAEAFAME LEER
A4 #8%18,200, 000%7‘18’]*? TERE
1 RBHBRENZRERE TEER
AN & B EEF££281,800,0005 7T (FHE R A
R#1,796,672,0007T) M AEE ©

==

R_T=_—F+=-_A=+—H% - m/“*
Bk = ijiﬂﬁmsa%ﬁ%iﬁ iﬁz
A& #HEH262,330,000F LW =
FEBIVFEE - _7_?¢ﬂﬁ1a’17¢<
©FI#219,470,000FTT W KREE - Ke
220,672,500 I 2K (HERNARE
1,401,734,0007T) BR=ZT=_=F—A+N\
BYXM((ZT=Z=FFK]) - WA REE
—T__F—A+N\BHREREE AR
RAIARBEZ N RISRAREES5E19,470,000% T
(FBERARY123,461,0007T) ° ZEHE
{ETRE R E A R % 3,966,500,000 732 Y32
49 (F3E30) °

R=ZZF=—FXANB ' "ARBERTAESR
%6200,000,000 X TR =F __E/\H ﬂJHﬂ

WEEERER ([ ZZE=—FFK1]) ==
—EERIRENEI105%:TE - WAARQF]
HTHEARPER -

REZZ=Z—FNA+/N\B ' KRRBETAE
#%6200,000,000 X TR =T ==F/\ A%
HWELZE ([ ZT=—F%K2]) - =%
Z—FER2RFFNEI12%TE - YHAR
AAETHBARER -

HUOARRE—_ZT_—_F=A=_+—80H
NEFHE R -_—F+-_A=+—
B - AN2RQ A IEEER S E®A X
:2: FEE2/9F]E12,000,000% T
(HERARK76,110,0007T) @ BHA
£ #8%200,000,000% 7T (HHE R AR
1,275,140,0007T) B =T = —FZE2EHL) ©

[ B 0 NN TE_?::¢EHEE

MASEHEE  AARR=_ZT==_FmMA
faeuiziL?fEEtﬂﬁﬁih*ﬁ/\Eﬂ
InERBAI - BEHAELE 200,000,000 7T
(FHERAARY1,275,140,0007t) = F
—EFERIARBIBY AL  c ZEHE
2 AN & %200,000,000% T (HERAR
#1,275,140,00070) =T = —F =21
A& %220,672,500% T (HERARK
1,401,734,00070) =T = —FZHEHBR
NGB ©

(E@E)ARA —E—FFER

31.SENIOR NOTES (conTINUED)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

On 23 January 2020, 16 March 2020 and 20 May 2020, Xiang Sheng Holding
Limited privately issued US$300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of senior
notes due in January 2022 (the “2020 Notes 1”). The 2020 Notes 1 bear interest
at the rate of 12.5% per annum, and are guaranteed by Shinsun Property Group
Co., Ltd. and Mr. Chen Guoxiang, the Controlling Shareholder.

In 2021, the Company redeemed the 2020 Notes 1 in the open market in
an aggregate principal amount of US$18,200,000. After cancellation of the
repurchased notes, the aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Notes 1 that
remains outstanding is US$281,800,000 (equivalent to RMB1,796,672,000).

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company completed the exchange
offer for the 2020 Notes 1, resulting in an aggregate principal amount of
US$262,330,000 of the 2020 Notes 1 being cancelled, and the remaining
outstanding principal amount of the 2020 Notes 1 was US$19,470,000. The
new notes with a principal amounting to US$220,672,500 (equivalent to
RMB1,401,734,000) should be payable on 18 January 2023 (the “2022 Notes").
The Company failed to make the payment of the remaining outstanding
US$19,470,000 (equivalent to RMB123,461,000), as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2022. This event of default
also resulted in the cross-default borrowings amounting to RMB3,966,500,000
(note 30).

On 8 June 2021, the Company issued senior notes with an aggregate principal
amount of US$200,000,000 due in June 2022 (the “2021 Notes 1”). The 2021
Notes 1 bear interest at the rate of 10.5% per annum, and are guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

On 18 August 2021, the Company issued senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$200,000,000 due in August 2023 (the “2021 Notes 2").
The 2021 Notes 2 bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum, and are guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company did not make the interest
payment under the 2021 Notes 2 amounting to US$12,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB76,110,000) before the expiry of the grace period, resulting in the default
of the 2021 Notes 2 with an aggregate principal amounting of US$200,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,275,140,000), as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 March 2022.

In addition, the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders
of the July 2020 Notes on 1 April 2022, resulting in the principal of the 2021
Notes 2, amounting to US$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,275,140,000)
becoming immediately due and payable. This event triggered the cross-
default of the 2021 Notes 1 with a principal amount of US$200,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,275,140,000) and the 2022 Notes with a principal amount
of US$220,672,500 (equivalent to RMB1,401,734,000), as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2022.
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32.hEEH 32.CORPORATE BONDS
R-B=-F R-2=-F
-B-B R=%=-% tZA=t+-H
RIS BT FEHE% ES MR8
ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARET T
1 January 31 December
2021 2021
Opening Issued in Interest Closing
B5ER Name of bonds balance 2021 expense Payment balance
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
“EoRERES (M) 2020 Bonds (note 1) 500,664 - 38,605 (38,502) 500,767
R-T_EF St Sk 13
—A—B RIZZEf tTZA=t-H
ke #17 MERX % PR
ARBTT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR ARBTT
1 January 31 December
2020 2020
Opening Issued in Interest Closing
ECEA Name of bonds balance 2020 expense Payment balance
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
“ER-REES (M) 2020 Bonds (note 1) - 497,500 3,164 - 500,664
REFREHAR  AEBEEEENEEESH At the end of the reporting period, the Group's corporate bonds were
T s repayable as follows:
—E-—& —ETHF
AR®T ARBTFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—FAEERE Repayable within one year 3,267 3,164
R-_EMNFANER Repayable within two to four years 497,500 497,500
500,767 500,664
fizE1: R=ZT_FTF+_HA—H ' HFEHES Note 1: On 1 December 2020, Shinsun Property Group Co., Ltd. privately issued 2.25-

BERAALEZTASEAARYE
500,000,000 7CHI2 25F h¥E@EH ([=F
—EFEEE])  —ETHFEFEHFERENR

7.70%5t 8 °

year corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB500,000,000 (the “2020
Bonds”). The 2020 Bonds bear interest at a rate of 7.70% per annum.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

33. IR A< 33.SHARE CAPITAL
K& Shares
—g=-f  -F-%%
EH xEL
2021 2020
us$ us$
ERTREHAR Issued and fully paid:
3,043,403,000f% (ZZ=Z E 3,043,403,000) 3,043,403,000 (2020: 3,043,403,000) ordinary
SREFEC0ETL(ZE25 : 0.01%1) shares of US$0.01 each (2020: US$0.01)
VLR 30,434,030 30,434,030

ARRBANESHHERAT

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as
follows:

ERTROHE BA&
ARBT T

Number
of shares Share
in issue capital
RMB’000
RZEZZF—-H—H At 1 January 2020 1 =
FITERR Issue of ordinary shares 999 -
R EMRETEBR Issue of ordinary shares upon listing 600,000,000 39,356
REMEE BT RR Issue of ordinary shares on capitalisation 2,399,999,000 157,423
IR RER TR B TE R Issue of ordinary shares on an over-allotment option 43,403,000 2,837

RZZEZZFF-R=1+—HK At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

“F-—%—-H-H 3,043,403,000 199,616
—F+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2021 3,043,403,000 199,616

ARRRZE—NE+ZA+=REHEE
SEMKL - EERARASO, ooo%fc " 5
/50,0008 FIREAE 1 £ TR D o RaEff
VA= B NN IR i 5%)\@8?"”&1%
TTEEREAR I%zﬁﬂaﬁlm H &2
Shinlight Limited ° _§_7¢£H+—
=RV /N TE’JlﬂxEﬁﬁ&ﬂE%ﬁHﬂ/ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
100 FARMEBEO0.01ETLHRMD - RZE
ZTFAAZ+H ' AQFMAGolden Stone
Development Limited ([ Golden Stonel > —
MR EBER RS MK LM AR EE
RAREENREESHELELERE) &
1T RECE10MRAR D - R{BR—AXSilver Rock
Group Holdings Limited ([Silver Rock ) i%
5 o KA B + KA R][AEShinlight Limited 24T
R BCEE890 Mk - RER200E&SET °
HEZR(EE)GRA — T —FFIR

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
December 2019 with authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided
into 50,000 shares of US$1 at par value each. On the date of
incorporation, 1 ordinary share of US$1 was allotted by the Company
to a subscriber, and was transferred to Shinlight Limited, a company
controlled by Chen Guoxiang. On 11 May 2020, each of the issued
and unissued shares of the Company was subdivided into 100 shares
of US$0.01 each. On 20 May 2020, the Company issued and allotted
10 shares to Golden Stone Development Limited (“Golden Stone”),
a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by the pre-IPO
investor, Mr. Shou Bainian, with a consideration of one share of Silver
Rock Group Holdings Limited (“Silver Rock”). On the same date, the
Company issued and allotted 890 shares to Shinlight Limited, with a
consideration of US$200 million.



B.R]AR (&)

KR (%)

RZZE_ZTF+A-+H  AREDEEBAN
50,0003 T (348 /45,000,000 % & f& @
850.01 ZE TR (D) #KZE200,000,000% 7T
(#7401 420,000,000,000 % F AL E{E0.01 3
TR ) ©

R-EBE_ZTF+—A+N\B ' XRERES
BERXFT Eig - EEIRER5.59BITHRE
©H{E3,354,000,0008 7T (HEROARE
2,837,752,0007T) #17600,000,000 f% & %
EEO.01 ETTH N EMAR - BRAKRASEEL
A AR#39,356,0007T ¢ A ZEITEENAR
iR BH A ANRE2,719,060,000 7T (FABR A
MEITHAR) - BN REMKRGOBEITRAE
ZEERNEHEAS - ZME - RRSEHAD
BRREMABEAKAE  ZEXNAEEHNE
THREREEMNEENAN c ZERAAR
#79,336,000 LR BEITE LR MD BE
RO

R_ZFTE_ZF+— A7+ \H
2,399,999,000 &0 E A A E(E0.01E
THEBERMETRNET  BEAREASENAA
R#157,423,0007T °

RZE_ZEF+_A+8 ' X28R
EEBRIFM LMK BELRREE RS
7 EBRERS.S9BTHAERENR
E242,622, 7708 T (HERHDARE
204,560,000t ) Ad 8 % %% 7743,403,000
REINRD - BEABRANSBEHNAARYE
2,837,0007T © MEZETEENRMDEEL
BAR®196,593,0007T (FIkR I (0 B 1T
AR) o ENfREMBMHETRAEZBER
DEEME REMARKAS  ZERAEE
HRBITHREREENEESXA - 25K
AAR®S5,130,000 TH AR BEEITE £ K
1725 BV IR ©

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
33.SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Shares (continued)

On 20 October 2020, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from US$50,000 divided into 5,000,000 shares
with a par value of US$0.01 each to US$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares with a par value of US$0.01 each.

On 18 November 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 600,000,000 new ordinary shares
with par value of US$0.01 each at HK$5.59 per share for a total cash
consideration of HK$3,354,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,837,752,000). The respective share capital amount was
approximately RMB39,356,000 and share premium arising from the
issuance was approximately RMB2,719,060,000 net of the share
issuance costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable mainly
include share underwriting commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting
accountants’ fee and other related costs, which are incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of the new shares. These costs
amounting to RMB79,336,000 were treated as a deduction against
the share premium arising from the issuance.

On 18 November 2020, 2,399,999,000 shares were issued by way
of capitalisation with par value of US$0.01 each, and the respective
share capital amount was approximately RMB157,423,000.

On 16 December 2020, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the over-allotment option has been partially exercised and
the Company allotted and issued 43,403,000 additional shares at
HK$5.59 per share for a total cash consideration of HK$242,622,770
(equivalent to approximately RMB204,560,000). The respective share
capital amount was approximately RMB2,837,000 and share premium
arising from the issuance was approximately RMB196,593,000, net of
the share issuance costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable
mainly include share underwriting commissions and other related
costs, which are incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of the new shares. These costs amounting to RMB5,130,000 were
treated as a deduction against the share premium arising from the
issuance.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
34. %1%

BE_ZT_—F+_A=T—HLEFE &

SEREcEIEEINGAESET R
/j_r\ o
(a) R385 1E

Bt i (B 15 O 2 B B 1T Ao T B 22 2 U B Y
REZHENERE -

(b) EXf#fE

BAREBIEIFEREREFBENSRENE
o i B 2 BB FE AR A b 2 P)’M‘J“Xﬁfﬁlﬁzﬁ
BNAFEZHENTAZER RARNEER

Em%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂ%%@
BRRB B BITRARIREREFAKAEE
METHBRRANERITAANDLE © 1R
ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%% AR A ABREN B
RAELRENEE - EARKENEEFE
HNREEREEBR -

(c) EEBEHARE

R B R RDE KA T B A S T B8 A B Y
ABBIEAR - AEBARTE G MFED
10%RREVEE BARE - WHREDE S
HUEE  BEERBEHRBREIEETMERD
50% ° AR BUAR FrEE TRE kAL
EABERAANNRE - XERARRFER A
PR 55 B 18 s B i AR PN AR AR - MEE R IR
BRBENG P NAEEEMER#25% © f##
1%7 SRARERZ B AN EMRE - 75
BERBAESKREDIK °

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

34.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a)Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value
of the shares issued and the consideration received.

(b)Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received for acquisition or disposal of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries, the issued capital of the then
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group and
the capital contributions from the equity holders of certain subsidiaries
now comprising the Group before the completion of the corporate
restructuring and the reorganisation. This reserve also included gain
or loss arising from acquisition of subsidiaries from the equity holders
of the subsidiaries. Details of the movements in the capital reserve are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as determined
under PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles
of association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be
used for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F+= A=+—H 31 December 2021

35.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB13,212,000 (2020: RMB13,017,000)

ARM13,212,000t (ZZ=FF : AR in respect of lease arrangements for office buildings and motor
13,017,0007T) ° vehicles.
(b)REZEELENEEEE (b)Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
BEER HEBRTR BERER %S HETBHEL
Fit R LEE5 ] HERE MEEEE
AERTR ARRTR AEETR ARETR ARETR AERTR
Interest-bearing  Senior notes Total liabilities
Assets-based bank and other  and corporate  Due to related Lease  from financing
securities borrowings bonds parties liabilities activities
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
A\ZT-2E-f-H At 1 January 2020 205,551 27,305,522 1,016,301 5,956,321 125,590 34,609,285
BETHNE /(FR) Cash flows from/(used in)

BenE financing activities (205,551) 13,672,885 2,753,639 817,105 (44,539) 16,993,539
it New lease - - - - 13,017 13,017
[BETRES Revision of a lease term - - - - (15,722) (15,722)
il Accrual of interest - - 281,901 - 7771 289,672
EfHE Interest paid - - (161,190) - - (161,190)
FREEDNERETE Cash flows from

non-financing activities - 1,307,500 - (964,376) - 343,124
R-E-FF+-A=1-H At 31 December 2020 and

k=E--%-F-H 1 January 2021 - 42,285,907 3,890,651 5,809,050 86,117 52,071,725
WEERTE/(FR) Cash flows from/(used in)

Rene financing activities - (13,516,354) 2,356,345 423,011 (32,195) (10,615,567)
it New lease - - - - 13212 13,212
BiITRER Revision of a lease term = = - - (6,060) (6,060)
JEEHH S Accrual of interest - - 500,432 - 6,601 507,033

BfiflE Interest paid - - (1,783,171) - - (1,783,771)
FREEMERERE Cash flows from

non-financing activities - 653,226 - (1,995,932) - (1,495,932)
NZE_—$+-A=1-H At 31 December 2021 - 94,119 4,963,657 4,236,529 67,675 38,690,640
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

B.aEHRERERKMTE @)

() ERHEENRZ R LA

FAARERERNEEEENR SR B
W

35.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
flows is as follows:

—E-—F —E-THF

AR®T T ARETIT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

REEEEN Within operating activities 5,517 14,221
REEEEN Within financing activities 32,195 44,539
37,712 58,760

36. AR FT B 2 7]

A) REE B

WAL LIBERBR AR ([FEHFLE
S )

R_FBE-_—F X A=1+H8 #EBEEELBR
RBBEHN AN BEEEELENALZZAE
AR =g A& B I 224 (/B ST AT A9 50 % 38
B51%) c At - REBEREMEHEERE
ShlS - Btz BRERAEDEE AAEEM
BAA o BEFELBNTRYEMER
& WEKRANEEEREYERABRLESE
MSMENEE LD - BRIBIAKR - FBERE
Ao R AEERE T —F+=-A=+
—BLEFENGEEaNERM S AT ME
BAAREK21,519,0007T ° MEHFER=
T —F— A —H#EfT AEEEE_T =
—F+-A=1+—BILFENKRSIREFE
D AlAEANRMA3,719,028,000T R AR
421,212,0007T °

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

A) Business combination

Acquisition of ZEEEFAEAMEEZRBR A A] Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”)

On 30 June 2021, Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng's shareholders agreed
to increase the voting rights of the Group from the previous 50%
to 51% by revisiting the articles of association of Zhuji Shinsun
Hongpeng. As a result, the Group is able to control Zhuji Shinsun
Hongpeng, which has been changed from a joint venture to a
subsidiary of the Group since then. Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng is
engaged in property investment in the PRC. The acquisition was
part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share of property
development and operation. Since the acquisition, Zhuji Shinsun
Hongpeng contributed nil and losses of RMB21,519,000 to the
Group's revenue and the consolidated profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Had the combination taken place at 1
January 2021, the revenue and profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been RMB43,719,028,000 and
RMB421,212,000, respectively.
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WEFEHLIBERFR A ([FEHAE

ShE 1) (#)
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Bt R M A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

A) Business combination (continued)

Acquisition of FEEEFAEAMSEZRBR 2 A] Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real

Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”) (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired

DNFEET - company as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
WS R
AFTHE
ARET T
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
RMB’'000
M - BB RE B Property, plant and equipment 57
FEEFIBE B Deferred tax assets 31,590
ek Properties under development 1,333,200
FEMFIE « e REMEUWRIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 701,167
A [E 5 18 Tax recoverable 44,636
PR %I & Restricted cash 180,383
ReERBESEED Cash and cash equivalents 124,919
B 5 R IE R BN ER Trade and bills payables (14,163)
E R RIENERE R Other payables and accruals (82,219)
EHaE Contract liabilities (1,954,970)
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (27,385)
RN TFETEN A #5EEFER Total identifiable net assets at fair value
(! 337,215
o IR e (FFEARUREE  Less: Non-controlling interests measured as
B EID(GR A FETIERD a proportionate share of the net identifiable
Al BRI & E R ER L) assets at fair value at the acquisition date 168,270
B EE TR Net assets acquired 168,945
BUAT AL : Satisfied by:
Re Cash _
XBEHAFEN Fair value of investments in the joint venture held
BETERENTE before business combination 168,945
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
36. BB AR (&)

A) ¥BSOF (&)

WEFEHLIBERFR A ([FEHAE
ShE 1) (#)

BRAREBNBARNESRESTMAT

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

A) Business combination (continued)

Acquisition of FEEEFAEAMSEZRBR 2 A] Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongpeng”) (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the
subsidiary is as follows:

ARBT T

RMB'000

RERE Cash consideration =

m: BEMRERESEEY Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 124,919
FFAREEHMSREMEN Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in

RekReFEWRAFHE cash flows from investing activities 124,919

B) EBUIEHBAAKEBEERAR

WEAMNESEXARDR (DRMNES]) Kk
HIfBARBMEREEXERAR (DRME
&l -

RZE-—FA-1+H AEBEEZINE
FEZEERAAIGLIRHEE = « KUt
AEBE LA ERE AR 4,000,000 7T A8 M
EF RN EE S R EME R RRINEFED
40% R - Bk 218 + NEEHEARIMNEF
FEMNERE (EEBASENGEREERE
RITEAE]) HI85 % Ak tE

ARBEFERE  WEHNBRRLAEK—
BER - Bt - 2R 5 ARSI AE B K
BRARWBEENRBE  MIFERMBRSE
HRIFEIMEF A HFTRENEBA B

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

B) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition
of subsidiaries

Acquisition of ;&% 5 & % AR A Fl(Wenzhou Lanyi Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., “Wenzhou Lanyi”) and its subsidiary » JBINEEEEABR A A
(Wenzhou Lanbei Real Estate Co., Ltd., “Wenzhou Lanbei”).

On 20 June 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
with BN E 5T % AR A 7l(Wenzhou Lanli Real Estate Co., Ltd.),
pursuant to which the Group acquired 40% equity interests in
Wenzhou Lanyi and its subsidiary, Wenzhou Lanbei, from Wenzhou
Lanli for a total consideration of RMB4,000,000. Since then, the
Group had equity interests of 85% of Wenzhou Lanli and Wenzhou
Lanbei, which had been changed from joint ventures to subsidiaries of
the Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the acquisition of the
subsidiaries does not constitute a business. Therefore, the transaction
was accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business combination as
defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

B) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition
of subsidiaries (continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired companies as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

WEERRAN S

ARBT

Amounts

recognised

on acquisition

RMB’000

R Y2 Properties under development 827,304

FE B » e REMEUGIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 555,655

HeRBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 119

STRRIT REMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (500,000)

B RN FIER BN EE Trade and bills payables (13,678)

E e FIE R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (859,432)

Al P& EFEERE Total identifiable net assets 9,968

W IR R Less: Non-controlling interests 1,356

BB EEFE Net assets acquired 8,612
BRUATAHAZN - Satisfied by:

B Cash 4,000

WEANRBEN &R Fair value of investments in the joint ventures
KEANFE held before acquisition 4,612
8,612
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36. BB AR (&)
B) ZBNEHBAANKEBEEERER

(&)

ERGEMNBARNRSRESTOT

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

B) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition

of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the

subsidiaries is as follows:

AR¥ T

RMB’000

HeRE Cash consideration (4,000)

e EESNRERBESEEY ©  Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 119
FARERSAEHRSREN Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents

RekReFEWRL F5E included in cash flows from investing activities (3,881)

3. HEHRB AT

BEEHA-ZT-_—FMA-_+ABHNEKD
HEa  AEEUREAREGE,494,000
TEMMNEZECEXEERRE AR HEERNG
MEBEEBEERRAR (DHEMER]) RE
B A RRINELEEERZEAR AT - B
HEEBEXEBRARRERETEEXBR
NAEIHI100% RS AE ©

RERRORER  ARER T —_—F+
At BULEFEEHEETAERRE
FAERRA FEMHFLELREXZERA
A MMNELrEERERARKBEEES
TEEEARAF -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 25 April 2021, the
Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in SR RIMELEER
[R A &](Chuzhou Great Wall Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd., “Chuzhou
Great Wall”) and its subsidiaries, J&/NFELEEHERZEAR A A
(Chuzhou Shinsun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.), FAXEAE
%A AF)(Mingguang Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd.) and E&RSLE
A EZHRAA(Dingyuan Shinsun Real Estate Co., Ltd.), to #JHE
EPFEEEAFMRAR(Hangzhou Junda Management Co., Ltd.) for a
consideration of RMB6,494,000.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders, the Group
deregistered #EEMFEEBMEZE AR A F(Zhuji Shinsun Baiyue
Real Estate Co., Ltd.), #EEWMFALREEAR AR (Zhuji Shinsun
Hongyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.), MINEBLEEE AR A A
(Hangzhou Xiyang Management Co., Ltd.), and EEBETXEIES
fR 2 ®l(Nanchang Binchang Management Co., Ltd.) in the year ended
31 December 2021.
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the dates of
disposal and deregistration in aggregation were as follows:

—E--F —E-TE
ARETR AREFT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
ERN S Property, plant and equipment 180 12,601
#/EE (ffiz1e) Intangible assets (note 16) = 198
B IEEE (FizE19) Deferred tax assets (note 19) 73 6,347
eSS Inventories = 730
FELHEAE Land development for sale - 575,592
BREAPYE (M520) Properties under development (note 20) = 216,418
BEHENERTWE (FizF21) Completed properties held for sale (note 21) 28,428 =
B S EMFIE R RN E R Trade and bills receivables 279 2,209
JEE WSt A Sk A B RRIE Due from related companies - 12,661
BNFUE - e RHMmERFIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 825,880 58,966
CIEdEEE Tax recoverable 49,460 -
BATEAERNEREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 3,000
Re kReEHEY Cash and cash equivalents 42,206 6,407
2 RN FIBRENEE Trade and bills payables (174,628) (11,622)
HipfENzIE - EWiZS Other payables, deposits received
REER and accruals (603,614) (239,419)
B8R Contract liabilities (16,034) (313)
JEA B 5 BUR Due to related parties = (97,681)
JER IR Tax payable (49,199) (1,828)
103,033 544,266
o FERE RS Less: Non-controlling interests 56,960 (1,144)
REBEEIGEREE The carrying values attributable to the Group 46,071 545,410
HEWBAREE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (39,577) (15,264)
ATF AR A - Satisfied by:
Be Cash 6,494 260,065
REEREIKE Investment in a joint venture = 270,081
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

3N.HEMB AT &)

37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

FALENBARMNRE KA EEYWHIR An analysis of the cash flows of cash and cash equivalents in respect

EMENNTAT : of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
—EBC-—F —E_TF
AR¥ET T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
HeNE Cash consideration 6,494 260,065
B TENFHIE - ReE Rk Less: Prepayments, deposits and other
HippglisrIa (REERE) receivables (unsettled consideration) 6,494 192,635
B BERERSRESEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 42,206 6,407
HEWNBARMNRERREE Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash
B CRit),/RAFE equivalents in respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries (42,206) 61,023

3. HARARE

38.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RERERARR - RPBFRRARTREERN At the end of each reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided

HANBBEAT for in the financial statements were as follows:
—B-—fF —ETF
AR¥ T ARBT T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
MR TFAEEYEE HEE  Guarantees given to banks in connection
MERTTIRE R ER with facilities granted to purchasers of
the Group's properties (1) 22,250,949 27,241,482
MR T A R—R% =7  Guarantees given to banks in connection
BLE M ERITIR R ELR with facilities granted to related parties
and a third party (2) 913,650 943,560

HEER(EE)BRAR —T - —FFR




3. JAEE (#)

(1)

AEERETRTAAKEFEHENRTYE
BEREHNEMBRERMER - REERZHEN
B MERERZBANR  AREEERZE
RITEEREEERAE LEYWERMROEMR
FEETF B R ER o

1B EREHE - AR RS ER T RS RITIER
EREROERS © XS ERIERERRR
RERTARBEEEMNET R  LAEBAKNE
BB ERDEET -

AEENERABRBABEKFRERABEEER
REEMEMAREREEZILE  BHEEA—
RENBEREXERBYERNLFERNFART °

RER  AEBT AR AAEEFEHEND K
IHEBRRRENERREREERELENE
RBX - ARREFRB/MHBEZOMNR - 18R
MENT T FERAEEREZERETER
ERERT A S RER - ML EERA R -

RZB_—F+_HA=+—0  AKERHEH
7 (ZE_TF : @G ) EHNERARTR
HpBRHEER ARREZERA - BAME
ET_—FF+ A=+ HABABTRENE
RIFELBHE(ZT=Z2F : &) BARATFELD
BEX-

Bt R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

(1

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default on mortgage
payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks
as collateral for the mortgage loans, and upon default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will realise
the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property ownership certificates
to the purchasers, which will generally be available within half a year to two years
after the purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of the
guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's
completed properties held for sale. The directors of the Company considered
that in the case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the related
properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore, no provision has been made in
connection with the guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection with
borrowings made to the related parties as at 31 December 2021 (2020: to the related
parties). The directors of the Company consider that no provision was needed in
respect of the guarantees provided to the related parties as at 31 December 2021
(2020: nil) since the fair value is immaterial.
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0.FEB ARG

(WEXBEBHEXE
AT AR AR ETHR S

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1)Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

268

the year:
—E-—F —E-THF
AR¥T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
RA T BN Advances from related parties:
B Joint ventures 837,025 901,862
/N Associates 954,990 244,535
SRR AR S A A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 6,870,159 382,925
7 5 A% R 2K R B B 45 ) Companies controlled by a family member
E’JQT of the Controlling Shareholder 60,340 12,273
ERRAR R R IR B Family members of the Controlling
Shareholder 47,958 35,964
Evele) kit Repayment of advances from related parties:
BEEE Joint ventures 730,664 338,173
=N Associates 445,691 134,560
SPERAR R IZES A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 7,036,974 226,681
T*%H“% Controlling Shareholder - 6,183
Hxﬂxﬁﬁﬁxﬁéj il Company controlled by family members
E’J of the Controlling Shareholder 72,381 -
% Hxﬂx%%iﬁ%ﬁiié\ Family members of the Controlling
Shareholder 61,351 54,857
Ry A RREME K Property and sales management services
fﬁ EIRART provided by:
Z R AR R I A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 187,227 175,179
EEJ//\TXETIE{#WE HE%“ : Construction services provided by:
2 AR AR SR A HI ) A A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 5,393,265 7,403,498
SRR RIEK B H|R7A2E]  Companies controlled by a family member
of the Controlling Shareholder 294,670 530,766

#EZR(EE)ARA

—E—FFER
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

3.BBARSE (@) 39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(NEXB#HAIXZ (#) (1)Significant related party transactions (continued)
AT RN FE RN ETNRS : (8) The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year: (continued)

—B——F —ETF
AR¥T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HEHBAR : Disposal of a subsidiary:
LEHE A RRE Consideration of disposal a subsidiary - 43,000
[N RAFHEMHEIEAARA ©  Management consulting services provided to:
EEMHE Joint ventures 53,244 63,577
i /N Associates 10,603 17,753
M T3 ARREMEHEE - Sale of properties provided to:
PR R K TR AX B A family member of the
Controlling Shareholder 9,181 -
BAT A RREYERBIE Property and hotel lease services provided to:
HER
R AR R SR A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 40,023 26,161
=N An associate 95 95
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V.BEEARS &)
(WEXBEBELZXZ (&)

AT AR AR ETHR S

(%)

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

(1)Significant related party transactions (continued)

the year: (continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

—E-—F —E-THF
AR¥T T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
I A B 7 B K Advances to related parties:
BEbE Joint ventures 1,406,732 1,147,860
6%%/&7 Associates 2,334,684 489,740
YRR AR R 8 7 Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 3,425,812 20,943,067
XEEEBRABEZEHNA Companies controlled by a key
management personnel 117,650 =
SRR A% R R IR AK B 1R Companies controlled by a family member
EOI/NE] of the Controlling Shareholder - 2,742,680
ERRAR R R IR B Family members of the Controlling
Shareholder 9,554 9,544
Evele) kit Repayment of advances to related parties:
BEEE Joint ventures 1,035,788 2,626,677
=N Associates 1,801,400 220,704
SRR AR RSB A Companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder 2,099,395 21,522,563
ERRAR R KRR B Family members of the Controlling
Shareholder 9,347 80,244
Hxﬂxﬁﬁﬁxﬁéj il Companies controlled by a family member
E’J of the Controlling Shareholder - 3,520,098
xiﬁﬁfi)\éj Gl Companies controlled by a key
management personnel 81,608 -

ZERSDRIBESLER T RERRAERHE

HMETR A 3ETT ©

#EZR(EE)ARA

— T —FFIR

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and

conditions mutually agreed after negotiation by the parties involved.
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

3.BBARSE (@) 39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
() HEFEH A S (2) Other transactions with related parties
et etk 2 —TFF
AR¥T R AR¥ETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
m) B B T 4R 2 FE AR Guarantees provided to related parties:
SRR AR R Y A 7 Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 250,000 -
L l/NG| Associates 169,510 =
BEME Joint ventures 494,140 943,560
R AR Tt R AR Guarantees provided by related parties:
PRI ER Controlling Shareholder 9,037,802 6,667,611
ERREKEKE A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 8,075,801 4,011,300
R AR R SR A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 359,000 70,000
(3) EEB B T 1Y R B 1B A 2 (3) Outstanding balances with related parties
—E-—F —E_TF
AR¥TR AREFTT
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
JRE Wiz B Bk 75 RKOH Due from related parties:
= 5 [#aks Trade-related:
BERX Joint ventures 60,510 46,429
BEnw Associates 40,317 20,317
1 AR AR SR ) A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 86,879 942
ZRRAR R K kX B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 9,640 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 271




272

Bt 3% 3R M A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

V.BEEARS &)

(3) BB 5 B R B 1BAE 6 (58)

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTINUED)

(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (continued)

—B-—F —E-FF
AR¥ T AREFTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
JiE U BE s 75 SRR Due from related parties:
HFE 5 R Non-trade-related:
BEEE Joint ventures 1,287,213 1,084,173
/N Associates 1,104,554 571,270
SRR AR RIS A9 A A Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 1,659,000 977,013
ZEEEE BTSN A company controlled by a key
—fEA7] management personnel 36,042 =
PERRIRR KR B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 207 -
5 Grand total 4,284,362 2,700,144
FE 1~ BBt 75 7RI Due to related parties:
2 5 Ak Trade-related:
R AR 6 A 7] Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 1,967,260 3,719,744
PR AR AR R SR R A B 12 ] Companies controlled by family members
#) A A of the Controlling Shareholder 174,210 180,897
AR R K IR B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 620 620
FEFEAER Key management personnel = -

JE 1< BRI 5 3R
FE SR

Due to related parties:
Non-trade-related:

BERE Joint ventures 1,094,786 1,225,182
/N Associates 990,768 481,469
XA A R PR il 1 B Companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder 6,699 173,514
PRI AR R R B 12 Companies controlled by a family member
# A7 of the Controlling Shareholder 231 12,273
TR R K B A family member of the Controlling
Shareholder 1,955 15,351
FEE Grand total 4,236,529 5,809,050
B PR T AR REER  TFHER Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, non-interest-
BERERE o bearing and repayable on demand.

HAEZR(KE)ARAR

— T —FFIR
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N.EBMAERS (#) 39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(A FXEEEEEEEANSFHH (4) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
—B-—-F —TTF
AR¥T R ARKETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEEE R Short-term employee benefits 17,430 32,631
RINEETEI R Pension scheme contributions 1,170 1,510
MEEEERBASXZND Total compensation paid to key
e s management personnel 18,600 34,141

BEHMAE — T F BN EIREMEES ° Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
financial statements.
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0. RERNETHNERMT A 40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REBEHR - SEecm T ARNREED The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
T~ instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
—2=-——4#+=-A=+—H 31 December 2021
SREE Financial assets
ZEH BAYE
A EH sSTABRE
TREE THEE HE
AR¥TR AR¥ TR AR¥TR
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets
cost at FVTPL Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B o RUGRIE R EREE Trade and bills receivables 13,281 - 13,281
STATEM IR - ke REMER Financial assets included in
RENSREE (fT5E24) prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (note 24) 12,122,161 - 12,122,161
BATEFAEBENCREE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 840,117 840,117
JiE U5 AR 5 70A Due from related parties 4,284,362 - 4,284,362
RE KRBT Cash and bank balances 8,448,078 - 8,448,078
24,867,882 840,117 25,707,999
EReE Financial liabilities
2 18 85 B A<
FTENSRAE
AR®T T
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB’'000
2 5 N FRIE R ENER Trade and bills payables 6,587,113
ST AE A R RIE K EETE A Financial liabilities included in other payables
Mer & E (FiFE28) and accruals (note 28) 4,492,056
FE 1S BR S 7 7RIR Due to related parties 4,236,529
AT EERTT R EMIER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29,422,779
HEEE Lease liabilities 67,675
BEERE Senior notes 4,462,890
TEESH Corporate bonds 500,767
49,769,809
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

0.ZEHNETHNERMTE @) 40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
REBEHR - SEecm T ARNREED The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
T : (#&) instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
(continued)
—ECTFE+-A=1+—H 31 December 2020
P— Financial assets
bie | EAYE
KAFTEHR  FTAEZES
BRLEE TRbEE #Et
ARBTT ARETT AR%T
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
E 5 WA & e U = Trade and bills receivables 127,380 = 127,380
SFATBMFOE - e REAMEYW  Financial assets included in
REM TR EE (MI5E24) prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (note 24) 7,625,119 - 7,625,119
RATEFABENEREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 626,231 626,231
JiE U5 Bt 5 OB Due from related parties 2,700,144 = 2,700,144
W& RIRITAEER Cash and bank balances 24,304,747 — 24,304,747
34,757,390 626,231 35,383,621
cHMaE Financial liabilities
REH AT E /)
TR E
ARETTT
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB'000
B 5 e FRIE R ENZER Trade and bills payables 6,977,322
STAEMENRIERESTERA  Finandial liabilities included in other payables
e E (HiE28) and accruals (note 28) 5,772,671
&SRR B 5 7 E Due to related parties 5,809,050
AT EERTT R EMIER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 42,285,907
HEARE Lease liabilities 86,117
BREEE Senior notes 3,389,987
TERES Corporate bonds 500,664
64,821,718
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41.%@15\3’9’/}5?@&@%2@@

RERESHR  AEESRTA (REER
AFEEERENSRTARI) MEKEE
RAFEMT :

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period, other than those
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

FEE ATE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—EC-F B -3 ZE--F% e 5
+ZA=+-8 +ZA=+—-RA +ZBA=+-H +ZA=+—H
ARETR ARETTL ARETR ARETT
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
BATEGFABEZNE R Financial assets at FVTPL (note 25)
BE (ftzE25) 840,117 626,231 840,117 626,231
SHAE Financial liabilities
FTERITREMER Interest-bearing bank and other
(F3zE30) borrowings (note 30) 29,422,779 42,285,907 29,575,330 42,319,093
BAEE (FzE31) Senior notes (note 31) 4,462,890 3,389,987 1,908,422 3,450,253
EEH (F7E32) Corporate bonds (note 32) 500,767 500,664 506,910 504,863
34,386,436 46,176,558 31,990,662 46,274,209

EREDETHE  RERRBITEHR EH
FENRIA K R R IR - FEUR AR JT SRR - AT
ATBNRBEREMEYFENEREE - B
SRNFARENRE - st AR TR
REGHERNESRAE - BREB I 30R
HERBEMEERRESFN A TEELRE
ERE  RABREIHRZEFIAHARR
EEEEBERBRRA AR EERUGSK
EE R FFAEE R K T AN KR
HRKREREBEFTRATFEFABRENS
BMEEZATE - RAFEFABZN R
BEZATEFERAFEERADERE
“HRRE=MR -

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, trade and bills receivables, amounts due from related
parties, financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and
asset-backed securities are approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Management has estimated the fair values of the financial assets
at FVTPL by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The fair value measurement of the financial
assets at FVTPL is categorised within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.
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EE -R-_ZE_—F+-_H=+—H &
aHfh - AEE B S BRITREMERK
BAEZENTEARRILTERX o

EEEFZAFEDRMSERE -

AEBE M EEPFAEREN AR % EK
BEHEESRMTARFEFENERERE
Fre Rt EFEERNEBMBRERE
EZgER - NEREAY - RAMBEF S
e T AEBENESHBER  YEEHEMN
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
senior notes have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
senior notes as at 31 December 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of corporate bonds are based on quoted market prices.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the group financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the group financial controller and the
board of directors. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the group financial controller. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the board of directors
twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and liabilities.
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—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

NERTENDFERAFEE 41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

V€ ) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
NFEER Fair value hierarchy
TRIRAEEEHITANA T EFEE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
IS the Group's financial instruments:
BEAFHEFEHEE - Assets measured at fair value:
RAFEFABENEHEE Financial assets at FVTPL
ERANTSEMENAFETE
Fair value measurement using
ERT LW EXABR EAFTEE
HE BAHE BAHE
(%) (E=8) (=) Bzt
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZEZ—FF+ZA=+—H  Asat31 December 2021
BATEFAEROSMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 840,117 - 840,117
RZZE-ZF+-A=1+—H  Asat 31 December 2020
BATEFAERMEREE  Finandial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 626,231 - 626,231

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

NERTENDFERAFEE 41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

& @ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)
NFEER (&) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HREENFENHEE - Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
FTESRTRAEMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

ERAUTREMENAFETE
Fair value measurement using

ERTHELHN  EAUBR EATTEE
HE BARE BARE

(E—%) (B=&) (B=8) Foh
AR®TR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR
Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZ—F+-A=1+—H  Asat 31 December 2021
FTERITREM A Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 29,575,330 - 29,455,965
BEZE Senior notes 633,847 1,274,575 - 1,908,422
rEER Corporate bonds 506,910 = = 506,910
1,140,757 30,849,905 - 31,990,662
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NERTENDFERAFEE 41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

V€ ) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
NFERER (&) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BREFAFEHEE : (F)

STEBRTREMER (Z) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

ERA TS RMAEN D FHERE

Fair value measurement using

B BRI 5 LAY BAAEE EATIER
HE BABUR AR
(E—8&) (B=8) (B=H) st
ARETT ARBT T ARETT ARETT
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZZF+-A=1+—H  Asat 31 December 2020
FTERITREM A Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings = 42,319,093 = 42,319,093
BERE Senior notes - 3,450,253 - 3,450,253
= Corporate bonds 504,863 - - 504,863
504,863 45,769,346 - 46,274,209

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%




4. ERERERBERBE

AEETESRTATEGRERLEEHEE

EAMBES RIRTTHAS  BHRIRKIERE
WEE E@f%* - B S ENRIEKE
NRBEREMENKIE AEBEHEFEMS
ﬂﬁ?&ﬁﬁ @ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 7

AFEFF AR E’Jimﬂ‘ié? Ef@ivﬁ%
1i FE 1 RA B 5 3008 I FEUR BA B 5 B © 7%
mEIHE’JI%EE’JEF%ZKEIE’JZ“‘“%

X§$Eli@1ﬂmiiﬂmﬁﬂwﬂ
;j)f CHNER R KRB E 2 R o
$%lﬁﬂﬁ§@ﬁﬁ%k%#m%
%°%%$%EWE%W%%@@%%%
K ANEEWEGEAEATEREMITAE
i EE c REBARFAERBEITERZIAE
MITESRTA BEFESEHIREEES
BRERHBER - BRBERBARNT

(a) FIE E 2

AL BEHER AT 5 M) R B8 E e = 2 EH
30FMTE AR B BRRITREMERER - K
SEYECERITES BT ALHHXER
REBEERZEE fimﬁty”\&ﬁ{m%?yﬁaﬁﬁ
MERA

R-TBE-—F+—-A=+—H MHEMEH
fib B B MR T SR 1T R H A S R A
ztﬂ/wcﬂ% + B AN &2 [ & ¢ AT A

DR g AR 5,007,0007T (=
T_T4F : AR¥5,825,0007T) °
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade
and bills payables and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such
as interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, other financial liabilities, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related parties. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on
its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to these risks
to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 30. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages
its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and other
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, if the interest rate of bank borrowings had
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB5,007,000 (2020: RMB5,825,000).
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NBBEREEEERBE #)

(b) M L B2

FEEAERZERRR - ERRREIZERA
AEERSRRITERLELERE - E¥RK
XILAHE - UEEINERRBEATE -

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(b)Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from the Group's cash and bank balances and senior
notes. The currency in which they are denominated is US$. There is
no significant impact on foreign currency risk.

ERHAET BRBLA
Ex A &
#m/(Bd)  #Bm/0R)  #m/(HD)
% ARBTR ARBFR

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
US$ or HKS in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-—%+-HA=1+—8 31 December 2021
AR EETT TR If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (2,449) (2,449)
WARM R ET LR If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 2,449 2,449
AR AT TR If the RMB weakens against HK$ -5% 58,795 58,795
AR AT LR If the RMB strengthens against HK$ +5% (58,795) (58,795)
ZECEE+ZA=1—H 31 December 2020
WARMHET TR If the RMB weakens against US$ -5% (18,616) (18,616)
W AR HET LR If the RMB strengthens against US$ +5% 18,616 18,616
WARME BT TR If the RMB weakens against HK$ -5% (53,414) (53,414)
AR BT LR If the RMB strengthens against HK$ +5% 53,414 53,414

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(c) Credit risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment. To manage risk arising from trade and
bills receivables, the Group has policies in place to ensure that credit
terms are made only to counterparties with an appropriate credit
history and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the
Group's counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers
is generally six months and the credit quality of these customers is
assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group also has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
trade and bills receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets
included in prepayments and other receivables and amounts due from
related parties as well as individual assessments on the recoverability
of other receivables and amounts due from related parties based
on historical settlement records and past experience. The Group
has classified financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties in Stage 1 and
continuously monitored their credit risk. The directors of the Company
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables and amounts due from related parties.
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42, B 7 R By B B

(c) EEREE (&)
=B BB R AR EE

TRFBIENAEEEERRNEEERR
EmEERR (E2EREBHEN BRI
B A EBIEE T B ERRASAE DR
B RIS ERIER) ARFRERDE - T2
JIM SRR MEENAREER S BER

BHNERERR -

R=-ZE-_—F+=-HA=+-—H

BERBE #)

POLICIES (conTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and

the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2021

1218R
BHEEFR ERFESRAEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
E-K& -l 3 S=K& Btk st
ARETR  AR¥ETn AR%Tr AR¥TR ARETx
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2 SRR R N EE Trade and bills receivables* = = = 13,281 13,281
STABRHE  Z2 R Financial assets included in prepayments,
EtRUFENSREE deposits and other receivables
= e - Normal** 12,122,161 - - - 12,122,161
BOTEFABRENEHEE  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 840,117 - - - 840,117
JEMR A AR Due from related parties
—ER* - Normal** 4,284,362 - - - 4,284,362
ReRBTER Cash and bank balances
— HARH - Not yet past due 8,448,078 - - - 8,448,078
25,694,718 - - 13,281 25,707,999
HEER(EE)ERAT —T——FFRK
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

12f8A#
RHEEER EEGENRREERR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F—RE E-RRB E=Re BenE @5t
ARETT  ARETT ARETT AR%ETr ARETR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARUTEREREE Trade and bills receivables* = = = 127,380 127,380
STABRRHE 2Rk Financial assets included in prepayments,
EtRlFENSREE deposits and other receivables
= e - Normal** 7,625,119 - - - 7,625,119
BATE AREH) Financial assets at fair value through
SHEAE profit or loss 626,231 - - - 626,231
JEMR A R Due from related parties
= IEg+ - Normal** 2,700,144 = — = 2,700,144
ReRBTER Cash and bank balances
— HARH - Not yet past due 24,304,747 - - - 24304747
35,256,241 - - 127,380 35,383,621

* BAKERERMCBETANE S EKTR & E
WREmME - EREHEEBEBRNENRY B R
RIFFE22HE - TEREETHERRR -

o fed UK R B 75 SRR Rt A TR BRIE B e K
HoEeneREETEARTEESHNETREN
RERLEREENEERBRARLMN - AERS

BEEHRRIER] -

*  For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the expected credit losses is disclosed in note 22
to the financial statements. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

** The credit quality of amounts due from related parties and the financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NBBEREEEERBE #)

() B &£ mEE

AREN B RREBEMNSRTRAME
REBBRERBEARBEEEZAOTE - &
SERETNERRORE -

FEERESAEREBBERERE RARIER
NHFENSREENTBEROT :

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (conTINUED)

(d)Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing

basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
each reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:
BER Z@AUR =E+=fEA —FHE @5t
ARETT AR%TR AR%TR AR%¥Tn AR%Tx
Less than 3to 12 Over 1
On demand 3 months months year Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
“B--f+tZA=t-H 31 December 2021

BORNTERERER Trade and bills payables 6,587,113 - - - 6,587,113
HibENFA Other payables 11,238,515 - - - 11,238,515
FES % 7 50 0R Due to related parties 4,236,529 = = - 4,236,529
HERE Lease liabilities - 7,123 21,093 45,890 74,106

FTERIT REM A Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 13,800,265 1,170,930 17,601,659 32,572,853
BEZE Senior notes - 1,992,725 1,418,593 1,428,157 4,839,475
Gt ¥ESH Corporate bonds - - 38,500 538,500 577,000
22,062,157 15,800,113 2,649,116 19,614,206 60,125,592

HEER(EE)ERAT —T=—FF3%
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(d)Liquidity risk (continued)

BREX =@EANMR =Z+={EA —ENE @5t

ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETRT ARETR
Less than 3to 12 Over 1

On demand 3 months months year Total

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—E_EF+-A=1+-H 31 December 2020

BHRNTIBRENER Trade and bills payables 6,977,322 - - - 6977322
HiERRIE Other payables 13,220,334 - = - 13,220,334
JE 1 BB 7 5RIE Due to related parties 5,809,050 = = - 5,809,050
HEEE Lease liabilities - 12,979 33,869 63,540 110,388
STERITREMEK Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 3,297,309 18,628,177 25,215,915 47,141,401
BERE Senior notes - 237,714 1541218 1,973,782 3,752,714
rERS Corporate bonds - 12,658 29,112 542,540 584,310
26,006,706 3,560,660 20,232,376 27,795,777 77,595,519
(e) EXEHE (e) Capital management

AEREAEENTIEARAREAEER
BRE2VHFRENERNLERNES  UAX
FEXBAERREESRAL -

AEBERBELBERRNE(CERRARE
BAGE -  REFIRABELERE  ~5E
HEARKN TRROKE - RERREAR
HEITHAL

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

287



Bt 3% 3R M A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
NGERREEEERBE &) 42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (conTINUED)

(e) EXEHE (1)

AEBERAEERBLE (AVEBFERA
BABBEBEBFRZMN) REZFER - K
SERNEBFEEEEIRNFREARENR
B HtENSRERESER - BN EE
FE - GHERITREMEBERAREMGESHE
B RESEASEEY EERAERRR
REERE - EXEERREA ARBGER -

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net
debt, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related parties, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits and restricted cash. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratio as at the end of each

288

REBEREERFNEERBLEMT :

reporting period was as follows:

—EB-—F —ETEF

AR®T T ARETTT

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 I RENER Trade and bills payables 6,587,113 6,977,322
H A RIE R T E A Other payables and accruals 11,238,515 13,220,334
JRE 1S A B 5 3K IE Due to related parties 4,236,529 5,809,050
BEEE Senior notes 4,462,890 3,389,987
BEEH Corporate bonds 500,767 500,664
TEIRTT R EAbfE 3k Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29,422,779 42,285,907
B IRE MR Less: Cash and bank balances (8,448,078)  (24,304,747)
B1% 55 Net debt 48,000,515 47,878,517
SAREE ARG ER Equity attributable to owners of the parent 7,717,713 8,431,555
BEAR KRG Capital and net debt 55,718,228 56,310,072
BEEAMBLE Gearing ratio 86% 85%

HAEZR(KE)ARAR

—E—FFER



R T e T e T e T e e L g T T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%+=A=+—H 31 December 2021

BEEBERFEREZNIEZE 43.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

ME 2R NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
AEEESEANFEERERAONEQRFE Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
&z interests are set out below:

FERER IEREFER FERER
FERERSE ERFEER REt&eh
% ARBT T ARBETR
Percentage Loss for
of equity the year  Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB’000 RMB'000
—E-_—-%#+=-H=+-H 31 December 2021
DEZEREMEREERAR  Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(TEBZE])* (“Shanghai Jubo")* 17.5% (1,570) 1,250,254
FEHELBEEREAR  Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue Real Estate Development
ARl ([FEEFEELR]) * Co., Ltd. (“Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue")** 49% (6,558) 973,259
FERER  HEEFER RS
RERERS  ERFEEHER ZitER
% AREFT ARETT
Percentage Loss for
of equity the year Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling  non-controlling  non-controlling
interests interests interests
% RMB'000 RMB'000
—E-EF¥+=-A=+-H 31 December 2020
LEBERMERBZERAR  Shanghai Jubo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(TLERE]) (“Shanghai Jubo")* 17.5% (3,153) 1,251,823
INEEESLVERERESR  Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda Real Estate Development
AR ([HUINEEETARE]) ** Co., Ltd. ("Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda")*** 49% - 1,074,836

* BET_TFEROHEREGZ  DEREORE *
H20% & 517.5% °

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement in 2020, the equity interest of minority

shareholder was changed from 20% to 17.5%.

ok EBRMEAC MR T —F - KL ° **  Zhuji Shinsun Hongyue was established in February 2021.

o RBNEE IR s BE T —F+=A=
T—HIEFE - MMEELERRAR R 2 EM
BRA -

*** Pyrsuant to the acquisition of non-controlling interests, Hangzhou Shinsun Hongda
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in the year ended 31 December
2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD. 289



290

B %8R MR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE-—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

BEBERNFEREZNFZE

MEBAT @)

NERFIIR £l B A m] e B 7S B R AL - P
BEE 2B PMEL (I A R HAT -

—E-—-F+Z-H=+—H

company eliminations:

31 December 2021

43.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

EEBE FEERLELLHE
AR¥T T ARET T
Shanghai Zhuji Shinsun
Jubo Hongyue
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue = =
Sz 4R =E Total expenses (8,970) (13,384)
FANEE Loss for the year (8,970) (13,384)
FRAEMEELEE Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,970) (13,384)
AT &7 G Attributable to:
ISYNCIEZEWN Owners of the parent (7,400) (6,826)
JEVER R Non-controlling interests (1,570) (6,558)
(8,970) (13,384)
MENEE Current assets 15,448,515 5,328,229
IEMBEE Non-current assets 19,080 6,355
mENBE Current liabilities (625,613) (3,348,341)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (7,697,675) =
7,144,307 1,986,243
AT &5 FEG - Attributable to:
HRRHER A Owners of the parent 5,894,054 1,012,984
=R = Non-controlling interests 1,250,253 973,259
7,144,307 1,986,243
KETEEFAR S RE T8 Net cash flows used in operating activities (637,120) (1,959,183)
KETEFABRE S RE F5E Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,189) =
BMEEDAERSREFRE Net cash flows generated from financing
activities 643,379 2,000,000
He MReEEBYILINFRR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,070 40,817

REER(EM)ARAT —F- 4R
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43.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

—®-®Ft+=H=1-A

31 December 2020

EERE PuUNFEAELLE
ARETTT ARETIT
Hangzhou
Shanghai Shinsun
Jubo Hongda
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue = =
] Total expenses (15,764) (25,534)
FAEE Loss for the year (15,764) (25,534)
FALHEHELRE Total comprehensive loss for the year (15,764) (25,534)
A& FEG - Attributable to:
[SYNEIEZEPN Owners of the parent (12,611) (25,534)
JEVE R RE Non-controlling interests (3,153) =
(15,764) (25,534)
MENEE Current assets 14,510,030 4,210,752
EMBNEE Non-current assets 14,553 56,656
mEBE Current liabilities (317,010) (2,159,886)
EREEE Non-current liabilities (7,054,296) =
7,153,277 2,107,522
AT &5 FEG - Attributable to:
ISYNEIE/ PN Owners of the parent 5,901,454 1,032,686
FEIEIR Non-controlling interests 1,251,823 1,074,836
7,153,277 2,107,522
KETEEFAR S RE F5E Net cash flows used in operating activities (69,706) (376,059)
KEESFARERE R Net cash flows used in investing activities (36) =
BMEEAERSREFRE Net cash flows generated from financing
activities 65,135 378,000
HeMReFEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
O A) /18 hnFae equivalents (4,607) 1,941
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44. 3B 44.COMMITMENTS
AEENERE AR ARE A TERELE : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of each
reporting period:
—EBE-—F —F-F
AR¥ET T ARETTT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETAVERETIRE M - Contracted, but not provided for:
L E LR Property development activities 26,459,241 28,347,002
Lk B + i 5 PR ARE Acquisition of a land use right 1,767,731 1,371,686

28,226,972 29,718,688
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45. {EHBMREE

RZEBEZ=_F—Rf ARRERENBAA -
Xiang Sheng Overseas Limited F %4 &) B 4 4
TRAEBR AT TR S —F— AR
4 #8%8/5300,000,000E TR A 12.5EF
AER((ZT2TFEE1]) NFAARD
RB|EL ([RBRBL]) - RBBHRFERE
BEEBFEAGEZEREHR AT _=4F
—RAESMNFER (S —F2%]) =
HFEFERB13% - A& 4R%A220,672,500
=7t (HE R ARE123,461,00078) c R=
T F—A+N\B RBREYHYEZK
NE&HEER19,470,0005 T (HERARK
123,461,0007T) K —ZE = FZR 1 IR E
E o AARIRBEZ T FRIBAARIEZE 19,470,000
T (HEAARKE123,461,0007T) ° &
RENEHNEFRXNEYNETEARE
3,966,500,0007T °

RZFE-_—_F=A=+H ARFAEEEE
MASEEEEIRNERPERIZXNR=Z=
—F N\ AETHZARE%545200,000,000% 7T
MR T -_=FEHHMNN2EBLERE ([=
T —FF8,2|)IET®£%R12,000,000%
T (HERAR®T76,110,0007T) K9F & °
RZZEZ=ZF=A=+—H BARAEZE
Ko ARRZEZ—FEBIOREBHER
SHBERAREERS -N_ZTE__FNA
—B ARRREZE—FZR2HEEA
REMEMEABE - £%/45200,000,000% 7T
(HERARY1,275,140,0007T) ° 2=+
fBE N4 /200,000,000% T (HERAR
#1,275,140,0007T) B =F = — F 75 A 5| 5
HEMERBI05%MER ([ ZE-—FEK
21) A% 5220,672,500% 7T (HHERAR
#1,401,734,0007T) WX XEX) - F1EF2
BMARGR_ZE-_—_F=A=-+—RAK=%
——FAMBBEMAL o
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—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021
45.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2022, the Company and its subsidiary, Xiang Sheng
Overseas Limited commenced the exchange offer (“Exchange Offer”)
to the holders of the existing 12.5% senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$300,000,000 due in January 2022 (the “2020
Notes 1”) issued by Xiang Sheng Holding Limited. The Exchange
Offer allowed the existing senior note holders to convert their notes
into new notes maturing in January 2023 with a coupon rate of 13%
per annum with a principal amount of US$220,672,500 (equivalent
to RMB123,461,000) (the “2022 Notes”). On 18 January 2022, the
Exchange Offer was completed and an aggregate principal amount
of US$19,470,000 (equivalent to RMB123,461,000) of the 2020
Notes 1 remains outstanding. The Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding US$19,470,000 (equivalent to
RMB123,461,000), and this event of default also resulted in the cross-
default borrowings amounting to RMB3,966,500,000.

On 20 March 2022, the board of directors of the Company
announced that the Group was unable to pay the amount of
US$12,000,000 (equivalent to RMB76,110,000) interest under the
12% senior notes due 2023 issued in August 2021 with a principal
amount of US$200,000,000 (“2021 Notes 2") before the expiry
of the grace period. On 21 March 2022, at the request of the
Company, trading of the 2021 Notes 2 of the Company on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has been suspended. On 1 April
2022, the Company received a written notice of acceleration form
the holders of the 2021 Notes 2, amounting to US$200,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,275,140,000). This event triggered the cross-
default of the notes bearing annual interest rate of 10.5% due in
June 2022 with a principal amount of US$200,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,275,140,000) (the “2021 Notes 2”) and the 2022
Notes with a principal amount of US$220,672,500 (equivalent to
RMB1,401,734,000). Details can be referred to the announcements of
the Company dated 21 March 2022 and 4 April 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 SHINSUN HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LTD.

293



294

Bt 3% 3R M A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=—%F+=H=+—H 31 December 2021

46. 2 X B 2 B Bk 2=

R E R AE A LD R MR K E B

A
N

46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

T at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—EBC-—F —E_TF
ARET T ARETIT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
KE—REHNERA A Investments in subsidiaries = _
R EELT Total non-current assets - -
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BeRIREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 29,030 19,516
e B NGIE ] Due from subsidiaries 6,404,536 4,248,403
MENVEEHLT Total current assets 6,433,566 4,267,919
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BIEERE Senior notes 1,334,238 =
H i < FRIE KBS B Other payables and accruals 342,297 14,942
mEIBEER Total current liabilities 1,676,535 14,942
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,757,031 4,252,977
EEABERABEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,757,031 4,252,977
FRBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEERE Senior notes 1,258,377 =
EMEBERR Total non-current liabilities 1,258,377 -
BEFE Net assets 3,498,654 4,252,977
P& #E EQUITY
gz Share capital 199,616 199,616
(i Reserves 3,299,038 4,053,361
[ 4R KE Total equity 3,498,654 4,252,977

HEER(EB)ARAR —T——FFRK
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46. KA R Z B AR R T (#) 46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
AN ERAEBRER AT A summary of the Company’s total equity is as follows:
B R4 ME 23R @
AR®TR AR®T R ARETR ARETR
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ZEITE-A-RAzER Balance at 1 January 2020 = = = =

FREERABE Total comprehensive income for the year = = (94,359) (94,359)
BT Issuance of new shares 199,616 4,147,720 = 4,347,336
R-E-Z&E+-A=1+—H Balance at 31 December 2020 and
R-T--F-f—R&H 1 January 2021 199,616 4,147,720 (94,359) 4,252,977
ER-ZETFRHAKRE Final 2020 dividend declared - (512,150) = (512,150)
EW%EH&)\%@@ Total comprehensive income for the year - = (242,173) (242,173)
“T-—F+-FA=1+—HB##% Balance at 31 December 2021 199,616 3,635,570 (336,532) 3,498,654
47 #tE I Rk 47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZZE_—_FRANBUBHRREE=SH The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
JE NG BT B o the board of directors on 9 May 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December

—E”-F “T-FF “T-NEF —T-N\F —E—+F
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARET R ARETTL ARETTL ARETL ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2 Revenue 43,719,028 46,638,413 35,519.538 14,215,302 6,293,295
HEMKA Cost of sales (39,147,417)  (38,203,574)  (27,039,427)  (11,216,121) (5,459,461)
EYi] Gross profit 4,571,611 8,434,839 8,480,111 2,999,181 833,834
B Finance income 306,770 75,773 151,883 71,376 16,892
=R N6 Other income and gains 129,638 108,621 95,375 36,789 131,031
HERDERX Selling and distribution expenses  (1,266,839)  (1,240,318) (1,073,899) (752,944) (502,524)
1TEBX Administrative expenses (999,754) (1,132,252) (1,125,445) (1,119,107) (521,753)
Hipbix Other expenses (306,661) (101,221) (199,371) (69,630) (46,152)
REWEONTEWRS  Fair value gains on investment
properties 17,726 4,624 22,406 13,978 17,285
B A Finance costs (1,257,317)  (1,113,405) (777,570) (432,110) (220,316)
FEIETHRAR&F RE  Share of profits and losses of:
B
RELE Joint ventures 349,184 2,026 (54,644) (30,492) 1,208
kNG Associates 95,563 (19,770) 11,502 (30,929) (1,349)
BRBIAIRR(B8) Profit/(loss) before tax 1,639,921 5,018,917 5,530,348 686,062 (291,844)
Frs® (%)% Income tax (expense)/credit (1,159,246)  (1,965,546)  (2,321,393) (258,122) 5,895
FREF /(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 480,675 3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940 (285,949)
A& : Attributable to:
NGIE 2N Owners of the Company (215,363) 2,646,006 2,312,283 325,047 (300,123)
IR ER Non-controlling interests 696,038 407,365 896,672 102,893 14,174
480,675 3,053,371 3,208,955 427,940 (285,949)
EE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets 7,273,265 6,182,230 5,572,070 4,177,467 2,574,290
REEE Current assets 138,469,867 153,557,352 125,055,622 117,890,290 73,591,120
BEAE Total assets 145,743,132 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757 76,165,410
ERkEfE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EmBE Total equity 16,952,356 16,037,036 5,975,116 2,880,859 1,459,232
EnBarE Non-current liabilities 17,384,546 24,265,963 17,267,219 13,697,323 14,037,765
mEaE Current liabilities 111,406,230 119,436,583 107,385,357 105,489,575 60,668,413
AfELE Total liabilities 128,790,776 143,702,546 124,652,576 119,186,898 74,706,178
EEREEASE Total equity and liabilities 145,743,132 159,739,582 130,627,692 122,067,757 76,165,410
HEER(EE)ERAT —FT——FFHR
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